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Chairman’s Statement

TRBE

With the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, 2020 was an
unprecedented year for Hong Kong and the entire world. The
pandemic brought about challenges and changes in public
health, social activities, work, travel and everyday life never
seen before. Around the world, major economies underwent
sharp contractions, and rebounds turned out to be short-lived
as subsequent spikes in infections became sporadic.

In Hong Kong, the COVID-19 pandemic inflicted a severe
impact on economic activities and resulted in a GDP shrinkage
which was the sharpest on record. Domestic demand took
a big hit in 2020, with private consumption expenditure
having recorded the steepest ever annual decline. Investment
expenditure also declined and unemployment climbed to a
16-year high. Amidst the austere business environment, Hong
Kong’s advertising market fell significantly by 18%, the worst
seen in the records of admanGo. All media segments, with
the exception of mobile, reported negative growth. Inevitably,
the Group’s financial results were adversely affected.

However, in these testing times, the demand for information
has instead increased and the role of reliable media has
been rendered all the more important. Readers continue
to desire to be informed and entertained; and in response
to the market’s needs the Group has continued to build
on its capabilities as a media provider, in both offline and
online. With a commitment to providing excellent content
and high added-value services to readers and advertisers, the
Group has maintained its lead in the print media market,
including Chinese and English newspapers, magazines and
recruitment publications. In addition, it has increased its
efforts on developing the digital platforms ranging from
mobile applications, social media, e-commerce to advertising
networks, which are crucial for its long term business growth.

Despite the signs of improvement in the public health and
economic situations across the world given the vaccination
campaigns being applied, the global and local economies will
continue to face uncertainties and erratic paths to recovery.
The Group will keep close track of developments in the
pandemic as well as economic and geopolitical conditions by
which its businesses may be affected. It will capitalise on its
strengths in the traditional media segments and combine that
with its new media capabilities to remain a strong leader in
the market.
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Chairman’s Statement

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
3 February 2021, a sale and purchase agreement has been
entered into regarding the sale of approximately 28% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company indirectly held
by me to an independent purchaser (the “Transaction”).
Completion of the Transaction is conditional upon a number
of “Conditions Precedent” (as defined in such announcement).
Please refer to “Disposal of Shares by Controlling Shareholder”
under the section “Other Information and Events after the
Reporting Period” in the “Report of the Directors” of this
annual report for details.

With 2020 being such a difficult year, I would like to thank
our staff for their continued dedication and hard work. I
also take this opportunity to offer my thanks to the directors
and management, as well as our advertisers, readers and
shareholders for their continuing support.

Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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ajor Awards of the Year e News Reporting

=1% Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
TE(EBAR)
TR CBRARRER) 7271

=Merit : Sing Tao Daily

Hong Kong News Awards 2020 Best Young Reporter B (EBRA®R)
2020 FEEREHELE REHA THE  BERHELEHERT|

=Winner : Sing Tao Daily
Best News Writing (Chinese) FE  (E22AE)
P T8 1. (T OEASBBEE R
pnner - Sing fao Haly 2. 98T ISR ] BBEABRERS
mEEsHE 3 Bt T2 BB B RS
I BEELTEN RANIREETE o -
= 1% Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
TE(EBA%)
T [RHR | BERESE HIBHEHRGREA
=Merit : Sing Tao Daily
BE (EBR®H)
IR ZRABAHIE®R BERRERBEE

Best Business News Writing (Chinese)
BREEEHMSE (hX)
=1%Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
TE (ESE®
TR BB [EETE] mmasE
Best Photograph (News)

REER (¥EE)
=Merit : Headline Daily

BE : GRER®R)
TRE SRR

Best News Page Design (Series)
REHMRERT (RIHE)
=Merit © Sing Tao Daily

BR (BEBRA®R)

TR BB TR

—

Best Headline (English)

RERE (¥EX)
=Winner : The Standard

BE : (EXFHR)
=+ : Dragon drawing its last breath to spare
Cathay

Best News Reporting
REHRERE
= 1% Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily
DE (EBRER)
THE REHERS

Best Scoop
REBRKHE
=Winner : Sing Tao Daily
BE (EBB®)
FRE B SR BRI

‘ SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED _ Annual Report 2020




ajor Awards of the Year

"Focus At The Frontline 2019" ‘
Photo Contest
(Hi% - B8 2019) HREBELLE

Press Photo Reader's Digest Hong Kong
HEER Trusted Brand 2020
=Bronze Award : Headline Daily GEEXR)BHEELE2020
HREE - CSRIGE IR ) .

1E EAETER Finance & Media - Free Newspaper

SRMEEE - K REE

=Platinum : Headline Daily

Be : (AKRR)

—
Nature & Environment The 4" Business Journalism
BHRARE Awards of HSUHK
=2" Runner-up : Sing Tao Daily FENEEXHENELE

FE (EBEAW

=Honorable Mention : Sing Tao Daily

Best Business News Series
Mo . ) Reporting (Text)
BEE (EEAH) Merit Award : Sing Tao Daily BEHEGHMRIEER ()

@i&ﬁ@ <<E”% Bk =Silver Award : Sing Tao Daily
A—— : TR BESEHT REE : (2B AWM

T AR RAFEEEMN RS

Consumer Rights -_— e

Reporting Awards 2020
FotEHEEDHERERE
Textual contents (Investigative)
XF (REHE)
=Bronze Award : Sing Tao Daily

g (EBHH)

TR ARSI B SRR AR R

_— e

Media Report 2020 by
Marketing Magazine

The Spark Awards 2020

Digital Media
Best Audience Retention Strategy d .
#Bronze : Ohpama.com =Ohpama.com [Oh! &4 |
$FHE : [Oh! B8 | No.1 Parenting Digital Media of the Year

TR [ohl 8% ] RFEIHTE

Best CX/UX Strategy
=Bronze : Ohpama.com

#1452 - [On! &5
TR [onl &5 HAHL

Best Media Campaign - Experiential

=Bronze : Ohpama.com

§f5E - [Oh! &15)

FE ORMEEEESE
Best Media Campaign - Out-of-Home Print Media
=Bronze : Ohpama.com =Smart Parents (FiFTE)

$f4E : [on! &1% ] No.1 Parenting Print Media of the Year

FREORMEEEREEE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BIEE R A o

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The consolidated revenue of Sing Tao News Corporation
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”)
amounted to approximately HK$826 million as compared with
approximately HK$1,262 million last year. Loss attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to approximately HK$81
million as compared with approximately HK$23 million last
year.

Given the continued volatility and the unclear trend during
the Year, the Group’s treasury investment has been conducted
cautiously.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) proposed
a final dividend of HK2 cents per ordinary share. No interim
dividend was declared for the Year.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, Financial Resources, Gearing Ratio and
Charges on Group’s Assets

The Group maintained a strong financial position with a cash
position throughout the Year. During the Year, the Group
paid approximately HK$18 million for purchases of items
of property, plant and equipment. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group had a cash balance (calculated with reference
to the Group’s cash balances and total borrowings, if any)
of approximately HK$500 million (31 December 2019:
approximately HK$480 million).

The gearing ratio, defined as long-term borrowings
(including non-current lease liabilities) to equity, was 0.3%
as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: 0.8%). As at
31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not pledged any
asset.

Capital Structure, Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange
Rates

The Group adopts a prudent approach in managing its
treasury function and uses different hedging methods to
minimise the impact of foreign exchange fluctuations on its
financial performance.

n SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any
contingent liability or claim which the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) considered to be material.

Significant Investments, Material Acquisitions and
Disposals of Subsidiaries and Affiliated Companies

The Group did not have any significant investments, material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated
companies during the Year.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 1,258
employees.

The Group remunerates its employees based on individual
and business performance. Competitive salaries and benefits
are paid to attract and retain quality staff. Other employee
benefits include medical insurance, discretionary bonus, share
options and provident fund schemes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB Mo

BUSINESS REVIEW

The COVID-19 pandemic has inflicted severe negative impact
on local as well as global economic activities since early 2020,
plunging the Hong Kong economy into a deep recession. The
social distancing requirements, partial lockdowns and travel
restrictions entailed by the pandemic, having been in place
for most of 2020, brought many business and consumption
activities to a near standstill. Hong Kong’s real GDP contracted
by a record 6.1% in 2020, private consumption expenditure
posted the steepest ever annual decline of 10.1% and the
unemployment rate surged to a near 16-year high of 5.9%.
The local advertising market suffered a severe setback and,
according to admanGo, total advertising spending in Hong
Kong fell by an unprecedented 18% in 2020, with all media
segments reporting significant declines and only the mobile
segment showing growth. Amidst such an austere business
environment, the results of the Group reported a decrease
in consolidated revenue from approximately HK$1,261.8
million in 2019 to approximately HK$825.7 million in 2020,
and consolidated loss attributable to owners of the Company
increased from approximately HK$22.7 million in 2019 to
approximately HK$80.9 million in 2020. To mitigate the
impact of the advertising revenue decline, the Group’s media
operations exercised prudent control over costs of production,
while the lower newsprint prices during the Year, as well
as the support received from the Hong Kong government’s
“Employment Support Scheme” under the “Anti-epidemic
Fund”, also cushioned the blow.

Newspapers

According to admanGo, the total newspaper advertising
market suffered a 42% decline in 2020, the worst seen in
the records, as the economic disruptions caused by the
COVID-19 pandemic took a heavy toll on advertising activities.
After enduring the worst market conditions in February to
May, newspaper advertising saw a short-lived respite in June
and July, which was subsequently arrested by a resurgence
in COVID-19 infections in August and again in November.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

«

Overall, the newspaper industry was dragged into an “ice
age
subdued throughout the Year, consequently both the Group’s

»

by the COVID-19 crisis and remained more or less

free newspaper and paid newspaper businesses were gravely
affected.

Headline Daily continued to be Hong Kong’s number 1 free
newspaper with a strong foothold, staying as the industry
leader in terms of circulation, readership and advertising.
According to Ipsos Media Atlas 2020Q3 report (covering the
second and third quarters of 2020), Headline Daily’s average
daily readership of 1,012,000 was the highest amongst all
newspapers in Hong Kong. Reaching 80% of total Chinese free
newspaper readers, Headline Daily commanded a readership
that was 40% more than the net total of the other two Chinese
free newspapers combined, and was Hong Kong’s only
newspaper with a readership of over one million. Headline
Daily’s circulation also exceeded that of competitors by a large
margin, given its extensive distribution network in residential
estates as well as in MTR stations. Although Headline Daily’s
advertising revenue was adversely affected by the falloff
in the free newspaper market, Headline Daily increased
its share of free newspapers’ advertising spending in 2020
and continued to occupy the largest portion of the market
(according to admanGo). In response to the changed needs
of the market brought about by COVID-19, Headline Daily
stepped up its digital efforts to provide more added value
to readers and advertisers; for example, the features section
“Headlife” was enriched to offer diverse information on living
and trends delivered both offline and online. In addition, in
August Headline Daily launched the “Headline Facebook Live”
online platform, inviting celebrities and experts to discuss a
myriad of popular topics to engage viewers with diversified
information. During the Year, over 100 live programmes
were aired and attracted in excess of 4 million views. As the
free newspaper most-recognised by advertisers and readers
alike, Headline Daily was again ranked by The University of
Oxford’s Reuters Institute’s Digital News Report 2020 as the
top brand newspaper in Hong Kong. In addition, Headline
Finance paper recorded an increase of 37% in readership

B E R am S AT

ZH o BERETER200BRESCENEER
FAATKARE] RAFAFERS  BEHRRAX
SELERERREBEREERT °

(CEIRBBIEBERBERTAE —RBERE MM
ERTE EBEABNES T EHYELER IR
¥EIpsos Media Atlas TE T FF=FHNFHEHEE
(RE—T-_TFF_FRFE=ZF) (EEEBHRID
FHFHEEABELO0A BEBEMHRE
2 CEEAR EAEARGTIXAEBREEER
ABH80%  BEMMNFXRBEREMNES AR
SFEMBL4A%  TAREE—HEEBE—B8E
EANBORE - (BEBRBHR)NEITENARIMEES
FUHTF  EREMEREZEEEDNEHEM - BE
CGEERBRIMESK AR AR EREMBEHEMT
# o RIFadmanGoM BT - RZZE=ZF - (BEIKH
BIREEBERERESAINMBEBEEREMRE
WHEEBREEAMBMNE CGEEARBEZADE
200 BAMRMEFROMHEL MR HEBREELSE
TEE  AEAMELERFREETEZSEERE -
Bl an i R A 5E B T [Headlife | NE 28NS &4
BEBRTERZTILEFTBREN  thod - (GBIE
HH)R N\ A LG EFEEERLve) » BRI H
FARESEE  BGAEWEAMIGEE  AERIRE
ZIAL B > RAFER - [ Live] & H B LB
B—EEEREEE - W58 1#4,000,000 N RKF °
CERABIEARSESRFPFMEERANEE
WE - EERAERBE BT ERNEE
FEHE2020) MEERNBFRBINEEZHE LN -
R ERIEERE2TEAEABRS NI LR

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2020



Management Discussion and Analysis

BB Mo

(according to Ipsos Media Atlas 2020Q3 report, covering
the second and third quarters of 2020), leading significantly
among finance newspapers in Hong Kong.

The negative impact of COVID-19 pandemic also wreaked
havoc on advertising revenue in the paid newspaper market in
Hong Kong in 2020, and Sing Tao Daily was not immune to
the damage. However, as a newspaper dedicated to providing
objective reporting and comprehensive high-quality content,
Sing Tao Daily maintained its circulation revenue as well as
readership; at 253,000, Sing Tao Daily’s readership was the
highest among niche/middle-class newspapers in Hong Kong,
according to Ipsos Media Atlas 2020Q3 report (covering the
second and third quarters of 2020). As COVID-19 disrupted
everyday life in Hong Kong, Sing Tao Daily placed additional
focus on the changed needs of readers to better serve them
in adapting to the “new normal” and form ever-closer bonds
with them. Apart from providing factual news to help readers
stay abreast of happenings in the world, Sing Tao Daily also
offered pertinent content for the stay home anti-epidemic
fight, such as the free Sunday cookbooks, as well as free trial
promotions for the Sing Tao Daily electronic paper. The Sing
Tao Education website was enhanced to support students’
online learning, such as offering exercise sheets in different
academic subjects for free download, while the School Papers
(S-file and Sunny Campus) launched new electronic versions
for subscription. In addition, Smart Parents was again voted
as the number 1 parenting magazine in Hong Kong by
Marketing Magazine in 2020, for the eighth consecutive year;
it also launched a digital membership programme offering
redemption via the all-new Smart Parents mobile app.

The English-language newspaper market suffered like the
rest of the industry in 2020. Despite the harsh operating
environment, The Standard continued to offer high quality
content to serve readers both online and offline, and recorded
a mild increase in readership according to Ipsos Media Atlas
2020Q3 report (covering the second and third quarters of
2020). The Standard augmented its website and social media,
and achieved significant growth in traffic in 2020, namely,
89% increase in average monthly visitors, 62% increase in
average monthly pageviews and 39% increase in Facebook
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Management Discussion and Analysis

page likes. Although it recorded a drop in advertising revenue
in 2020 along with the market (according to admanGo), given
its relatively agile cost structure, The Standard was able to
minimise the impact of the revenue reduction and maintained
profitability through further savings on production costs and
other expenses.

Although the overseas operations of Sing Tao Daily got off to
a promising start of the year riding on the economic growth
in the US, starting in March the extensive lockdown in the
overseas markets required by COVID-19 dealt a severe blow
to economic activities and thereby the business and financial
performance of the overseas operations. In reaction to the
immense difficulty posed by the COVID-19 pandemic, the
overseas operations implemented cost saving measures as well
as introduced initiatives including a new mobile application
(Sing Tao US App) and the Sing Tao Daily US electronic
newspaper. Both were launched in March and aimed at
offering an alternative platform for readers to access news and
information while serving the new needs of advertisers under
the pandemic. Working closely with their local communities in
fighting the virus, the overseas operations organised donations
of anti-epidemic materials and provided special advertising
packages to help ride out the difficult times.

Magazines

According to admanGo, the magazine advertising market in
Hong Kong recorded a 37% decline in 2020. The Group’s
flagship magazine East Week was one of the more robust titles
within the magazine segment and its advertising drop was
less than market. To cope with the tough business conditions
and in response to the social distancing requirements under
the COVID-19 pandemic, East Week adopted new ways of
conducting its business activities, such as videoed presentation
of its award events. Its special book project “Guarding our
City” was well received in the market and generated additional
revenue. East Week’s live video series on a variety of topics
ranging from current affairs to entertainment were popular
among viewers, while its website saw a 306% increase in
average monthly visitors and a 72% increase in average
monthly pageviews in 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Recruitment Media

With Hong Kong’s unemployment rate hitting a record high,
total job classified advertising revenue saw a major across-
the-board dip in 2020, according to admanGo. Nevertheless,
the Group remained as the market leader in Hong Kong’s
recruitment print media industry, with JobMarket holding the
largest share of advertising revenue among print recruitment
titles. JobMarket was also the top recruitment publication in
terms of readership according to Ipsos Media Atlas report
2020Q3 (covering the second and third quarters of 2020).
In view of the social distancing measures necessitated by
COVID-19, JobMarket turned to organising virtual recruitment
and education fairs and strengthening its digital content and
advertising efforts to satisfy the market’'s demands. In 2020,
it achieved a 91% increase in average monthly visitors and
a 65% increase in average monthly pageviews, while its
Facebook page likes also went up by 27%.

New Media Business Development

With the measures for the anti-epidemic fight and new modes
of communication brought about by COVID-19 resulting in
increased use of online media, the Group’s digital platforms
saw general growth in traffic in 2020. As a mass-market news
site, Headline Daily’s website (hd.stheadline.com) achieved
increases of 27% and 56%, respectively, in average monthly
visitors and average monthly pageviews in 2020. Sing Tao
Daily’s website (std.stheadline.com) recorded increases of
34% in average monthly pageviews and 30% in its Facebook
page likes. The Sing Tao Education website focused on
serving the new habits and needs of students and schools
under the COVID-19 pandemic, and achieved increases of
90% in average monthly visitors and 68% in average monthly
pageviews in 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Ohpama.com, the one-stop education and parenting media
platform, has held up its business performance relatively well
and managed to improve its profitability through cost savings
and focusing on higher margin businesses. It continued to
expand its client base and increased its advertising revenue
from different industry categories. Its website was revamped
in May 2020, and average monthly visitors and monthly
pageviews recorded increases of 42% and 32%, respectively,
in 2020. Social media followers also increased, with total
Facebook fans (Ohpama.com and 24parent.com) of around
610,000 as of December 2020. In addition, the Ohpama mobile
app has accumulated downloads of around 49,000 as of
December 2020. As the number 1 parenting digital media in
Hong Kong, Ohpama.com reacted swiftly to the changes in the
market brought about by the COVID-19 pandemic. Apart from
shifting its client events to online formats and launching an
online fair platform to help clients promote their products and
services, it started a series of educational and practical live
video programmes to cater for “Learn at Home” students and
“Work from Home” parents. According to Facebook Organic
Figures February — April 2020, the video series recorded 9.5
million audience reach and 1.4 million total video views,
which ranked No.l1 among local parenting media platforms.
In 2020, Ohpama.com was awarded the “No.l Parenting
Digital Media of the Year” by Marketing Magazine’s Media
Report 2020, the third time in three consecutive years. It also
demonstrated media excellence in “The Spark Awards 2020”
by winning four honours, namely, “Best CX/UX Strategy”,
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“Best Audience Retention Strategy”, “Best Media Campaign —

Experiential” and “Best Media Campaign — Out-of-Home”.
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The Headline Daily “Jetso” app continued to develop as an
all-in-one digital platform to attract new-generation users and
bridge advertisers to their target customers. As at the end of
December 2020, cumulative downloads were around 520,000
while total registered members exceeded 100,000. Responding
to the changed consumer spending pattern brought about
by the online shopping trend and the COVID-19 pandemic,
“Jetso” app launched the marketing campaign “New Era of
Online Shopping @Jetso App” in May, aimed at promoting
local e-shops via print and online media channels. In addition,
it launched its Facebook live broadcast programme “Jetso
App LIVE Shop” in September to promote online commerce
through real-time content sharing and interactive participation.

The digital marketing company, Shimba Digital Limited,
stepped up its efforts on bringing together the Group’s cross-
media platforms to offer advertisers a one-stop advertising
network, as well as extending the network to third-party
digital platforms giving advertisers yet a greater digital reach.
For example, it has partnered with the MTR Corporation
Limited for selling advertising solutions on the latter’s mobile
application. In addition, Shimba Digital Limited acts as a sales
agency for NewsocHub, the digital platform jointly formed by
members of The Newspaper Society of Hong Kong to provide
a one-stop cross-media online advertising network.

PROSPECTS

The global economy took a big hit from the COVID-19
pandemic in 2020. Looking ahead, on the premise that the
pandemic would gradually abate with the implementation of
mass vaccination campaigns, economies around the world may
stage a rebound in 2021 but there would be a high degree
of uncertainty and unevenness. For Hong Kong, the breadth
and strength of a recovery would be subject to uncertainties
associated not only with the pandemic but also China-US
relations and geopolitical tensions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Although the pandemic has brought about a severe downturn
in the local economy and, with it, extraordinary challenges
to the business of the media industry, the demand for
information has instead increased and the role of reliable
media has been rendered all the more important. The Group
will adhere to its strategy of providing factual, objective and
high quality news and information, to help keep readers
updated regarding the evolving situation. In addition,
the social distancing and other anti-epidemic measures
necessitated by COVID-19 have stimulated the use of online
media and further accelerated the digital transformation of
the media industry. Accordingly, the Group will continue
to be flexible and responsive in building on its new media
capabilities to meet the different customer preferences during
and after the pandemic. The Group has increased its efforts
on developing its digital platforms which are considered to
be crucial for its long term business growth.

In the face of the harsh business environment, the Group has
taken a cautious and prudent approach in managing costs,
reallocating resources and maintaining financial resilience.
Management will continue to closely monitor the economic
and market situation under COVID-19 and exercise stringent
cost control where appropriate. While remaining focused
on our core strengths in providing high-quality content and
cost-effective advertising platforms to serve the needs of our
readers and advertisers, we shall address the challenges with
confidence and be prepared to capture the opportunities in
the post-pandemic recovery and rebound.
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Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles, GBM (71) has been the
Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company and
a director of various subsidiaries of the Company since
2000. Mr. Ho was awarded the “Grand Bauhinia Medal”
by The Government of the HKSAR in 2014. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Shun Tak Holdings
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Mr. Ho contributes much to public affairs. He is a member
of the Standing Committee of the National Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. In
addition, Mr. Ho is an honorary general committee member
of The Chinese Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong, an
economic consultant of Shandong Provincial Government of
the People’s Republic of China, an honorary trustee of Peking
University, and a trustee of University of International Business
and Economics in China. He is the father of Mr. Ho Kent
Ching Tak, an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Siu Sai Wo (58) has been an Executive Director and
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company and a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company since 2013. Mr. Siu has
joined the Group for more than 21 years and was the Chief
Executive Officer and the Chief Editor of Sing Tao Daily and
Headline Daily prior to his appointment as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. He joined the Group as the Executive
Chief Editor of Sing Tao Daily in 1999. Prior to joining the
Group, he held various senior positions at a number of leading
Chinese newspaper companies in Hong Kong. He has worked
in the print media industry over 35 years. Mr. Siu is the vice
chairman of The Newspaper Society of Hong Kong and the
vice chairman of The Chinese Language Press Institute. He
is active in joining social services, currently a member of
the Steering Committee on Promotion of Volunteer Service
under the Social Welfare Department of The Government
of the HKSAR. He obtained a Bachelor of Journalism and
Communication Degree from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 1985.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak (40) has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 2014. He is responsible for development
of digital media and related businesses for the Group. Mr. Ho
was a Non-executive Director of the Company from 2010 to
2014; and worked for Sing Tao Newspaper in San Francisco.
He has years of experience in media business development,
technology investments and wealth management. Mr. Ho
is the founder and chief executive officer of s28 Capital,
a US$170 million technology venture capital fund based in
Silicon Valley. Previously, he worked for Goldman Sachs and
was the founding partner of Harbor Pacific Capital. Mr. Ho
serves on the board of directors of Hong Kong Science and
Technology Parks Corporation (HKSTP), and the Innovation
and Technology Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council (HKTDC), and is also an honorary
trustee at Peking University. He has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of Grace Wine Holdings
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange, since June 2018. Mr. Ho has also been named a
2018 Young Global Leader by the World Economic Forum
(WEF). Mr. Ho holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in
Economics from Duke University and a Master of Business
Administration Degree from Stanford Graduate School of
Business. He is the son of Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles, the
Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Jia Hongping (57) has been an Executive Director of the
Company since 2000. He is currently a Chief Representative
of the Beijing office of the Group and a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Jia brings with him a wealth
of experience in management, investment and government
relations to the Group. Prior to joining the Group, he worked
in various capacities in the government departments under
the China State Council. In 1998, Mr. Jia joined the Lear
Corporation China Limited as executive director and chief
representative of its Beijing office. He holds a Bachelor’s
Degree from the Beijing Institute of Technology University.
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Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis (62) has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 2005. He is currently the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company and a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company. He is primarily responsible for
overseeing the finance and overall operations of the Group.
Mr. Lau is a Chartered Accountant and holds a Bachelor’s
Degree in Commerce and Administration from Victoria
University of Wellington in New Zealand. He is a member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand, a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has extensive
experience in corporate management, accounting and finance.
Mr. Lau was an independent non-executive director of
AviChina Industry & Technology Company Limited, a company
whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange, for the period
from August 2006 to June 2018.

Mr. Lo Wing Hung (58) has been an Executive Director
of the Company since 2002. From 2005 to 2013, Mr. Lo was
the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. He joined the
Group as Chief Editor of Sing Tao Daily in 1999. He was
the Chief Executive Officer of the newspaper group of the
Company prior to his appointment as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company. Mr. Lo has extensive experience in
the media industry. Prior to joining the Group, he worked for
a number of major newspaper and television companies in
Hong Kong. He is a spokesman of The Newspaper Society of
Hong Kong. Mr. Lo graduated from the School of Journalism
and Communication at The Chinese University of Hong Kong
and holds a Master’s Degree in Government and Public
Administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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Directors and Senior Management

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Judy Chan (43) has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since 2013. Ms. Chan is the
chairlady, chief executive officer and an executive director
of Grace Wine Holdings Limited (“GWH”), a company whose
shares are listed on the Stock Exchange since 27 June 2018.
She is also a director of Shanxi Grace Vineyard Company
Limited (“GV”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of GWH,
responsible for the business development and operations for
the winery and wine business. Under her leadership, GV is
considered as one of the best wine producers from China.
Ms. Chan is also a director of Origin Holdings (HK) Limited,
responsible for the management and financial operations of
its businesses of power generation, waste-water treatment
plant, property development and investments in Indonesia.
She was an independent and non-executive director and a
member of the remuneration committee of Memories Group
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on Singapore
Exchange Limited, for the period from December 2017 to
November 2018. Ms. Chan has extensive experience in
marketing, branding and trading in the Asia Pacific Region.
Prior to joining GV since 2002, she had worked in the human
resources department of Goldman Sachs in Hong Kong.
She currently serves as a member of the Shanxi Provincial
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree from
The University of Michigan. She was awarded the Ernst &
Young — Emerging Entrepreneur of the Year in 2010 and
Entrepreneur of the Year 2010 for China Hong Kong/Macau
Region, and the Asian Wine Personality of the Year 2012 by
the drinks business and the Institute of Masters of Wine.
Ms. Chan was included in Fortune’s “Asia’s 25 hottest people
in business” rankings in 2012 and was ranked among the
50 most influential persons in the global wine industry by
Decanter Magazine in 2013. Ms. Chan was also honoured with
the “Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs Award 2017”7 from
Hong Kong Women Professionals & Entrepreneurs Association.
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Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina, JP (58) has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
2001. She runs key offices at various public listed and private
enterprises, including group executive chairman and managing
director of Shun Tak Holdings Limited, vice chairman, chief
executive officer and director of the board of Shun Tak -
China Travel Shipping Investments Limited and chairman of
its executive committee, director of Sociedade de Turismo
e Diversdes de Macau, S.A., chairman of Macau Tower
Convention & Entertainment Centre, director of Air Macau
Company Limited, vice-chairman of the board of directors of
Macau International Airport Co. Ltd., chairman of the board of
directors of Estoril-Sol, SGPS, SA as well as co-chairperson and
executive director of MGM China Holdings Limited. Besides
gearing her efforts in business endeavors, Ms. Ho actively
serves on a host of economic, social and public services.
In mainland China, she is a standing committee member
of Beijing Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference, an executive president of
the Chamber of Tourism and a vice president of the Women’s
Chamber of Commerce under All-China Federation of Industry
& Commerce. In Hong Kong, she is the chairperson of Hong
Kong Federation of Women, and is extensively involved
in supporting educational programs through her roles as
founding honorary advisor and a member of the board of
directors of The University of Hong Kong Foundation for
Educational Development and Research. Internationally, she
is an executive member of the World Travel and Tourism
Council, and was appointed as Tourism Ambassador of The
United Nation World Tourism Organisation in 2018.

Ms. Ho holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Marketing and
International Business Management from the Santa Clara
University in the United States. She was appointed as Justices
of the Peace by the Government of the HKSAR in 2015 and
bestowed the honor of “Silver Bauhinia Star” in 2020.

Mr. King Richard Yun Zing (53) has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2004. Mr.
King is a vice chairman, global banking at UBS AG. He
is principally responsible for providing corporate finance
services to clients in China and Hong Kong. Mr. King has
over 20 years of investment banking experience in advising
corporations, governments and entrepreneurs in financing
strategies. Previously, he was a senior member of JP Morgan’s
investment banking team in Asia, and was a member of the
board of directors of J.P. Morgan Securities (Asia Pacific)
Limited. Prior to joining JP Morgan, he held senior positions
at various renowned institutions including Credit Lyonnais
Securities Asia Limited and CITIC Pacific Limited, a Hong
Kong listed conglomerate. Mr. King holds a Bachelor’s Degree
in Economics from Columbia University in New York.
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Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Lee Cho Jat, GBS, SBS (88) has been an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2005. Mr.
Lee was awarded the “Silver Bauhinia Star” and the “Gold
Bauhinia Star” by The Government of the HKSAR in 1998
and 2013 respectively. He is currently director and founder
member of Hong Kong News-Expo Limited, president of The
Newspaper Society of Hong Kong, honorary president of
The Chinese Language Press Institute, permanent honorary
chairman of the Hong Kong Publishing Federation and
honorary chairman of Sino United Publishing (Holdings)
Limited, The Commercial Press (Hong Kong) Limited and
Hong Kong Commercial Newspapers Company Limited.
He is also the vice chairman of the board of governors,
Chu Hai College. Mr. Lee started his career in newspaper
publishing industry after graduated from secondary school
in 1952 and has over 50 years of experience in the media
industry devoting to promote Chinese culture. He was
awarded Outstanding Achievement Award of Hong Kong
Print Awards in 1997. Mr. Lee successfully changed traditional
state-owned companies such as The Commercial Press (Hong
Kong) Limited, Joint Publishing (Hong Kong) Company
Limited, Chung Hwa Book Company (Hong Kong) Limited
and C & C Joint Printing Company (H.K.) Limited, into fast-
developing modernised international enterprises, which,
under his leadership, become paragons of the industry. Mr.
Lee was appointed a committee member of The Preliminary
Working Committee for The Preparatory Committee for the
HKSAR of The Standing Committee of The National People’s
Congress in 1994 and was further appointed as a member of
The Preparatory Committee for the HKSAR of The National
People’s Congress, participated in the preparation of the
establishment of The Government of the HKSAR. He was
appointed as a member of the Antiquities Advisory Board
of the HKSAR in 1999. Mr. Lee was appointed a member of
8th, 9th and 10th National Committee of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. In 2009, Mr. Lee has been
elected the “Hundred of the Greats of Publishing in the
60 years of New China” which is the greatest honor in the
publishing industry in China. He was granted an Honorary
Doctorate of Arts from Chu Hai College in July 2011.
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SEENEREEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Kwong King Lim (65) is the Chief Executive Officer
of the Group’s China operations (Publications), the Chief
Executive Officer of Sing Tao Daily overseas region, the
Editor-in-Chief of Sing Tao Daily overseas, and a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Kwong graduated
from the Department of Chinese Language and Literature of
Jinan University. He joined the Group in 2003. Prior to joining
the Group, he was the vice chairman of The Newspaper
Society of Hong Kong and held senior positions in various
media companies. He has extensive experience in editorial,
operations and administration.

Mr. Lai Ting Yiu (69) has been the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Editor of Sing Tao Daily and Headline Daily
since 2013, responsible for the operation and business of these
two newspapers, and also a director of various subsidiaries
of the Company. For the period from 2004 to 2013, Mr. Lai
was an Executive Director of the Company. Prior to his re-
designation as the Chief Executive Officer of Sing Tao Daily
and Headline Daily, he was the Chief Executive Officer of
the magazine group responsible for overseeing the publication
of magazines of the Group. He joined the Group in 1999 as
the Vice Editor-in-Chief and afterwards, was promoted to the
Executive Chief Editor of Sing Tao Daily. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Lai held key positions in various renowned media
companies.

Mr. Yang Yiu Chong, Ronald Jeffrey (54) is a Director
(Printing Operations) of the Group and a director of various
subsidiaries of the Company, responsible for developing the
Group’s printing operations and other investments. For the
period from 2001 to 2013, Mr. Yang was an Executive Director
of the Company. He gained wealth of experience in finance
and investment arena, and had participated in numerous
corporate finance activities for several listed companies in
Hong Kong as well as worked at a leading international bank.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yang held senior positions in
Leefung Asco Printers Holdings Limited, responsible for the
group’s financial affairs and business development.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Directors believe that good corporate governance
practices serve as an effective risk management for the
Company and hence, the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) will benefit from the high standard of
corporate governance.

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and complied with the CG
Code throughout the review period with deviations from
certain code provisions of the CG Code specified and
explained below.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code for
dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries to all Directors who
have confirmed that, during the Year, they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code.

THE BOARD

As at 31 December 2020, the Board consists of ten directors
including six executive directors (the “ED(s)”) and four
independent non-executive directors (the “INED(s)”). Names
and biographical details of the Directors, which include
relationship(s) between the Directors, are set out under the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” on pages
18 to 24.

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company. The Board reviews and approves the objectives,
strategies, direction and policies of the Group, the annual
budget and the management structure of the Company. The
Board also reviews the Group’s performance in light of the
Group’s objectives, business plans and budgets.

The Board has delegated the responsibility of the day-to-day
operations of the Group to the management of the Company.

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles and
the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEO”) of the Group is Mr. Siu
Sai Wo. The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separate,
and their respective roles and responsibilities were clearly
established and set out in writing. The Chairman is primarily
responsible for the management and effective performance of
the Board. The CEO is primarily responsible for the day-to-
day management of the business of the Group.
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TEERMSE

All INEDs were appointed for a fixed term ending on
31 December 2022 with renewal option subject to retirement
and re-election by rotation under the Bye-laws of the
Company (the “Bye-laws”).

In compliance with the code provision A.6.5, all Directors
should participate in continuous professional development
(the “CPD”) to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company has adopted its own policy on Directors’
CPD. During the Year, the Company encouraged all Directors
to attend or give speeches at training courses, seminars or
conferences which were relevant to their respective duties
and responsibilities at the Company’s expenses, and provided
relevant materials and updates for their viewing. According
to the records provided by the Directors, the Directors
participated in the following CPD programmes during the

FTEBYIERTES2EHY AR EMEE I
RZZFEZZF+ZA=+—8B&I - EHEWNE
AR EBEA  HARBARR Z AR MA([RF 4
AlDN®mESRERER-

RETTANERXAGCS  MTEEFER2EFBERRHE
ROFBFEXZHRDABRIL BHE B NEEE -
ARBICHEFNFEEXERATRATHERK
R-MAFER ARAEBAEESTHFEEALR
BREEHBNEIRE AR ENEH - INK
FRIIRE A EREGRERES - BHALR
A AT AR A B IR A E SR T AE BE A9 A A
FHEMARMBMAERMN REEFREREMEZE
LS RERAFERNZETUATRHEFTEE
RIAR :

Year:
Type of CPD programmes
FREXZREBRERR
Attending Viewing
training courses, online video,
seminars or materials or
conferences updates
HE 85
EAIRE mEwE -
Directors = MAEHER MBHEHER
Executive Directors: HITEE
Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles (Chairman) B (F ) v
Siu Sai Wo (CEO) MM (7T B A E) v
Ho Kent Ching Tak Al EfE 4
Jia Hongping B4 v
Lau Chung Man, Louis 2P X v
Lo Wing Hung & oK 4
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIIHHTESE
Judy Chan PR IS 4
Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina A FB 38 v
King Richard Yun Zing ® 70K v
Lee Cho Jat =y v

The Board met regularly and held four regular meetings
throughout the Year. The regular Board meetings were held
to consider and approve, among other things, the final results
for the year ended 31 December 2019, the interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2020 and annual budget of the
Group. The Board was consulted for every crucial decision
and the written resolutions were also circulated to all Directors
to obtain the Board’s consents.
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Corporate Governance Report

According to the code provisions A.6.7 and E.1.2, the
Chairman of the Board and all INEDs shall attend the
Company’s annual general meeting (the “AGM”). The Chairman
of the Board and an INED, Mr. Lee Cho Jat, were unable
to attend the AGM held in 2020 due to prior or unexpected
business engagements.

Attendance record of Directors in 2020 is set out below:

CEERHE

B /O

RIETANEXAGCTNEL2  EES X FENITABL
FRTEFALEARG 2RBRBFRE ((REE
FRE) ZBEFSXTREMBURTESZTHESL
ERRRRE LA RETERT 2 A E M ARE
HER_E_TFRO2BRRAFAG -

TE_THEREENLFELEOT

Corporate
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Governance
Board Committee Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee AGM
txER RREF
Exg ENZES yMEEEe REZEE ZEg -
Number of meetings ZECTEROM
held in 2020 LEYS 4 2 1 2 1 1
Directors Ex
Executive Directors: HiTEZ:
Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles (Chairman) WRBR(EE) 4/4 0/1
Siu Sai Wo (CEO) Bt (THEH) 4/4 1/1 22 1/1
Ho Kent Ching Tak BN 4/4 1/1
Jia Hongping E4F 2/4 0/1
Lau Chung Man, Louis 2Ifhx 4/4 11 1/1
Lo Wing Hung & K I 4/4 0/1
Independent Non-executive Directors: B FEH{TEE
Judy Chan B 3/4 1/1
Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina fal &2 3E 4/4 22 11 1/2 1/1
King Richard Yun Zing EWi 3/4 2/2 0/1 1/2 1/1
Lee Cho Jat FHE 4/4 2/2 2/2 0/1
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FHEES

The Board has established a remuneration committee and
its terms of reference are available on both websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration
Committee comprised three members and a majority of the
members are INEDs. The Committee is chaired by Ms. Ho
Chiu King, Pansy Catilina, with Mr. King Richard Yun Zing
and Mr. Siu Sai Wo as members.

The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’ and
senior management’s (if any) remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for

developing remuneration policy;

®

EXECHUFMEZE S EREDESRNALT
KB Z v - HNEZBem =L BAMNK - K
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TEERRSE

(i)  to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives; and

(iiD to determine, with delegated responsibilities, the
remuneration packages of individual Directors and
senior management.

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during
the Year:

. approved the discretionary bonus for the EDs and senior
management based on their performances.

The remuneration of each of the Directors are set out in this
annual report on pages 159 to 161.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a nomination committee and its
terms of reference are available on both websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange. The Nomination Committee
comprised four members and a majority of the members are
INEDs. The Committee is chaired by Mr. Lee Cho Jat, with
Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina, Mr. King Richard Yun Zing
and Mr. Siu Sai Wo as members.

The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

(1 to review the structure, size, composition and diversity
(including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service) of the Board and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(i)  to identify individuals suitably qualified to become
Board members and select or make recommendations
to the Board,

(i) to assess the independence of INEDs; and

(iv) to review the Nomination Policy (as defined below)
and the Board Diversity Policy (the “BDP”) and make
recommendations on any proposed revisions to the
Board, and monitor its implementation so as to ensure
its effectiveness.
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The Company’s nomination policy is constituted by the
provisions set out in paragraphs () and (i1 above, as the
key nomination criteria and principles of the Company
for the nomination of Directors (the “Nomination Policy”).
The nomination procedures for the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors are summarised as below:

(1  For appointment of Directors, the Committee shall
identify and upon receipt an appointment proposal,
evaluate such individual(s), having due regard to
the Nomination Policy and BDP, and assess the
independence of the proposed INED(s) as appropriate,
then make recommendation(s) to the Board. The Board
may confirm the appointment of such individual(s) as
Director(s) or recommend such individual(s) to stand for
election at a general meeting. Individual(s) appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the Board shall be subject to re-election by the
Shareholders at the next general meeting after initial
appointment in accordance with the Bye-laws.

(i)  For re-appointment of Directors, the Committee
shall review the overall contribution and service to
the Company of each retiring Director, having due
regard to the Nomination Policy and BDP, and assess
the independence of each retiring INED, then make
recommendation(s) to the Board. The Board may
recommend such retiring Director to stand for re-
election at the AGM in accordance with the Bye-laws.

The Board has adopted its own BDP. The BDP aims to set out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. Selection of
candidates on the Board will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board. All Board appointments will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective selection criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity. The Committee will monitor the implementation
of the BDP and from time to time review it, as appropriate,
to ensure its effectiveness.

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during
the Year:

. reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board, the Nomination Policy and the BDP;
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TEERRSE

. assessed the independence of the INEDs, including
those served more than 9 years and subject to re-
election at the AGM; and

. recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
Directors for Shareholders’ approval at the AGM.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Board has established a corporate governance committee
which comprises two members. The Committee is chaired by
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis, with the Company Secretary, Ms.
Ip Ka Yee as a member.

The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

(1  to develop, review, implement and monitor the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board so
as to comply with the legal and regulatory requirements;

(i) to review and monitor the training and CPD of
Directors;

(iiD to review the contribution required from a Director to
perform his/her responsibilities to the Company;

(iv) to develop, review, implement and monitor the code of
conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
Directors and employees; and

(v)  to review the Company’s annual Corporate Governance
Report.

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during
the Year:

. reviewed the annual Corporate Governance Report
contained in the Company’s 2019 annual report;

. prepared materials and updates relevant to the
Company’s business for Directors’ viewing in compliance
with the code provision A.6.5 on Directors’ CPD; and

. noted the amendments to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide contained in Appendix
27 of the Listing Rules including the newly mandatory
disclosure requirements and upgrading the disclosure
obligation of the key performance indicators to be
applied for financial year commencing on or after 1 July
2020.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established an audit committee and its terms
of reference are available on both websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee comprised
three members and all of them are INEDs. The Committee
is chaired by Mr. King Richard Yun Zing, with Ms. Ho Chiu
King, Pansy Catilina and Mr. Lee Cho Jat as members.

The Committee’s principal roles and functions are:

(1) to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor and to approve the remuneration
and terms of engagement of the external auditor and
assessing their independence and performance;

(i) to review the Group’s financial information and
compliance; and

(ii) to review the Group’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems and their
effectiveness.

Summary of the work performed by the Committee during
the Year:

. reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2019;

. reviewed the interim report for the six months ended
30 June 2020; and

. reviewed the internal audit reports including the review
and evaluation of risk management and internal control
systems.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration payable to the Group’s
external auditor, Messrs. Ernst & Young, is set out below:
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ZEeWEZA6G MEE:
i BEE ERZELERIIEXBMRNES

SRLERS AN BB S KA
fBR A B R (B 1 R R 3R

(i) BHAKEZHMBERRARBRL K

i) BEAEEZHEERRS  BBRERRA
WERRG U RERK -

RAFEANZEENTIEHRE:
- BHBE-_T-NFH-A=T-RLFEZ
REMB®mEK:

. EMARE S -_ZTFENA=1THIENEARZF
HEERE R

- EHABELERES ERURARERENMAE
EERASER ZRE RFZ -
B BT B &=

RAFEER - BN TAKE 2 IMNSZ B2 ok & &5t
A=A B & 5 & an T

Fee payable

Services rendered RMHZR%E ERE R
HK$’000

FEIT

Audit services EiT IR 4,477
Non-audit services* B RIS 55
Total At 4,532

* Including the fees for procedures on continuing connected
transactions of the Group and on preliminary announcement
of results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

* BERERAEASESERERGRASEERE"
E_ZFE+ A=+ -BULFEZNIEEREL
BF e
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TEERMSE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
in presenting balanced and clear interim and annual financial
statements, other financial statements and announcements of
inside information disclosures. The reporting responsibilities
of the external auditor are set out in this annual report on
pages 75 to 85.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated to management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems. Our risk management approach
combines a top down strategic review with a complementary
bottom up operational process to identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks.

The Board through its Audit Committee oversees and reviews
regularly the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems, practices and compliance procedures.

The Internal Audit Department independently reviews
major operating, financial and compliance control and risk
management system of the Group on an on-going basis and
covered all major operations of the Group on a rotational
basis. The Internal Audit Department reports twice each
year to the Audit Committee and the Directors on significant
findings on risk management and internal control systems.

During the Year, the Board has conducted an annual review
of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group and their effectiveness and considers the systems are
adequate and effective.

The Company has adopted its policy and procedures for
disclosure of inside information including but not limited to
restricting access to inside information to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis so as to ensure the
disclosure requirement of inside information in compliance
with the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Ip Ka Yee has been the Company Secretary of the
Company since 2012. She is a full-time employee of the
Group, has day-to-day knowledge of the Company and has
complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
The Company sets out the Shareholders’ rights on:

(@ How Shareholders can convene a special general
meeting (the “SGM”)

Pursuant to the bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws and section
74 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended)
(the “Act”), Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company with voting right
can submit a written requisition to convene a SGM
for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition.

The written requisition must:
(1 state the purposes of such SGM;

(i) be signed by the requisitionists (which may consist
of several documents in like form each signed by
one or more requisitionists); and

(i)  be deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of the
Board or the Company Secretary.

Such SGM shall be held within 2 months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such SGM,
the requisitionists, or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them,
may themselves convene a SGM.
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AN X SO FHR A
TERBEIRWME
(b)  How to put forward proposals at Shareholders’ meetings

©

Pursuant to sections 79 and 80 of the Act, Shareholders
can submit a written requisition to move a resolution
at a general meeting (the “GM”) if they:

(1  represent not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all Shareholders having at the date
of the requisition a right to vote at the GM; or

(i)  are not less than 100 Shareholders.
The written requisition must:

(1)  state the resolution, accompanied by a statement
of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in the proposed resolution or
the business to be dealt with at the GM;

(2 be signed by the requisitionists (which may
be contained in one document or in several
documents in like form);

(3)  be deposited at the registered office of the
Company at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda for the attention of
the Company Secretary not less than 6 weeks
before such GM in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less
than 1 week before such GM in the case of any
other requisition, however, if after a copy of the
requisition requiring notice of a resolution has
been deposited at the registered office of the
Company, a GM is called for a date 6 weeks or
less after the copy has been deposited, the copy
though not deposited within the time required as
referred to in the above shall be deemed to have
been properly deposited for the purposes thereof;
and

(4)  be accompanied by a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in
giving effect thereto.

How Shareholders can propose a person for election as
a Director

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director
at a GM, please refer to the procedures available on
both websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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(d) How enquiries be put forward to the Board

The Company has already adopted an effective and
efficient way of receiving enquiries from its Shareholders
through the corporate e-mail as well as its principal
office in Hong Kong and therefore, will continue these
channels of communication.

Shareholders may send their enquiries to the Board
by addressing them to the Company Secretary (whose
contact details are set out below). The Company
Secretary will properly forward the enquiries to the
Board for appropriate action:

The Company Secretary

Sing Tao News Corporation Limited

Sing Tao News Corporation Building, 7 Chun Cheong Street
Tseung Kwan O Industrial Estate, Tseung Kwan O
New Territories, Hong Kong

Email: investor@singtaonewscorp.com

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy on
28 March 2019 (the “Dividend Policy”) which is available
on the website of the Company. The Dividend Policy aims
to provide relatively steady dividend payout ratio and
sustainable returns to Shareholders, linked to the Group’s
earnings performance, financial position, cash flows position,
expenditure plans and investments requirements as well as
the business environment and strategies, and future prospects.

The Board may determine and pay to the Shareholders interim
dividends as it considers appropriate, and may recommend the
payment of final dividends to the Shareholders for approval
at the GM, subject to any restrictions under the Bye-laws and
all applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Even if the Board decides to recommend and pay dividends,
the form, frequency and amount will depend upon the
operations and earnings, capital requirements and surplus,
general financial conditions, contractual restrictions, other
internal or external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and position of the
Company, and other factors that the Board deems appropriate.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There is no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year. The memorandum of association
and the Bye-laws are available on both websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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As a major media organisation in Hong Kong, the Group
attaches great importance to corporate social responsibility,
complies with relevant laws and regulations, and is committed
to ensuring that it conducts its business in a manner that takes
into account the impact on our people, the communities we
serve and the environment around us. Through implementing
practical policies and responsible business practices, we
establish ourselves as a responsible and reliable corporate
citizen for sustainable business growth and development while
safeguarding stakeholders’ interests and creating long-term
value for our shareholders.

SCOPE OF THE REPORT

This report focuses on the Group’s core activities in Hong
Kong, namely newspaper and magazine publishing and related
digital media operations (which represents the majority of
the Group’s revenue and cash flow) and covers information
on how we address the most significant environmental and
social impact arising from our business operations here.
The reporting framework adopted is in accordance with
the disclosure requirements set forth in the Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide”)
contained in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The reporting period is from 1 January 2020 to 31 December
2020. In compliance with the ESG Guide, the Board has
overall responsibility for the Group’s Environmental, Social
and Governance strategy and reporting, including evaluating
and determining the Group’s Environmental, Social and
Governance-related risks and ensuring that appropriate
and effective Environmental, Social and Governance risk
management and internal control systems are in place.

ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

In preparing this report, we identify Environmental, Social
and Governance subject areas and aspects that are of
particular importance and relevance by engaging with
stakeholders who have an interest in or are affected by our
operations. We define our key stakeholders as our staff,
customers, suppliers, shareholders, investors, and business
partners. Our engagement activities include questionnaires
and surveys conducted with employees, readers, suppliers and
shareholders, to collect views from both internal and external
stakeholders so as to better understand their expectations
and identify opportunities and challenges in our operations.
The results of the stakeholder engagement are taken into
consideration when we assess and prioritise our issues. Health
and safety, anti-corruption and product responsibility were
ranked as the more important aspects by our stakeholders,
while environment-related issues and community investment
were ranked as relatively less relevant to the Group’s business
operations.
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Al.

ENVIRONMENTAL
Emissions

Consistent with our approach to long-term sustainable
business development, the Group takes active steps to
adopt good environmental practices and comply with
relevant laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection. Our businesses continually seek ways
to improve energy efficiency, prevent pollution and
reduce, reuse and recycle wastes. It is the Group’s
policy to ensure that our business activities are carried
out in a manner that causes minimum adverse impact
on the environment, to strive to continually improve
our environmental performance and to enhance
environmental protection awareness among our staff
especially those involved in our printing processes.

The Group’s production operations do not result in
significant air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land or generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste. The Group is committed to
reducing these emissions, discharges or waste insofar
as they exist. The Group’s operations, including
its newspaper printing operations, comply with all
applicable environmental and related legislations. The
Group outsources the printing of magazines to third-
party printers and has no data on emissions from such
activities. The Group is not aware of any confirmed
non-compliance incidents in relation to emissions,
discharges into water and land or generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste in 2020 that had a
significant impact.

KPI Al.1

The Group’s operations do not result in significant air
emissions. Emissions of nitrogen oxides (NO,), sulphur
oxides (SO,) and respiratory suspended particles (RSP,
also known as Particulate Matter (“PM”)) from the use

Al.
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of vehicles owned by the Group are not significant. For —_A=+—BIEFE  #FH Z]KE B £ & BT
the year ended 31 December 2020, the amount of NO, MEESMPELANTSLY St hE

emissions, SO, emissions and PM emissions generated by
the use of vehicles owned by the Group in Hong Kong
were 40.74 kg, 0.09 kg and 3.27 kg, respectively. The
decrease in emissions in 2020 was due to a reduction
in the number of vehicles used by the Group.

h%mm&g“ﬁﬁﬂoﬁ T~ 0.692 T K3.27
N - ZFEZTFHMHERER L BEHARAK
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2020 2019 (Restated)
—NEF

ZBEF (?% E751)
NO, emissions (kg) BaeflbwemnE (AT 40.74 41.41
SO, emissions (kg) matt e E (2 ) 0.69 0.71
PM emissions (kg) BOZTER PN E (R T) 3.27 3.31
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RIE - g MhERRE

Note: The emissions data above is calculated based on
the formulae and emission factors set out in “How
to prepare an ESG Report, Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” contained in
the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. The data only includes the use of vehicles
owned by the Group.

KPI Al.2

The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions are primarily
“energy indirect” emissions resulting from the generation
of purchased electricity for consumption by the Group’s
printing plant and office (Scope 2), as reported on
below. Greenhouse gas emissions resulting from
combustion of fuels by vehicles owned by the Group
(Scope 1) are also reported on below. Other greenhouse
gas emissions such as from business air travel by
employees (Scope 3) are not material and therefore are
not reported on.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, greenhouse
gas emissions from the use of vehicles owned by the
Group in Hong Kong amounted to 127,468 kg of total
CO, equivalent emissions (including CO,, CH; and N,O).
Indirect greenhouse gas emissions from purchased
electricity in Hong Kong amounted to 4,769,823 kg
of total CO, equivalent emissions. The decrease in
Scope 1 emissions in 2020 was due to the reason
mentioned under KPI Al.1 above, and the decrease in
Scope 2 emissions was due to a reduction in electricity
consumption by the Group printing’s plant as a result
of lower production volume and machine usage.
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2020 2019 (Restated)

—E-NF
CO, equivalent emissions —EitmEEHEN —EZEHE (&5
Scope 1 (kg) #HE— (R 127,468 130,040
Scope 2 (kg) #HE_(QT) 4,769,823 5,805,563
Scope 3 (kg) #E=(QT) N/A T iE N/A 3

Note: The emissions data above is calculated based on
the formulae and emission factors set out in “How
to prepare an ESG Report, Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” contained in
the website of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. For electricity purchased from CLP Power
Hong Kong Limited, the emission factor is based on
the 2019 sustainability report of CLP Power Hong
Kong Limited.
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KPI Al.3

The hazardous waste generated by the Group’s
newspaper printing operations in Hong Kong include
spent developer, spent ink and scrap zinc plates. For
the year ended 31 December 2020, a total amount of
approximately 67.8 tonnes of hazardous waste were
generated, including 159 tonnes of spent developer,
2.4 tonnes of spent ink and 49.5 tonnes of scrap zinc
plates. The increase in spent developer was due to the
full year impact of an adjustment in the mix of plates
used (which resulted in savings in the total quantity
of plates consumed as well as cost savings) while the
decrease in spent ink and scrap zinc plates was due to
lower production volume.
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2020 2019
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Spent developer (tonnes) FRANR 15.9 149

Spent ink (tonnes) BEm 2 (AHE) 2.4 3.2

Scrap zinc plates (tonnes) {5 P8 &9 ED Rl 8 i (22 8 ) 495 74.0
KPI Al.4 BREENEEAL4

The non-hazardous waste generated by the Group,
including domestic waste, office waste and renovation
waste, was not material in 2020.

KPI Al15

The Group adopts appropriate measures to mitigate
emissions. In particular, the Group’s printing plant
adopts appropriate environmentally-friendly measures
and assign appropriate responsible staff in charge of
reducing emissions. Electricity consumption at our
printing plant and office account for the majority of
indirect greenhouse gas emissions in our operations
and we have implemented initiatives to increase energy
efficiency so as to control or reduce emissions. These
include the use of LED spotlights and T5 fluorescent
tubes to replace traditional lamps at the production
premises, using timers and automatic shut-off for
outdoor lighting systems, and regular cleaning of the
air-conditioning units and chiller plants to maximise
their efficiency and reduce energy loss. More of the
Group’s general energy use efficiency initiatives are
described under KPI A2.3 below. In addition, the waste
paper, used printing plates and waste ink generated
by our printing operations are collected by reputable
recycling companies, as described in more detail under
KPI A1.6 below, to reduce emissions from these sources.
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A2.

KPI Al1.6

Chemical wastes including spent

generated during the Group’s printing processes and

developer are

our printing plant is registered as a chemical waste
producer with the Environmental Protection Department.
Spent developer and other chemical wastes are collected
by licensed chemical waste collectors in compliance
with the Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General)
Regulation (Cap. 354C of the Laws of Hong Kong). To
reduce waste from source, our printing plant adopts
non-alcohol printing method to reduce the use of
chemicals.

Waste paper and used printing plates generated by our
printing operations are collected by a reputable recycling
company who specialises in waste management and
waste recycling. The recycling company, under an
annual contract with the Group, collects waste paper
from our printing plant for unloading to the allocated
depots. After sorting and packing, the baled waste
materials are shipped overseas or to mainland China
for further recycling. Similarly, used printing plates are
collected by the recycling company, sorted, packed,
and shipped to mainland China for further recycling. In
addition, waste ink is collected by the ink supplier for
resource recycling treatment.

The Group engages environmental recyclers to handle
scrapped electronic parts, and used printer cartridges
are collected by suppliers for recycling. Waste paper
generated by our office operations and other recyclable
office materials are also collected for recycling.

Use of Resources

The Group is committed to use resources efficiently and
minimise waste generation in our operations. We strive
to strengthen our environmental protection efforts to
conserve resources and manage wastes when conducting
our business activities. In managing its use of resources,
it is the Group’s policy to:
exceed all

—  Meet or applicable environmental

standards;

—  Choose suppliers and sub-contractors that follow
appropriate environmentally-friendly practices;

—  Promote environmental awareness among staff,
business partners and the public.
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Paper and ink are the major raw materials used in
the printing of the Group’s publications. Caring for the
environment and optimising production cost are the two
main considerations in the selection and use of these
materials. Our aim is to use environmentally-friendly
products as much as possible, and at the same time
minimise consumption and wastage.

In 2020, the Group used 15,652 tonnes of newsprint
for the production of its newspapers in Hong Kong,
and 1,609 tonnes of newsprint was collected for
recycling. Around 50% of the paper used by the Group
for printing newspapers in Hong Kong in 2020 was
recycled paper or contained recycled paper. The paper
used was supplied by reputable manufacturers in Asia,
Europe, Australasia and North America, all of whom are
members of the Forest Stewardship Council and adhere
strictly to manufacturing processes that create minimal
impact on the environment. Stringent supervision and
control on the efficient use of newsprint were exercised
at all times. The Group used organic-based printing ink
for printing newspapers in Hong Kong. This ink consists
of a composite of resin and vegetable oil that fulfils
environmental conservation objectives. All ink used was
supplied by manufacturers in Korea who comply with
1SO14000 and 14001 Environmental Management System
Standards as well as the ISO9000 and 9001 Quality
Management System Standards.

BRI - wgMhERRE

MR HERERBAEETMAANTIER
M REERERZEMHE - RPFAOHR
ARTEEZBERAZAURERENEREEK
K- BZFMERERERAREREZER
RKERENERERERD -

RZZZZF AEBREBORIFEERE
BB RS A15,6522 18 - W IEE 1,609 A MEE)
HREERW AR - ZEERZZS_ZFARE
BERIRERNRR © 500 BT ERLSHE
KD - FANMAEHEER TN ERIR
o pmI N BUN  RARAEEMN  %F
BEBHBERMNEREZESNEE » WET
HRBERGIOVENRDERRF - NEBEK
BEERMITSIARAAERBE i AEE
BREBORRENHRAEB AL o
EHEELEYBENERMAER  TEERR
REMBIZ - FTEF ARAZAHATAIS014000
K 140013R 35 B R 88 RIF L K I1SO9000 K% 90018
EEHEERTENEERERIEME -

2020 2019

—g=88  —T AF

Newsprint used (tonnes) BERAEFE(RHE) 15,652 33,162

Newsprint collected for recycling (tonnes) H ¥R 4% [0 Yz (2 M) 1,609 3,102
KPI A2.1 BREEMERA2.1

Electricity used in the newspaper printing process at its
printing plant and in the office operations account for
the majority of the Group’s electricity consumption. The
Group purchases electricity from CLP Power Hong Kong
Limited. The electricity consumption by the Group in
Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
9,539,645 kWh. The decrease in electricity consumption
was due to the reason mentioned under KPI Al.2 above.

AEBETEENHERERER M E R E A
EMAZEBEMAMNEN - AKRBERHRESR
NERRBBARN -BE_ZT_ZTF+_H
Zt-BUEFE AKEEERENENER
HBE 9,539,645 TR - B HRAERH
RER LR ERIERAL2FRR

2020 2019
—E_BF —E—NF
Electricity consumption (kWh) BEHEEES(TRE) 9,539,645 11,501,103
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KPI A2.2

The Group’s major water consumption is for its printing
operations and office operations. Water consumption
by the Group in Hong Kong for the year ended
31 December 2020 was approximately 32,291 cubic
metres. The increase in water consumption was due
to increase in usage for sanitation in response to the
outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic.

BEBEMNIEEZEA2.2

REEBEFZAKBORIEERMAZEER
ARK e BEZEZTF+-_A=+—HILHF
B RNEBEBBNFEKEE BH3220137
Koo FEIKAE B HIE IR B R2019E MR E S &
BB EBUEMAKAEBZ -

2020 2019 (Restated)

—E-NF
—EB-EF (& E5))
Water consumption (cubic metres) FEKBE (LK) 32,291 30,613

KPI A2.3

As mentioned under KPI AlS5, the Group adopts
appropriate environmentally-friendly measures
for energy use efficiency and assigns appropriate
responsible staff in charge of energy saving matters. In
general, the Group deploys energy-saving lightings, uses
natural sunlight as much as possible and urges staff
to switch off idle lightings, air-conditioning, computers
and other electrical equipment; in addition, staff are
encouraged to use recycled paper and to use telephone
or video conferencing to reduce local and overseas
travelling. Reminders and notices are regularly issued to
staff to remind them to use energy smartly as well as
to save water and to reduce sewage from the source.

KPI A2.4

Water is not a significant element in the Group’s
business operations and generation of waste water is
minimal.

KPI A25

The packaging materials used by the Group for its
finished products are immaterial.
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A3.

B1.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to environmental protection.
It is the Group’s policy to minimise the impact of
its business activities on the environment and natural
resources.

KPI A3.1

The Group’s activities do not have a significant impact
on the environment and natural resources. Other than
the measures to mitigate emissions mentioned under
KPI Al5 and the energy use efficiency initiatives
mentioned under KPI A2.3 above, the Group continually
monitors and reviews its operations and processes to
minimise any impact on the environment. In April 2020,
the Group’s IT Department completed its data centre
virtualisation project, replacing all aged legacy servers
with virtualisation solution which not only helped to
cut down on energy use but also generated savings
The final
phase of this virtualisation project has brought about
an average monthly reduction of approximately 20% in

in physical space and maintenance costs.

electricity consumption of the data centre since April
2020.

SOCIAL
Employment

It is the Group’s policy to recruit the best qualified
people and to maintain a pool of human resources
according to different businesses’ manpower
requirements and planning. It is also the Group’s policy
to transfer or promote well performing and capable
employees to fill vacancies so that employees are
provided with opportunities to widen their exposure

and further their career development within the Group.

A3.

B1.

RIE - HERERARSE

BRERARER

AREBNREARE  ARASEHAL
EEESEEEENES S Pl
T E R -
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The Group is dedicated to employment diversity and
anti-discrimination in the workplace, and adopts an
Equal Employment Opportunity policy. All applicants
for the Group’s positions have equal opportunities of
employment irrespective of their age, sex, marital status,
family status, disability, race, nationality or religion
(provided that these do not impede the abilities of the
prospective appointees to carry out normal job duties
or affect the health and safety of fellow employees). Job
applicants are treated fairly and equally. Employment
is offered only to the best qualified applicants with
reference to their merits and abilities to meet the
requirements of the jobs irrespective of whether they
are referrals or direct applicants.

The Group’s Human Resources Department provides
recruitment advice and related services to all
departments and line managers are responsible for
ensuring that these policies are implemented in their
operations. The Human Resources Department is
consulted before any action is taken in relation to
any employee and confirmation of full time and part-
time employment is offered by the Human Resources
Department.

We offer remuneration packages to staff taking into
account their performance, contribution and the
level of responsibility/empowerment pertinent to the
specific jobs. Remuneration packages are reviewed
according to individual performance, business unit
performance as well as the Group’s overall business
performance. We attract, retain and motivate high-
performing employees with incentive payments, such
as allowances, performance driven commissions and
bonuses, discretionary year-end bonuses and share
option scheme. We offer a comprehensive range of
employee benefits to full-time staff including insurance
and medical coverage, maternity and paternity benefits,
long service recognition awards, etc.; and we provide
mandatory provident fund schemes for all staff including
part-time staff.

Staff employment policies are adopted with approval
by management and confirmed by the Group’s Legal
Department to ensure compliance with relevant laws
and regulations including the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Employment
Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Cap. 282 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). Updates to the relevant laws and
regulations, policies and procedures are posted to staff
via memoranda or company intranet.
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The collection, access, update, retention and/or transfer
of employees’ data for the process of employment
are conducted strictly in accordance with designated
procedures which are subject to regular reviews in
compliance with the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance
(Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

The Group’s Human Resources Department has
appropriate systems and processes in place to ensure
compliance with the above policies and with Hong Kong
statutory provisions. It gives appropriate advice to all
operating units in following the standard procedures and
practices. All employment letters, time-sheets, overtime
forms, regular compensation, mandatory provident fund
contributions, sick leave and injury compensation, and
arrangements regarding working hours and rest periods
are subject to annual audit and regular review to ensure
compliance with relevant laws and regulations.

KPI Bl1.1

As at 31 December 2020, the Group employed a total of
1,163 full-time employees including 929 in Hong Kong
and 234 in the Group’s mainland China and overseas
offices.

RIE - HERERARSE

EEBETIE  EI - B RER X
BRNREENGEBRBRIETREFET
% E 12 KR CE A B # (R R PI(E B A
{5 25486 %) E HIE % -

AEBANBERBRBBERRLIZF @
RETLEABRREBREEMKR - ANER
MERAMAELEEMRHTENERZERER
LEHNEERER - MBRMEERE - HER -
BETER  BEME  @fE\mSHR
wR - ITEHE TERBEERKBRZENBE
ETFEEZNERER  UERETER
FOERR »

A NIEEBLL
R -ZTEF+-_A=1+—H AEEHXER

2BEBRLIGA ETREFEREB2IAR
B KM IME B234A -

2020 2019 (Restated)

—T-NF

—E-RF (18 &75)

Full-time employees in Hong Kong 2EEE(FB) 929 1,006
Full-time employees in mainland China 2 W& B (P B KEEAE 5N

and overseas 234 261

Total number of full-time employees BEBES 1,163 1,267

The table below shows a breakdown of the Group’s
employees in Hong Kong by age group and by gender:

TRANEERFHRARRIERZHHEE
EE:

Full time employees by age group: RERANEIHNEZRBEE A

2020 2019
Age Group F iR 48 Bl —E-EF —_ET-hnF
29 or under 295K AT 19.9% 17.6%
30-39 307% £ 395% 15.1% 15.9%
40-49 4058 2495%, 30.8% 34.8%
50 or above 50p% 3k LA 34.2% 31.7%
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B2.

Full time employees by gender: REBESINEHES AR

2020 2019
Gender Bl —EEHF —EF-NF
Male B4 56.8% 57.2%
Female 7% 43.2% 42.8%
KPI B1.2 BRENIEEBL2

The Group’s employee turnover rate in Hong Kong in
2020 was 11.0%. The table below shows the Group’s
employee turnover rate by age group and by gender:

R—E_TF AEENEBEEERALE
A311.0% ° T3k /3 AN 6 B% F ik 48 Bl S A Bl &l
DHEERKLE:

Employee turnover rate by age group: RERANEBIHNEERLLE:

2020 2019
Age Group F i 48 Bl —E-EF —_ET-hnF
29 or under 29BR AT 39.6% 77.5%
30-39 305% £ 395% 13.0% 26.0%
40-49 4088 B49B% 2.8% 8.2%
50 or above 507% 3 bA = 2.6% 4.3%
Employee turnover rate by gender: RERNEINEERKLLE:

2020 2019
Gender % 5l —E-EHF —E-NF
Male EE) 7.5% 15.1%
Female poggis 15.7% 33.2%
Health and Safety B2. BERZZE

The Group takes measures to provide and maintain
a safe and healthy workplace for our employees
through establishing an Occupational Health and Safety
Management System. We pledge to follow and observe
the following principles in implementing the system:

— To recognise that safety and health at work is
an integral part of our business performance and
to endeavor to achieve a high level of safety
performance;

— To accept the responsibility of providing and
maintaining a safe workplace for our employees
and contractors/suppliers working within our
premises;

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2020

AEBRAEBRELRELEREERE  RE
BEH —1Izz1&f§§1iﬁﬁlf’ﬁfaii AN
WITZB A KRBLERETIIRR:

— RELZEREREIESREBRRED
B —35 W HED S KF R B2
TrENERRE:

— AEEERBIREAKEMBEEN
77 THER AR &M AR MRS
—(AZ 2 RRENITESH:



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

—  To comply with the occupational health and safety
regulations and relevant legal requirements where
appropriate;

— To define safety organisational structure and
responsibilities and provide adequate and
appropriate resources for developing and
implementing the system;

—  To provide appropriate training for our employees
in order to ensure the system is properly
implemented;

— To ensure our employees and contractors/suppliers
working within our premises implement the
system;

— To periodically review the system and its
performance and implement appropriate follow up
actions in order to achieve continual improvement.

In view of the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group
strictly followed the guidelines and measures issued
by the government and has implemented the following
preventive and control measures to safeguard the health
and well-being of our colleagues:

—  Keeping employees informed and updated of
preventive measures against COVID-19;

—  Cleaning and disinfecting the workplace regularly,
especially the toilets and pantries, as well as
requiring vendors such as shuttle bus and staff
canteen operators to enhance cleaning and
sanitisation;

—  Providing hand sanitisers, masks and other
protective equipment for staff use and requiring
staff to wear masks in public areas of the work
premises;

—  Checking body temperature of employees and
visitors before entering the work premises;

—  Requiring visitors to fill in health declaration
forms and scanning the “LeaveHomeSafe” QR code
before entering the work premises;

—  Encouraging social distancing in the workplace
and adopting tele-conference or video conference
to minimise physical contact;

BRI - wgMhERRE
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—  Implementing flexible working hours, “Work from
Home” arrangements and setting up “A-B” teams
in different areas of the office to reduce social
assembling;

—  Asking staff with COVID-19 symptoms to consult
a doctor and take the COVID-19 test, and not
come to the workplace until a negative test result
is confirmed.

KPI B2.1 and KPI B2.2

For the year ended 31 December 2020, there were a
total of 4 cases of work-related injuries representing an
average injury rate of 4.31 per 1,000 employees (defined
according to Occupational Safety and Health Branch,
Labour Department). There were a total of 793 days
lost due to work-related injuries. No work-related fatal
incidents occurred in 2020. The number of days lost
due to work-related injuries increased because of three
injuries requiring longer recovery time.

KPI B2.3

The Group complies with relevant laws and regulations
relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational hazards.
For example, in compliance with the Fire Services
Ordinance (Cap. 95 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Cap. 509
of the Laws of Hong Kong), the Group has installed
adequate fire sprinklers and extinguishers in our
workplaces and emergency exit floor plans are clearly
posted; all emergency exits are checked frequently to
ensure no obstacles and we hold fire evacuation drills
and safety talks at regular intervals. All workplaces are
also equipped with first aid boxes and the printing
plant is equipped with an AED (automated external
defibrillator). In compliance with the Factories and
Industrial Undertakings Ordinance (Cap. 59 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) and Factories and Industrial
Undertakings (Safety Management) Regulation (Cap.
S9AF of the Laws of Hong Kong), we have set up a
Safety Management Committee and a Safety Management
System to monitor all safety issues in the workplace,
audited by a registered safety auditor annually. In
addition, we hold regular factory-related drills (e.g.
chemical spillage) at our printing plant.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2020

— EREUELISE EXRIEITHER
EH R EN AR R ZE S [A-B]E X
VAR Dt R B ER

—  ERHR2019FARBSEMNE LFEH
BLEWES2000BMRFSHE  BEEHE
wul% |$ EU *_t %?ﬁﬁﬂiﬂi ©

BRENEEB2IRBERENIEEB2.2

HEZZ-ZTF+-_A=1+—HIFE  Hx
BaxmT 5 - Mt?%ﬁiﬁm1t?ﬁﬁ1
(RELSTIEBRELZERERPNEEFTE
ETITEmaI BBk IIEREA K A793 - F
TECEFRLRE TESI BT HEZE -
lI%ﬁ%ﬁE%IWE%ﬁMEmmﬁ¢
TRIGEERERNFEERRE -

HRENEEB2.3

AEBEBETEBRELZEZTIERERRER
BRSTHBESENEREER -l BIK
CEBHIEINEBEZOAESE) MBELZ R R
BEERAG BN E B E M FES00F)  REBRITE
BT RERHOEEE RN WER
RUZELOFEE: RMEEREMEER
EHO0 - BREERY I E BHERITHB
BEENLZEEE - 1B TESIAE B2
RAE - BB ED R B = 2 B # AED (B B BE S0
W%ﬂ%)*ﬁ%lﬁ&l%ﬁéh%%%
FEEBIES9FE) A RCT R R T & E (&
i@ﬁ%%%%%%”@m%)ﬁﬁaﬂ*
ZEERZESRLEEERS  BERTE
BHNLZ2EE BEFHAMLE2EZRESE
oo AN - BAMEEIE DRI B 217 TR
R (Fl e B FRIR) MES -



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B3.

B4.

RIE - HERERARSE

Development and Training B3. ERERIZFI
We encourage our staff members to improve their job BMEARBIENFINGE - TIEHKE
capabilities and career prospects by providing them BE - mBIIREEREREAKRRERO®
with opportunities for professional and personal growth T HBEIRATIIERNLRBERNS -
and development, through various training programmes,
workshops and seminars.
An induction training is organised for new employees to BMAMEIRMARE  ZMAMTHAR
apprise them of the Group’s businesses and the industry SEEBRAETENMRR - JH: S R AFI(R)
in which we operate. In addition, on-the-job training EE(BEEEERSR) EHEREI - BXE
is offered to employees, including management and RAREEREMBETEE ZFHBIIRES
directors, for the purpose of refreshing and developing BESFHEEEERRER  KEAER (LR
their knowledge and skills. These include training &) ~ < an 3R BRI DI D(E B A B 5362F) K
related to compliance with relevant laws and regulations Hpth B 5 M R 88 A 0] - BAMIIRE BRI T1E
such as the Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance, the Trade ZE2RREBEN - REREMANELITHR
Descriptions Ordinance (Cap. 362 of the Laws of Hong HETENERTEE RMNTEEBEEENH
Kong) as well as other advertising and media laws. UEBEREREEERS  HoaEl -
Work safety and anti-bribery training is also provided B EERERN BB RIS EEMNS
on a regular basis. To ensure that our staff are kept Al e
abreast of the developments in the media industry, we
also offer training on the latest editorial management
systems, office automation, online media technology as
well as digital sales and marketing, according to the
roles and responsibilities of the employees.
KPI B3.1 and KPI B3.2 BREAMEEB.IRBEEANEEB3.2
For the year ended 31 December 2020, a total of 733 HE-Z-_TF+_A=1+—HILFE #F
employees attended training through both internal and 73B3EETHFEABRIMIFIREEHERE
external training course (representing 78.9% of full-time BB BEm78.9%) « # X 38 871/ NEERIIEH o
employees), with a total of 38,871 hours of training.
2020 2019
ZBEF —E-NF
Number of employees who attended ZIEINET A
training 733 865
Total hours of training @8 T 38,871 45,036
Labour Standards B4. BT #B|

The Group adopts a “No Child Labour and No Forced

Labour” policy which:

—  Ensures that no person below the age of 15 is
employed in the workplace;

—  Prohibits the use of forced or compulsory labour;

AEERRNTERBEIRTRESEIHEK:

— BEITEBTIARATHOALTIE:

— FIRELRFISE:
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B5.

—  Ensures that no employee is made to work against
his/her will or to work as bonded/forced labour,
or subjected to corporal punishment or coercion
of any kind related to work;

—  Refrains from engaging with vendors and suppliers
who use child labour and forced labour in their
operations.

The Human Resources Department as well as
department heads will ensure implementation of this
policy, in compliance with Employment of Children
Regulations (Cap. 57B of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
Employment of Young Persons (Industry) Regulations
(Cap. 57C of the Laws of Hong Kong), throughout the
process of recruitment and employment registration. Any
violation of related regulations and procedures will be
subject to warning, re-education or disciplinary action
and such other appropriate measures as the Group’s
management may decide to take.

KPI B4.1 and KPI B4.2

The Group has taken necessary measures to prevent
child labour and such measures are communicated
regularly to all departments and suppliers. The Human
Resources Department maintains appropriate procedures
to verify the date of birth of new joiners. Work time
sheets with details on job nature are required and kept
to ensure that young persons (as defined under the
Employment Ordinance) do not engage in night shifts
or hazardous jobs, and to ensure that minimum wages
are adhered to. Limits for working hours and overtime
are set taking into consideration the age of employees.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
was not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations on preventing child labour or forced
labour.

Supply Chain Management
It is the Group’s policy to source materials from

operated by
environmentally reputable suppliers who are in line

sustainable sources managed or
with the Group’s view to social responsibility and these
suppliers are diversified geographically to ensure the
source materials supply is not affected by change of
environmental policy of individual country or individual

region.
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B6.

KPI B5.1 and KPI B5.2

In 2020, the top 10 suppliers for the Group’s regular
business operations in Hong Kong (being suppliers of
products and/or services with an annual total contract
amount of HK$10 million or above) accounted for
approximately 26% of the Group’s total purchases of
products and/or services. These are mainly suppliers
delivery and

distribution services and approximately 63%, 11%, 14%

of newsprint, ink, printing services,

and 12% of them are located, respectively, in Hong
Kong, Asia, North America and Australasia.

Newsprint and ink are the major materials consumed
by the Group. Senior management staff responsible
for this role visits existing and potential suppliers
(who individually accounts for 20% or more of total
consumption) to examine and assess whether they
fulfil the industry’s expectations in the social and
environmental aspects, especially concerning the raw
materials and the natural resources they use to produce

their products.
Product Responsibility

The Group aims to provide products (inter alia,
recruitment media and other

advertising,

newspapers,
publications) and

magazines,
services (inter alia,
promotional events, printing and publishing services)
of the highest standards.
Group aims to produce high quality content to make

As an

As a content provider, the

its products preferred and valued by readers.
advertising medium, the Group aims to be an effective
platform for advertisers to reach their target audience.
Also, the Group is committed to protecting the privacy
of individuals with respect to personal data.

B6.

RIE - HERERARSE

ARANEEB.IRBRENESEBS.2

RZZEZZF  AEEREEABEBEE
W+ AMEE(BFRNEGHNBRE—TE BTN
A EMERK SR HRER) (hAEEER
NS BRIE IR BB AR H926% - X S FE £
DHEANRE B2 HRIRYS  Bx Rk
BRA REES - M dEEMERAS
D B #163% ~ 11% ~ 14% F112% ©

AREHBARNEETEC AN - &
EREAREFREMMAHIA ENIREREEHR
R BEMNSREEAESRBERSRE
RELFBEEENEATEELERERES
EHHE  CEEEAREEEMKMANR
MEERXAEIR -

%Ehh?%%%%ém@ﬁa%ﬁ
%%ﬁ Re LAt T 4) B Bl 75 (L
CHEEIEE) DRI K AR RS
$%@¢EW”TE% EERFEENA
CEHEMRIEENTRLER - AL
ERBEFSESREN  BEE/ESHIE -
SHARERONSRTE - wi HREME
ABRTE  AREHNREBEALR -

D>}

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2020



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIE - g MhERRE

B7.

KPI B6.1, KPI B6.2, KPI B6.3 and KPI B6.4

For the year ended 31 December 2020, none of our
products sold or shipped was subject to recalls for safety
and health reasons, and the Group was not aware of
any products and service related complaints that would
have significant impact on the Group. It is the Group’s
policy to respect intellectual property rights (which is
also one of its valuable assets as a content provider),
not to use infringing articles in our business and only
use licensed software on office equipment. All staff are
required to strictly comply with the Copyright Ordinance
(Cap. 528 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as stipulated in
the Employee Handbook, and are required to report any
suspected intellectual property rights infringement of
the Group. In terms of quality assurance, regular review
meetings are held by relevant staff to ensure provision
of high quality content to readers.

KPI B6.5

Brief updates and/or training are provided to keep
the relevant staff in pace with the developments in
the advertising and media laws, and the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (Cap. 486 of the Laws of Hong
Kong). Regarding advertising service, advertisements of
suspicious nature are reviewed and commented before
publication so as to minimise the possibility of any
claims, allegations and/or contravention of the relevant
laws. In relation to privacy, a personal data policy is
set out in the Employee Handbook to which staff are
required to strictly adhere when handling personal
data. In compliance with the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance, privacy policy statements are also included
in the Group’s websites and mobile applications, and
Personal Information Collection Statements are made
whenever personal data is collected. All personal data
is maintained with care and can only be accessed by
authorised staff, and protected by appropriate security
measures.

Anti-corruption

It is the Group’s policy to ensure that its business
operates according to the highest standards of ethical
conduct and professional competence. All staff are
required to strictly comply with the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance (Cap. 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
and the code of conduct contained in the Employee
Handbook, in particular the conflict of interest and anti-
bribery provisions.
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KPI B7.1

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
was not aware of any concluded legal cases regarding
corrupt practices brought against the Group or its
employees.

KPI B7.2

The Group encourages the reporting of any suspected
breach of the aforesaid to the Human Resources
Department through the whistle-blowing mechanism.
Such reports are kept confidential and the identity of
the reporting employee will not be divulged. The Group
will take all reasonable steps to ensure that the reporting
employee suffers no detriment. Also, different internal

audit assignments are conducted from time to time.
KPI B7.3

The Group has clear guidelines on the practical
guidance of the operation of the anti-bribery provisions
set out in the Employee Handbook, applicable to all
employees (including Directors) of the Group. The
guidelines have been uploaded to the Group’s intranet

for all employees to read at any time.
Community Investment

As a media organisation, the Group strives to provide
high quality journalism and an effective advertising
medium to ensure business success, while at the same
time the Group is committed to fulfilling its social
responsibility as a good corporate citizen that brings
benefits to the communities in which it operates. Our
community investment strategy is to leverage on and
align the resources of the Group (including our readers
and staff) with the needs of the communities we
serve. We focus on two core areas where we believe
our understanding of the needs and our support can
best contribute to the long term development and
sustainability of the community, namely, Education and
Charity & Community Care.
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KPI B8.1 and KPI BS8.2
Education

It is our belief to support and nurture today’s young
people who are our future, by providing them with
opportunities to formal education as well as personal
development. This section outlines our key educational
initiatives:

—  Students’ Loan Fund and Scholarship under
Sing Tao Charitable Foundation

Sing Tao Charitable Foundation was established in
1976 with the aim of providing financial assistance
to those in need, including student loans and
scholarships, which comprise:

. Sing Tao Charitable Foundation Students’
Loan Fund

Sing Tao Charitable Foundation Students’
Loan Fund seeks to assist, by way of
interest-free loans, students who face
financial difficulty and are nominated by
their education institutes. The Loan Fund is
composed of two parts — loans to students
of the eight University Grants Committee-
funded universities and Hong Kong Shue
Yan University, and emergency loans
to students of the aforementioned nine
universities, certain other tertiary institutions
and secondary schools recognised by the
Education Bureau. In addition to providing
funding to the Loan Fund, the Group also
participates in its selection committee. In the
2019/2020 academic year, Sing Tao Charitable
Foundation Students’ Loan Fund provided
loans of approximately HK$742,000 to 58
students.

. Sing Tao Charitable Foundation Scholarships

Sing Tao Charitable Foundation Scholarships
was set up to offer one-off scholarships to
outstanding students studying Journalism
and Communication at The Chinese
University of Hong Kong, in order to nurture
future journalists and talents in the news
industry. In the 2019/2020 academic year,
Sing Tao Charitable Foundation Scholarships
provided scholarships of HK$40,000 to 8
students.
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The Standard/Sing Tao “Fat Choy” Drive
Medical Students Loan Fund

The Standard/Sing Tao “Fat Choy” Drive
Medical Students Loan Fund aims to provide
financial assistance, by way of interest-free
loans, to students in Medicine, Nursing and
Chinese Medicine at The University of Hong
Kong. In the 2019/2020 academic year, The
Standard/Sing Tao “Fat Choy” Drive Medical
Students Loan Fund approved loans of
approximately HK$538,000 to 23 students.

Education-related Activities

Since 1994 the Group has organised the
annual “Leader of the Year” Award to
acknowledge outstanding leaders and
thereby encourage the younger generation
to strive for excellence and contribute to
the development of Hong Kong. Up to 2019,
a total of 127 awards have been presented
to individuals and groups in recognition of
their achievements in a range of categories
spanning Community/Public Affairs to
Education and Research. A new award
category “Young Entrepreneur” was added in
2017 to recognise young leaders and foster
the spirit of entrepreneurship and creativity.
In view of the various restriction measures
under the COVID-19 pandemic, the “Leader
of the Year 2020”7 award presentation
ceremony is planned be held in June 2021.

The Group co-organises the annual “Sing
Tao Inter-School Debating Competition” with
the Education Bureau and the event reached
its 35" year in 2020. The competition
provides an opportunity for students to hone
their skills in use of language, debating,
analytical thinking and organisation, as
well as to raise their awareness of current
affairs and enrich their experience in extra-
curricular activities. Due to the outbreak
of the COVID-19 pandemic, the “35" Sing
Tao Inter-School Debating Competition”
was conducted in both virtual and physical
formats, and received unabated enthusiasm
and support.
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. In order to raise students’ interest in
journalism and allow young people to better
understand the operations of a newspaper,
the Group regularly organises visits from
schools and non-profit organisations. During
the visits, staff from the Group’s Editorial
Department, Art Department, Printing
Department and Information Centre interact
with students to explain and demonstrate
their operations in addition to answering
questions from students. In 2020, visits
were suspended in order to comply with
the government’s social distancing measures
necessitated by the COVID-19 pandemic.

. The book publication and distribution unit
of the Group regularly makes donations
of books to schools, in order to promote
healthy reading habits among students to
broaden their knowledge, or cash donations
from charity book sales to charitable
organisations. However, such activities
were halted in 2020 due to the COVID-19
pandemic.

Charity & Community Care

The Group is committed to “giving back to society” by
supporting charitable activities and caring for those in
need. In our day-to-day news gathering and reporting
activities, the Group is frequently in touch with and
aware of the special and urgent needs in the community.
This section outlines our key charity and community
care initiatives:

—  Charity projects under Sing Tao Charitable
Foundation

In addition to education-related financial
assistance, Sing Tao Charitable Foundation also
provides aid to victims of accidents or disasters.
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Sing Tao Charitable Foundation — Readers’
Donations

Through the reporting in the Group’s
publications, readers become aware of the
needs of individuals and families struck by
adversities and want to provide financial
assistance to them. Sing Tao Charitable
Foundation serves as a channel to coordinate
readers’ donations and ensure that the
process is systematic and accountable.
Readers can choose to donate on a one-
off or ongoing basis and over the years the
Foundation has helped many individuals
and families in need to tide over their
worst times. In 2020, Sing Tao Charitable
Foundation participated in 6 cases and
directed over HK$1,240,000 in donations
from our benevolent readers.

Charity and Community Care Activities

As a newspaper, Sing Tao Daily is at the
forefront in encountering happenings in
society and the needy. In 2009, it set up
an Adversity Support Scheme with Yan
Oi Tong to provide emergency financial
assistance to those who face sudden
mishaps and hardships. Sing Tao Daily’s
reporters refer cases and contact the
individuals and families concerned, and
the Scheme also arranges support services
by professional social workers. In addition,
Sing Tao Daily is also the media sponsor
of the Scheme and assists in publicising
the cases requiring assistance to encourage
the public to care and donate. In 2020, the
Scheme participated in 5 cases and provided
HK$100,000 in donations.
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Since 2011 Headline Daily has been a
media sponsor for The Community Chest
Rainbow Fund, which is involved in
providing immediate and short term financial
assistance to individuals and families with
urgent and critical needs. Headline Daily
supports by devoting editorial space to
publish relevant cases and to appeal for
donations from readers, as well as by
referring cases to the Fund for approval.
In 2020, the Fund provided donations of
HK$415,000 to 7 cases.

In 2020, due to the outbreak of the
COVID-19 pandemic and the ensuing
government measures on social distancing
and other restrictions, many of the
Group’s regular charitable activities were
suspended. The Group’s different business
units continued to act as media partner
for charities such as Agency for Volunteer
Service, Breakthrough, Hong Kong Society
for the Protection of Children, and Orbis.
To help fight the pandemic, the Group
participated in various events including free
distribution of surgical face masks and hand
sanitisers to those in need, and sponsorship
of advertising or content for anti-virus
campaigns, so as to instill positive energy
in the society in fighting the virus together.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
(the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to the financial statements.
There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the Year.

A fair review of the Group’s business as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including an
indication of likely future development in the Group’s
business, can be found in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” set out on pages 8 to 17 of this annual report.
In respect of the discussion on the Group’s environmental
policies and performance, its compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations and relationships with stakeholders are
set out in “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 36 to 58 of this annual report. These discussions form
part of the directors’ report.

The Group is committed to enhancing governance,
promoting employee benefits and development, protecting
the environment and giving back to society in order to fulfill
social responsibility and achieve sustainable growth. The
Group has complied with the relevant laws and regulations
that have significant impact on the operations of the Group.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

Principal risk and uncertainties of the Group can be found in
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages
8 to 17 of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s financial performance for the Year and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in this
annual report on pages 86 to 229.

The Directors recommend a final dividend of HK2 cents per
ordinary share of the Year (2019: Nil), payable on 15 July
2021 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 7 July 2021. No interim dividend
was declared for the Year (2019: HK3.5 cents per ordinary
share).
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, and of assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out on
page 232 of this annual report. The summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the Year are set out in notes 28 and 29
to the financial statements respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to its existing shareholders.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available
for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie, calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981 (as amended), amounted to approximately
HK$1,148,890,000 (2019: approximately HK$1,152,637,000), of
which approximately HK$17,611,000 has been proposed as a
final dividend for the Year.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable contributions
totaling HK$60,000 (2019: HK$182,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers represented less than
30% of the Group’s total revenue. The aggregate amount of
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
represented less than 30% of the Group’s total purchases.

m SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2020

MBEANBERE

AEEBEREMBFEIEATMES UNEE
EBEHE (DR KEESMHRER) BMRAF R
F2328 - WHBY FBREEZYHRERN — &

,T/\ o
AN I 08 I HE
ARTZBARBREAREERN 2 ZBH S

B A B 1% R 3k M 5E28 % 29 o

o HEIBMEAQAF Z L& HF

RAFERARARRSLHEEMAMHBARLERED - H
EXBEARBZEFMLETES °

BErBERE

ARRZ ARARSEREZRETLEBELEERE
ZHE > BHARRARLOIAEBRRRIEZE
B -

A 2K 18

RZZEZZEFF+_A=+—H XRFABREERE
—NN—FREVE(KEFNDATEFETHIB S DR
K /B DR 2 7 5 %91,148,890,00078 7T (= F
— JL4F © #91,152,637,00078 JT) © H F 4917,611,0007%8
TEBIERFE 2 RBARE o

=

A
§
1
L

J

REBRAFERNBHEZBRE 60,0008 (=
T —NLF 1 182,000 7T) °

ITREFRHAED
RAFEAR  ARERATFPZEXBERAAEE

ERBETR30% AEBAOAHERE 2 RBARE
HAEBRBATETE30%



Report of the Directors

During the Year, none of the Directors or their close associates
or the shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak
Mr. Jia Hongping

Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis
Mr. Lo Wing Hung

Mr. Siu Sai Wo

Independent non-executive directors:
Ms. Judy Chan

Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina

Mr. King Richard Yun Zing

Mr. Lee Cho Jat

According to bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Siu
Sai Wo, Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis, Mr. Lo Wing Hung and
Mr. Lee Cho Jat will retire by rotation, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company (the “2021 AGM”). Details
of the Directors’ standing for re-election will set out in the
circular to the shareholders of the Company.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Ms. Judy Chan, Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy
Catilina, Mr. King Richard Yun Zing and Mr. Lee Cho ]Jat,
and as at the date of this report still considers them to be
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 18 to 24 of
this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
Group within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or in existence during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the Directors
is currently in force and was in force throughout the Year.
The Company has maintained directors and officers liability
insurance cover for the Directors and officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval
at general meetings of the Company every vyear. Other
emoluments are determined and approved by the Board
with reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance, and the results of the Group.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “SFO”) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

(a) Interests in the Company

EEFHRE

EERESTHRAENES

R-ZB-_ZFF+-_A=+—B EFRARAES
TTRABRARE R EBEEZE(EELEEED
ESNEBEFFLREGROITEFEBEGRDD FEXV
Mz ERERDT  BEREBESFRPERK
I F321EARBIA T HEFNECMATREHIRE
ERBMARGMBRARES EMAR (T EWRRAD)
Mk +AE (LT ETAESETESFRINE
R ADTCGRESTRD) AR TTHERNRF RE B
EBRZHAERAR (B EERINT

@ HEXRQAAHER

Number of ordinary shares and underlying shares held,

capacity and nature of interest

FEEBERREBROEE SORERME

Percentage

Interests in of the

underlying Company’s

Personal Corporate shares issued voting

Name of director Note interests interests (Note 2) Total shares
EHE HERFE

R RONERERE

BB i BAER ARER (H#2) #Y  RiezEst
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles AR % E 1 — 276,197,500 4,230,000 280,427,500 31.85%
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak WEEEE — — 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.68%
Mr. Jia Hongping BAFLE 2,000,000 — 4,500,000 6,500,000 0.74%
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis Akt 3,000,000 — 6,000,000 9,000,000 1.02%
Mr. Lo Wing Hung EKEEE 18,000,000 — 1,500,000 19,500,000 2.21%
Mr. Siu Sai Wo BHMLE 7,872,500 — 8,900,000 16,772,500 190%
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(b)

.

Interests in associated corporations of the (b) EAXRRBZEBEIERHNER

Company

As at 31 December 2020, Mr. Lo Wing Hung (“Mr. Lo"), R-CE-_FEFF+—_A=+—H AQFESEE

a director of the Company, held the corporate interests KIESRE(ELREDAT I ARG ZFEEE

in shares of the following associated corporations of the RO REEZ AT

Company:

Percentage of the

Total number of associated corporation’s

Name of associated corporation Notes shares held issued voting shares
A ]

BEZRG BRANERER

REEEAR Wi EEEY RzEDH

Bastille Heat Book Store Limited BELHAAEESR EQT 4 1 100%

Bastille JC Bookcity Limited EtHBEFENERA 4 2 100%

Bastille Post Company Limited (“BPCL’) EtemaRAaE (T Eiﬁ’]?ﬁj) 3 25,400,000 70%

Bravo Link Limited (‘BLL") BRmBERARAA(AR)) 4 1 100%

Bravo Link (HK) Limited (‘BLHKL) BRHMGERER)ERAR(RRER)) 5 1 100%

Bravo Link New Media Limited BRHBERERAA 7 2 100%

eDescartes Digital (HK) Limited BRREBEEEERAA 4 10,000,000 100%

Ticker Asia Limited 4 155 775%

Ticker International Limited 6 2,500 20%

Wanquren Company Limited EEAERAR 4 2 100%

Notes: B i -

1. The corporate interests of 276,197,500 shares were 1. N A R 2 B% 19 276,197,500% B Luckman
held by Luckman Trading Limited (“Luckman”), which Trading Limited (fLuCkmanJ) BE %A
was beneficially owned by Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles. HREEREEERER N _—F—
On 28 January 2021, Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles and A=+N\8 " TTE.?&E&LuckmanEEﬁ
Luckman entered into a sale and purchase agreement BNE=FAN—HHEE RS W/\ﬁ B
with an independent third party in relation to the B R (3 €5246,552, 045 BB (REBIR T
conditional sale of 246,552,045 shares (details are X fﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ&#ﬁiﬁﬁ 1BETE | B TR
disclosed in “Disposal of Shares by Controlling RV EHERMDINIEE) c RARERE -
Shareholder” under the section “Other Information and Luckman {3 £ 5276,197,500 % & 0 ©
Events after the Reporting Period” below). As at the
date of this report, Luckman still holds 276,197,500
shares.

2. These interests represented share options granted 2. ZERRIEARARBER_Z——FHA
under the share option scheme of the Company which =B RS IR AT &R 2 B AR
was adopted on 23 May 2012, details of which are BB RHNMERERM T2 o
set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

3. The corporate interests of 25,400,000 shares were held 3. N a) &= 2 IR 1925,400,0000% A Bastllle
by Bastille Post Holdings Limited (“BPHL”), which was Post Holdings Limited (IBPHLD) # A
beneficially owned by Mr. Lo. NRIHE ERHEE -

4. Mr. Lo was deemed to be interested in these shares 4. Eﬁi?ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ_ﬂﬁim;ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
held through BPCL, which was owned by BPHL and ERMER  ZR /Ujlj I BPHL & A &
the Group as to 70% and 30% respectively. £ ﬁ70%&50%T

5. Mr. Lo was deemed to be interested in the one 5. 5 A ﬁﬁj%ﬁﬁ BT A —RR
share held through BLL, which was wholly-owned Tﬁfgﬁﬁ CHARIBEL E’\Jiﬁ EHR -
by BPCL.

6. Mr. Lo was deemed to be interested in 2,500 shares 6. ESRAEWR AR S B Ticker Asia Limited
held through Ticker Asia Limited, which was owned FIFFB2,500R R - ZARIAELH
by BPCL as to 77.5%. WEATTS% o

7. Mr. Lo was deemed to be interested in these shares 7. =

held through BPCL and BLHKL as to 90% and 10%
respectively. BLHKL was wholly-owned by BLL.
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Report of the Directors

Save as disclosed herein, none of the Directors and the chief
executive of the Company had or were deemed to have any
interest and short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed in the share option schemes disclosures in
note 29 to the financial statements, at no time during the
Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2020, those persons, other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company, who had
interested or were deemed to be interested in 5% or more of
the issued voting shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under section
336 of the SFO, were as follows:

EEFHRE

BRAXHBEESN  BEEFERARFAESTHA
ERBLIPRABERARAREEREE(EER
&r Nk MERGEXVED) RO RAEEROF - M
REBEEZRPERG E2EARBAATHFNE
ARk - ARBGRETRADASTHNE AT
KBz R m RORR -

ESTARBRONER

BB AR At BN A IS R MY i 20 BB S - AR Ak
HLAT: {a] P8 2 ) 430 48 A AN 4F 2 AL ] B 1R 2 ERAE ]
ZH - NEEFREBALRRIEMEMEAR
BBk EREMRERME -

TERREHEMATHES

N_BoBEL=A=+—R RESEXRBEKE
BB AR T AT BTN B RMAEE - T3
AL (BERARARSHITHA BB B %R
BEERRADEITHAE R TG %K L2

Percentage of

Capacity and

Number of
ordinary shares

the Company’s
issued voting

Name Notes nature of interest held shares

EARE

56K FREER CRONERER

1 it BEltE s RB2BEDH

Luckman @ Beneficial owner 276,197,500 31.37%
ERZBERA

Hong Kong Tobacco Company BEEEEBRRA @) Deemed interest 276,197,500 31.37%
Limited (“HK Tobacco”) s WRARER ER

Stagelight Group Limited Beneficial owner 81,959,500 9.31%

EamfEBA
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Notes:

(€Y)

2

.

The interests of Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles, held through
a controlled corporation, duplicate with those disclosed
in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests”
above.

Pursuant to an option agreement dated 20 June 2001 and
eleven supplemental agreements entered into between
Luckman and HK Tobacco on 19 July 2002, 19 July 2003,
19 July 2006, 19 July 2007, 19 July 2008, 19 July 2010,
19 July 2012, 19 July 2014, 19 July 2016, 19 July 2018 and
19 July 2020 respectively, HK Tobacco was granted an
option to purchase from Luckman 33,000,000 ordinary
shares of the Company. Under sections 317 and 318 of
the SFO, HK Tobacco is deemed to be interested in all
the 276,197,500 ordinary shares of the Company held by
Luckman.

Save as disclosed herein, the Company had not been notified
of any other interests or short positions being held by any

person in the shares and underlying shares of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

BPHL is a company wholly-owned by Mr. Lo, an executive
director of the Company. Mr. Lo, through BPHL, holds 70%
interest in BPCL. The Group indirectly holds the remaining
30% interest in BPCL. BPHL and BPCL (together with its

subsidiaries and associates,

the “BP Group”) are therefore

connected persons of the Company as defined under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions
with BPCL and the BP Group (as the case may be):

On 11 December 2017, the Group and the BP Group
entered into a Group Master Services Agreement for
a term of three years commencing from 19 December
2017 and expiring on 18 December 2020 (the “Group
Master Services Agreement”) pursuant to which the
Group agreed to, from time to time, provide the BP
Group with various services, including but not limited
to the following categories:

(@  Sharing of administrative services relating to
accounting services support, office administration
support, human resources support, information
technology support, general company secretarial
support and legal support between the Group and

the BP Group;
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Report of the Directors

(b)  Provision of office space by the Group to the BP
Group to accommodate its employees;

(0  Provision of advertising spaces by the Group to
the BP Group for its own use;

(d) Provision of advertising spaces by the Group to
the BP Group (as an advertising agent) for its sale;

(e  Distribution of books published by the BP Group
through the Group;

(f)  Provision of information technology system
services by the Group to the BP Group for the
development of websites, mobile sites and mobile
applications;

(g) Provision of content being owned by the Group
to the BP Group;

(h)  Provision of editorial services (including art and
production) by the Group to the BP Group; and

(1  Provision of marketing related services and
products by the Group to the BP Group.

On 11 December 2017, the Group and the BP
Group also entered into a BP Group Master Services
Agreement for a term of three years commencing from
19 December 2017 and expiring on 18 December 2020
(the “BP Group Master Services Agreement”) pursuant
to which the BP Group agreed to, from time to time,
provide the Group with various services, including but
not limited to the following categories:

(@  Provision of advertising spaces by the BP Group
to the Group for its own use;

(b)  Provision of advertising spaces by the BP Group
to the Group (as an advertising agent) for its sale;

(0 Distribution of books published by the Group
through the BP Group;

(d) Provision of content being owned by the BP Group
to the Group;

() Provision of editorial services (including art and
production) by the BP Group to the Group; and

(f)  Provision of marketing related services and
products by the BP Group to the Group.

)

©

()]

©)]

®

(2)

(h

@

EEFHRE

REBHERAETTHFELTHREE
WARMEE T

AEERHEESHRETELNHREBIA
HEBER:

AEBEREESREFELOHRER (F
REERE)AHEE

BRAEESHETHREBLRZE

E2
AEERBEENNERERS FELH

WEB AR B - TR SR
Mz

AEERELHREERTEEEAZA

AEERELHHRERRHIEERS (2
BEMMAEERE) &

AEERETHREBRRHTEKESH
B AR 75 B EE m e

RZEBE—tF+A+—H AEEHEETH
HEBTIIVE-_E—+F+-A+thBst
AH=FE2"T_FTFF+_A+N\AERNE
TSR EELERSHZ(ELREELR
BHED e B B BREBRRETEH
AEERHESERSE  S8FATRAUTE

Al :

(@)

)

©

()]

©)]

®

BromEBEHESRETASEIA
HEBER:

ErmBsEERESRE TAEE (F
REERE)AHEE:

BRETHHREESHAEBE LR ZE

E2

ErmBEERarEEREEER 2R

o -
‘o

BroHmEERAEEREMH®RERS (2
BEMMAEERE) &

BrmmEBRANEERM‘RERAH
B AR 75 B EE m e

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2020



Report of the Directors

EEFWE

3. In view of the expiry of the Group Master Services
Agreement and the BP Group Master Services Agreement
on 18 December 2020, the Group and the BP Group
entered into () the Group Master Services Agreement
dated 11 December 2020 (the “Renewed Group Master
Services Agreement”) in relation to the renewal of the
Group Master Services Agreement and the continuation
of the provision of various services by the Group to
the BP Group; and (ii) the BP Group Master Services
Agreement dated 11 December 2020 (the “Renewed BP
Group Master Services Agreement”) in relation to the
renewal of the BP Group Master Services Agreement and
the continuation of the provision of various services by
the BP Group to the Group, both for a further term of
three years commencing from 19 December 2020 and
expiring on 18 December 2023 on substantially similar
terms as the Group Master Services Agreement and the
BP Group Master Services Agreement.

As stated in the announcements of the Company dated
11 December 2017, 22 December 2017 and 11 December
2020, the pricing policy under the Group Master Services
Agreement, the BP Group Master Services Agreement, the
Renewed Group Master Services Agreement and the Renewed
BP Group Master Services Agreement will be based on the
nature of transactions from time to time entered into between
the Group and the BP Group as follows:

(@  relating to the transactions on provision of office space
by the Group to the BP Group, the Group will have
regard to the then prevailing market licence fee for
similar type and size of space in the nearby locations,
and/or consult reputable agents for benchmarks of
assessment for at least two comparables;

(b) relating to the transactions on provision of advertising
spaces by the Group to the BP Group and by the BP
Group to the Group for its own use by way of booking,
the price will be determined by the business team of the
Group based on the then prevailing market conditions,
industry practices and rate offered to independent third
parties; and

(o) relating to the other transactions, the Group will from
time to time obtain quotations from suppliers and/
or make price enquiries for the same or similar type
of service for at least two comparables so as to offer
the same or more favourable terms in the Group’s
perspective, to the BP Group.

Proper internal control measures have been in place to review,
approve and access all these transactions.
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Report of the Directors

At any time during the terms of the Group Master Services
Agreement, the BP Group Master Services Agreement, the
Renewed Group Master Services Agreement and the Renewed
BP Group Master Services Agreement, the Group and the BP
Group may enter into individual agreement(s) in relation to
any of the services contemplated thereunder upon and subject
to the terms and conditions thereof.

The Company set the annual caps for each of the following
categories of the transactions for the three years from
19 December 2017 to 18 December 2020 (both dates
inclusive) and the further three years from 19 December 2020
to 18 December 2023 (both dates inclusive):

(@)  Provision of various services by the Group to the BP
Group; and

(b)  Provision of various services by the BP Group to the
Group.

During the Year, the approximate aggregate service fees
received or paid by the Group and the annual caps in respect
of each category of the transactions are set out below:
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Approximate aggregate
services fees for
the period from

1 January 2020 to

Annual cap for
the period from
1 January 2020 to

Category 18 December 2020 18 December 2020

H-B-ZFF H=-B-ZTF

—HA—HBZ —A—B%

—s-=2f = L

+TZA+NBHEZ TZAtTN\BHBEZ

Rl BAOBEREER FELR

HK$°000 HK$’000

FETT FET

Provision of various services by the ZANE&EBEFELARE 1,130 10,000
Group to the BP Group RSB RS

Provision of various services by the 1= #) 3 & B [ A & 1,390 7,600
BP Group to the Group e % & AR S
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Approximate aggregate
services fees for Annual cap for
the period from

19 December 2020 to

the period from
19 December 2020 to

Category 31 December 2020 31 December 2020

H=—F=-%F H=—F=-%F

+t=ZAthBEE t=ZAt+hBEZE

—E-%F —F-%F

tZA=+—-H#Mz +=ZA=+-HHEZ

5l BROBREER FELR

HK$°000 HK$000

TET FET

Provision of various services by the ZAEBEMETAHRE 28 750
Group to the BP Group EHEBRS

Provision of various services by the BT RER M AL 50 230
BP Group to the Group mEHEBRS

The Directors considered that the transactions mentioned
in sub-paragraphs 1 to 3 above will benefit the Group
in maximising operational efficiency and management
effectiveness, enhance versatility in content production and
distribution, and provide increased exposure in the internet
related media business, to further strengthen the Group’s
operations and maximise the Group’s media business value.

Under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the transactions
mentioned in sub-paragraphs 1 to 3 above constituted
continuing connected transactions (“CCT”) of the Group
for the Year which require disclosures in this annual
report. Details of such transactions were disclosed in the
announcements of the Company dated 11 December 2017,
22 December 2017 and 11 December 2020.

The Company’s auditor were engaged to report on the Group’s
CCT for the Year in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor have issued a letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the Group’s
CCT mentioned above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules confirming that nothing has come to their
attention that causes them to believe the CCT:

(1 have not been approved by the Board,
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Report of the Directors

(i) were not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group; and

(iii)  have exceeded the maximum aggregate annual caps disclosed
in previous announcements of the Company.

All independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the Group’s CCT for the Year and the Group’s
internal audit report, and confirmed that the Group’s CCT for
the Year were entered into:

() in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i)  on normal commercial terms; and

(iiD in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the
disclosure requirements applicable for the CCT in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, there were no connected transactions
or CCT, which were required to be disclosed under the Listing
Rules, entered into between the Company or its subsidiaries
and a connected person during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Details of the Group’s connected transaction and CCT
subsisting at any time during or at the end of the Year are
disclosed in the section “Connected Transactions” above.
Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or his or her
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party at any time
during or at the end of the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in normal
course of business during the Year are set out in note 34
to the financial statements. In relation to those related party
transactions that constituted connected transactions as defined
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are disclosed in the
section “Connected Transactions” above.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of
the Company’s total number of issued shares was held by the
public as at the date of this report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2021 AGM.

OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Potential Disposal of Shares

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements dated
1 November 2019, 5 November 2019, 5 December 2019,
3 January 2020, 4 February 2020, 4 March 2020, 3 April
2020, 4 May 2020, 5 June 2020, 3 July 2020, 3 August 2020,
3 September 2020, 17 September 2020, 22 October 2020,
23 November 2020, 24 December 2020, 26 January 2021 and
3 February 2021 respectively (the “Previous Announcements”).
As disclosed in the Previous Announcements, Mr. Ho Tsu
Kwok, Charles (“Mr. Ho”), an executive director of the
Company, the chairman of the Board and a controlling
shareholder of the Company, was in preliminary discussion
with an independent potential purchaser (the “Potential
Purchaser”) regarding, amongst others, a possible sale of
an interest in the Company (the “Possible Transaction”).
The discussion between Mr. Ho and the Potential Purchaser
in relation to the Possible Transaction was terminated on
28 January 2021. Mr. Ho and the Potential Purchaser have
not entered into any formal or legally binding agreement in
respect of the Possible Transaction. Please refer to the Previous
Announcements for further details of the Possible Transaction.
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Report of the Directors

Liquidation of Subsidiary in Australia

On 5 February 2020, Sing Tao Newspapers Pty. Limited,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
incorporated in Australia, was in a creditors’ voluntary
liquidation, and the joint and several liquidators were
appointed on the same date. Please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 26 February 2020 for details.

Placing of Shares by Controlling Shareholder

On 16 July 2020, a placing agreement between Luckman,
a company wholly-owned by Mr. Ho, and an independent
placing agent (the “Placing Agent”) was completed. Pursuant to
the placing agreement, the Placing Agent agreed to place and
Luckman agreed to sell 150,000,000 shares of the Company
(the “Placing Share(s)”) to certain independent investors at a
price of HK$150 per Placing Share. As such, Mr. Ho’s total
indirect shareholding in the Company held through Luckman
reduced from 426,197,500 shares to 276,197,500 shares or from
approximately 48.50% to 31.43% of the entire issued share
capital of the Company as at 16 July 2020. Details of the
placing of shares by Luckman was set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 16 July 2020.

Renewal of Continuing Connected Transactions

On 11 December, 2020, the Group entered into the Renewed
Group Master Services Agreement and the Renewed BP Group
Master Services Agreement with the BP Group, whereby
the Group provide the BP Group with various services
and the BP Group provide the Group with various services
respectively, both for a period of three years commencing
from 19 December 2020 and expiring on 18 December
2023. An announcement of the Company was made on
11 December 2020. Details are set out in the section
“Connected Transactions” above.
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Disposal of Shares by Controlling Shareholder

On 28 January 2021, Mr. Ho and Luckman entered into a
sale and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”) with an
independent purchaser (the “Purchaser”), whereby Luckman
conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchaser conditionally
agreed to purchase, 246,552,045 shares of the Company
(the “Sale Share(s)”), representing approximately 28% of the
entire issued share capital of the Company as at 28 January
2021, at HK$1.50 per Sale Share and a total consideration
of HK$309,828,067.50 (the “Transaction”). Completion of the
Transaction is subject to the conditions precedent under the
Agreement. Upon completion of the Transaction, the Purchaser
will hold 246,552,045 shares of the Company; before such
completion, Mr. Ho, through Luckman, shall dispose of the
remaining 29,645,455 shares of the Company, to third parties
independent of Mr. Ho, Luckman, the Purchaser together with
its sole shareholder and parties acting in concert with any
of them. Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
3 February 2021 for details.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Ernst & Young ZXKEBFTEE KA TelE 3E: +852 2846 9888

22/F, CITIC Tower EBPRFEEIR Faxf& E: +852 2868 4432
§i 1 Tim Mei Avenue s K E224 ey.com

Central, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Sing Tao News Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sing Tao News Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 86 to 229, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position
as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’'s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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e
EY::

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided
in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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MRERER(E

Key audit matter

MREERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RERTEERREELSEANG

Valuation of properties

YR 1E

As at 31 December 2020, property, plant and equipment,
and investment properties held by the Group amounted
to approximately HK$1,287,753,000 in aggregate, of which
HK$907,435,000 related to owner-occupied buildings
measured at fair value, HK$23,050,000 related to prepaid
land lease measured at fair value and HK$119,707,000
related to investment properties. The valuation process
was inherently subjective and dependent on a number
of estimates. The Group engaged an external valuer to
perform the valuation for the Group’s properties measured
at fair value.

MW-ZBE-_ZTFE+-A=+—H  S£ESEVE W
EREBEAREEMES DL KEL287753,0008 T &
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FHE TECRRZEMG - BEEEEEBIINEGFE
MR A TEFEN BEEWEETHEE-

The related disclosures are included in notes 3, 13 and
14 to the financial statements.

BRABRBERNIHEHERRMES - 13%14 -

Our audit included the
independence and competence of the external valuer
employed by the Group; evaluating the valuation
methodology and the assumptions adopted by the valuer,

with the assistance from our internal valuation experts;

procedures considering

evaluating the data used as inputs for the valuation and
comparing such data with market data of comparable
properties;
assumptions and judgements used in the valuation.

and discussing with management on key
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

MRERER(E

Key audit matter

MEERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RERTEERREELSENG

Impairment assessment on trade receivables

JE Y AR 3R 18 A

As at 31 December 2020, the Group recorded trade
receivables of approximately HK$210,456,000 before
impairment of HK$17,276,000. The Group’s accounting for
impairment on trade receivables was based on a forward-
looking expected credit loss (“ECL”) approach, and the
measurement on the Group’s trade receivables under
such approach was estimated by management through
an application of judgement and use of highly subjective
assumptions. The impact of economic factors, both current
and future, and forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors were also considered in management’s assessment
of the likelihood of recovery from customers.

R-Z-_THFE+_A=+—H ' BEEEHESEKEZRY
210,456,000 7T (F1 Bk 78 1517,276,0008 7T A1) » & &
REBAIEMNTERERABX(FERERBEXDEX RIE
WEERFORBEAR  MAERERT 8 BEBEERER
WA ESREREBEDMNGERALE  HETEEH-F
BEFEREFPIWE AT - e EEB AT MR KL
BREMFEURABEARNEBEANNERSE -

Due to the significance of trade receivables and the
uncertainty inherent in such estimates, we considered this
as a key audit matter.

HRERERNEZEERZSEEBNTETEME - &
MRA/U T —FEREZEE -

The related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 21 to
the financial statements.

BERBRBESN T HHRRME3R21 -

Our audit procedures included assessing the controls
over the monitoring of trade receivables; evaluating
the methodologies, inputs and assumptions used by
the Group in calculating the expected
impairment understanding and discussing
with management for judgements used under the ECL
approach; assessing historical loss pattern and data, and
management’s basis of judgement applied on this data
under the ECL approach. We also evaluated whether the
historical loss rates are appropriately adjusted based on
the current economic conditions and forward-looking
information.

credit loss

allowance;
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MRERER(E

Key audit matter

MREERER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RERTEERREELSEANG

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment

Y& - BEREREREF S

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had property,
plant and equipment amounted to approximately
HK$1,168,046,000, comprising right-of-use assets of
HK$48,782,000 and owned assets of HK$1,119,264,000.
In view of the operating loss of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2020, management performed an
impairment assessment on the Group’s property, plant
and equipment so as to determine whether the carrying
amounts of these assets was higher than the recoverable
amounts as at 31 December 2020. The impairment test
was based on the recoverable amounts of individual cash-
generating units to which these assets were associated
with, and the recoverable amounts of the relevant cash-
generating units were determined based on value-in-
use calculation using the discounted cash flows method.
An impairment of approximately HK$23,324,000 was
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2020 by the Group.
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Our audit procedures included, among others, evaluating

the Group’s policies and procedures of impairment
assessment, having discussions with senior management
on the Group’s business plans, assessing management’s
bases and significant assumptions adopted in the value-
expected

future operating performance of the cash-generating units,

in-use calculation including, among others,
growth rates and discount rates with reference to the latest
operating performance and historical data of the Group.
For discount rates used in determining the recoverable
amounts of the cash-generating units, we involved our
internal valuation experts to assist in our assessment. We
have reviewed management’s sensitivity analysis on key
assumptions and discounted cash flows projections for
any significant impact on the recoverable amounts of the
cash-generating units. We have also assessed the adequacy
of the relevant disclosures of impairment assessment in
the financial statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) ARELERE
Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter
MREREHE RERTEEFREXRSENEE

Impairment assessment on property, plant and equipment (continued)

YWE - BE KRR E G ()

Management’s impairment assessment process involves
significant judgement and estimations in determining key
assumptions used, including, among others, expected
future operating performance of the cash-generating units,
growth rates and discount rates. They are sensitive to
future market conditions and the actual performance of
the cash-generating units.
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The related disclosures are included in notes 3 and 13 to
the financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

8 S % BEM R S

e
EY::

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee
in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if]
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e
EY:

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue
as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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e
EY::

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

e
EY:

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ki Wing Yee, Winnie.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HEZE—E-_ZFF+-A=+—HIFFEF

Notes 2020 2019
i it —2=-%F —TNF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FETT
REVENUE L ON 5 825,747 1,261,779
Cost of sales £ & B AN (554,268) (794,656)
Gross profit EH 271,479 467,123
Other income and gains, net Hab g A KR Uz F5a 5 75,236 18,579
Distribution expenses 7 85 B (159,295) (213,569
Administrative expenses TR X (234,710) (275,180)
Other expenses, net Hth B 2 H#R (34,653) 1,97
Finance cost [ AN 6 (1,294) (2,418)
Share of profits and losses of: FEAE T3 R A M) K & 18 -
Joint ventures SR (7,797) (3,204)
Associates ER RN 3,540 3,873
LOSS BEFORE TAX Br B AT ES 18 7 (87,494) (16,767)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frigfime, (%) 10 6,585 (5,909
LOSS FOR THE YEAR AATEEAEAL
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF KEEEIE
THE COMPANY (80,909) (22,676)
LOSS PER SHARE ERTEBRESEAEWN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY BREE
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE — (Al
COMPANY — (HK cents) 12
Basic AR (9.20) (2.61)
Diluted e (9.20) (2.61)
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended 31 December 2020 # 2 —ZF =

n\/ N 1 @ J‘I&

EFEFA= AL

Notes 2020 2019
k=3 —E-FF —NF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
LOSS FOR THE YEAR rEEEBR (80,909) (22,676)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME H At 2 H W &
Other comprehensive income that may A& BRI Al gE EE 37 0 48 i
be reclassified to profit or loss in BREOHHEM2EK R
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of B EGINEFEHE X EZ5E
foreign operations 7,015 2,725
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign 4 A BE/EINE L 8B L AEH
operation deregistered during the LENOERE
year (346) 1,677)
Net other comprehensive income that A& BAfI AJgE E ¥ f8
may be reclassified to profit or loss BamEMm2EK s F5E
in subsequent periods 6,669 1,048
Other comprehensive income that will LA BN REE ¥ H fH 3
not be reclassified to profit or loss in BREOEM2EK LS :
subsequent periods:
Gains on property revaluation MESHE J—IQ i 13 18,886 11,787
Income tax effect EREE 27 2,843 (2,057
21,729 9,730
Share of other comprehensive income of &G & & A A HAh 2 H UK &=
a joint venture 23,109 —
Net other comprehensive income that A& BT ee E#T D B #E
will not be reclassified to profit or BaRrE 2w FE
loss in subsequent periods 44,838 9,730
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR BRFBFE Hi 2 mE U &
THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 51,507 10,778
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR ~ ARAREEABIEFE
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO EHEBRAR
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY (29,402) (11,898)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI &

31 December 2020 —FE-—FF+-H=+—H

Notes 2020 2019
i it —2=-%F —TNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FE T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WEEZE 13 1,168,046 1,186,554
Investment properties wWEME 14 119,707 119,122
Other intangible assets EtmEEE 16 100 100
Investments in joint ventures REELEZRE 17 72,750 56,661
Investments in associates REERRIZTE 18 23,449 20,572
Equity investments designated at fair EBERBEATFETAEM
value through other comprehensive PEHEEZERERE
income 19 47 47
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABZEREZTH
profit or loss BE 23 10,051 10,651
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 27 3,006 3,179
Other deposits paid Hte#ke 22 4,291 75,903
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 1,401,447 1,472,789
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories PEY 20 18,127 35,574
Trade receivables & R 3R 21 193,180 285,736
Prepayments, other receivables and other JE{JFIA « Hth f& I 3B &
assets HEmE F 22 28,408 35,335
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFHEFAERZEREZ BB
profit or loss BE 23 153,149 76,439
Tax recoverable A] Uy 6] % 18 7,414 5,050
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEIER 24 499,982 479,840
Total current assets MENVEEBE 900,260 917,974
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBAEE
Trade and bills payables JENEER R EE 25 33,420 37,579
Other payables and accruals Eo b JE 508 K FEETRIB 26 147,815 183,028
Lease liabilities fﬂ E8E 15 21,883 29,328
Tax payable FER B IR 169 1,577
Total current liabilities mBABERE 203,287 251,512
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 696,973 666,462
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ERABEECEERE
LIABILITIES 2,098,420 2,139,251
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ire BIE IR O &

31 December 2020 —F-—FF+-H=+—H

Notes 2020 2019
i it —T=FHF —TNF
HK$000 HK$000
F#ET FET
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT ERABEECEELE
LIABILITIES 2,098,420 2,139,251
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBAE
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIEAE 27 113,390 120,188
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 6,803 15,715
Total non-current liabilities B BERE 120,193 135,903
Net assets BEFE 1,978,227 2,003,348
EQUITY % #E
Equity attributable to owners of the EAN/NSIE RN g
Company
Issued capital BEITRAR 28 176,109 175,325
Reserves G 30 1,802,118 1,828,023
Total equity % #E 48 58 1,978,227 2,003,348
Siu Sai Wo Lau Chung Man, Louis
A 8l 3
Director Director
2 EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FE-_ZFF+-A=+—HIFFEZF

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEFAES
Issued
ordinary Share Share Asset  Exchange
share  premium Contributed option revaluation fluctuation  Retained Total
Notes capital account surplus reserve reserve reserve profits equity
BRT & BRE EEEff EXRD
W#  EBRE B HAABH ik i HE RERN REAE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000  HK$000  HKS$000
FET FET FET  FEZ FET FET FET FET
(Note 28)  (Note 28) (Note 30)
(Hiatzs)  (Hitzs) (Hrit30)
At 1 January 2019 -NF—-A—-8 173,222 5,442 407,890 26,053 293,595 (44,877) 1254971 2,136,296
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - (22,676) (22,676)
Other comprehensive income for the year: FFEE 2 HEY% :
Gains on property revaluation, MEEHYE  NBHRE
net of tax - - - - 9,730 - - 9,730
Exchange differences related to RENEBEENELER
foreign operations - - - - - 2,725 - 2,725
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign BN EHTHEELIEL 2
operation upon deregistration ENNERE - - - - - (1,677 - 1,677
Total comprehensive income/(loss) FE2EKSE/(BE)EE8
for the year - - - - 9,730 1,048 (22,676) (11,898)
Issue of ordinary shares ROTLRR 28 2103 13,219 - (3,725) - - - 11,597
Equity-settled share option arrangements [ 4 & 5 8 IR # % HF 29 - - - 1,625 - - - 1,625
Transfer of share option reserve upon the R RWEMRERERBREEE
forfeiture of share options - - - (276) - - 251 (25)
Final 2018 dividend paid BRAZZ-N\ERHARE - - - - - 17,322) (17,322)
Special 2018 dividend paid BERNZZ-A\FRHIKE - - - - - - ®6,61D)  (86,611)
Interim 2019 dividend “E-nERHRE 11 - - - - - - (30314) (303149
At 31 December 2019 —E-NFt-A=1-RH 175,325 38,661¢ 407,890 23,677¢ 303,325 (43,8200 1098,299* 2,003,348
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2020 &%

I\‘/ \
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Attributable to owners of the Company

EE K

F+-A=+—AIFEE

ARRERAES
Issued
ordinary Share Share Asset  Exchange
share  premium Contributed option revaluation fluctuation  Retained Total
Notes capital account surplus reserve reserve reserve profits equity
BRT & & BRE BE ERRD
Wi EBRE B LONA] M EREE #E  REEN REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$'000 HKS$ 000 HK$000 HKS$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET  FEZ FET FET FET FET
(Note 28)  (Note 28) (Note 30)
(Bretzs)  (Br2s) (Wi#30)
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-2F-A-H 175,325 38,061 407,890 23,677 303,325 (43,829) 1,098,299 2,003,348
Loss for the year rEEER - - - - - - (80,909 (80,909)
Other comprehensive income for the year: FFEE 2 HEY % :
Gains on property revaluation, net of MEEHYE  NBRHE
tax - - - - 21,729 - - 21,729
Exchange differences related to foreign ~ HEBNEBEBNE L ZH
operations - - - - - 7,015 - 7,015
Reclassification adjustment for a foreign BN EHFEELIEL 2
operation upon deregistration ENNERE - - - - - (346) - (346)
Share of other comprehensive income EhasRRA 2 AR
of a joint venture - - - - 23,109 - - 23,109
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the FEZ2AWE /(BE) B8
year - - - - 44,838 6,009 (80,909) (29,402)
Issue of ordinary shares BOERR 28 784 4,801 - (1,418) - - 4,227
Equity-settled share option arrangements R4 B i R % 29 - - - 54 - - - 54
Transfer of share option reserve upon the FORUEEREABRBRERE
forfeiture of share options - - - (176) = - 176 -
At 31 December 2020 R-B-BE+-A=+-A 176,109 43,5224 407800+ 22,137 348,163" (7160 1017566+ 1978,227
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves ELEEEEBRRBART i?\/:.\ ;I\;ﬁéz AR FTANEGE
of HK$1,802,118,000 (2019: HK$1,828,023,000) in the 11,802,118,0007% 7T (=& — JL & © 1,828,023,000

consolidated statement of financial position.

/% 713)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FE-_ZFF+-A=+—HIFFEZF

Notes 2020 2019
s -85 —TAF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET T T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBELEZRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax M B AT E 18 (87,494) 16,767)
Adjustments for: EER T SRR
Finance cost RE AR 6 1,294 2,418
Share of profits and losses of joint ventures — fE{G & & b3 m H| & E5 18 7,797 3,204
Share of profits and losses of associates FEAGHS A Rm A & B8 (3,540) (3,873)
Bank interest income RITHBWA 5 (3,352) (5,372)
Investment income BERA 5 (3,484) (3,955
Dividend income from equity investments REERMIRE 2R EKA 5 (263) 190
Fair value losses/(gains), net on: NFEEE (W) FRE:
Investment properties REME 5 108) 2,959
Financial assets at fair value through profit BATEFABREER W
or loss EE 5 (5,042) 832
Derivative financial instruments MEEHBIA
— transactions not qualifying as hedges - PREEHEHPER LIRS 5 126 397
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary B —ENBAR zWE 5 (346) 1,677
Gain on lease modifications HEET R 5 63) -
COVID-19-related rent concessions from AR T E20198 MK R =
lessors HENHESER 7 (2,452) -
Loss on disposal of an unlisted equity HEFLETRRERE 2 BB
investment - 1,222
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, &Y - B bE'% NEHEBZ
plant and equipment EiE (s 5 1,209 (2,029)
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BB K& ﬁ HEEA
equipment (other than rightof-use assets) REEERIN 7 81,801 85,466
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TREEENE 7 31,003 32,075
Impairment of trade receivables FEU R OB E 7 7,176 8,198
Impairment of items of property, plant and ¥ % - B E L& EIEBRE
equipment (including right-of-use assets) (BEERAEEE) 7 23,324 5,561
Impairment of inventories FERE 7 - 5
Reversal of impairment of a loan to an f A — BB QAR
associate R ZRE 5 - 1,057
Write-off of trade receivables P& uﬁl AR R 8 7 6 160
Write-off of items of property, plant and Y - BB &1 B
equipment 7 1,226 -
Write-off of lease liabilities HEBREME 7 - (4,610)
Reversal of long outstanding payables B & BRI FE T 308 5 - (6,000
Equity-settled share option expense Mg e 45 B AR S'Z 7 54 1,625
48,872 98,586
Decrease in inventories &R 17,447 23,896
Decrease in trade receivables, prepayments, JEUWBRFK » TE{TFRIE ~ EAbEUL
other receivables and other assets RIE N b B EE R 98,927 80,078
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets at fair IR AFEFTABREZHEEE
value through profit or loss L, (g ) (71,068) 3,932
Increase in derivative financial instruments PTHE SR T A (126) (397)
Decrease in trade and bills payables, other — JEfTERFR KRR - HAs B FKIB
payables and accruals K PRI L 2 (41,287) (73,322)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE-—FE-—FEF+-HA=+—HIFZF

Notes 2020 2019
i e e i —TNF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FETT
Cash generated from operations KEXBREER® 52,765 132,773
Hong Kong profits tax paid EHEENEN (613) (18,472)
Overseas tax paid EAUE N IR (951) (515)
Interest element on lease liabilities HEBEZNBIHBMH 6 1,294) (2,418)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEXBEE 2R REFHE 49,907 111,368
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEBELEZRERE
Interest received 2R & 3,352 5,372
Investment income ‘ERA 3,484 3,955
Dividend received from an associate SR /NI Il g 1,635 -
Dividends received from listed equity P ETERERE R E
investments 263 190
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEWE BERZBIER
equipment (17,955) (21,221
Deposits paid for purchases of items of BEWE BERRBEEZ
property, plant and equipment B - (9,950
Proceeds from disposal of an equity investment (HE¥ETE AL A FEFABGZER
designed at fair value through profit or loss  Z#Ez 1% & FT15 %A - 3,302
Repayment of a loan from an associate m—EBEARRENERZ
R - 5,600
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEYH - MELZEEE NG
plant and equipment KIA 811 3,213
Decrease in non-pledged time deposits with HEERREIHEHBRA=@EA 2
original maturity of more than three months &1 & Hi 7 FOR 4
when acquired (71,088) (40,612)
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREXBKFERAZESREFE (79,498) (50,151
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEFBHELEZRERE
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BT ERRATEHRIA 28 4,227 11,597
Principal portion of lease payments MENFKz AR BN 32(0) (28,085) (29,371
Dividends paid 2R AR B - (134,247)
Net cash flows used in financing activities METEFERZREREFE (23,858) (152,021

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2020



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
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Year ended 31 December 2020 #HE—FE-_ZFF+-A=+—HIFFEZF

Notes 2020 2019
M &t T_BF —ET-NEF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERBASEERERLFEH
EQUIVALENTS (53,449) (90,804)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year E %ﬂ Ziﬁfﬁ kR&E Tﬁ THH 408,071 496,470
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net BE B FY 2,503 2,405
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF ER 2B SRR ESEEHER
YEAR 357,125 408,071
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND HRERASEEBBELER DT
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTES 24 226,180 231,787
Non-pledged time deposits AT BREFEXR 24 273,802 248,053
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the — FEHARNKRAMMANIRE MRS
statement of financial position %HIEH 499,982 479,840
Non-pledged time deposits with original REGRRIAABR=EAZ
maturity of more than three months when &K 7F Bi 17 53X
acquired 24 (142,857) (71,769)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the IRERERANFTAMNIRE RIRE
statement of cash flows wﬁ IBH 357,125 408,071
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Sing Tao News Corporation Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

involved in the

During the vyear, the Group was

following principal activities:

. media
. property holding
. investment holding

In the opinion of the directors,
Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin

Luckman Trading
Islands, is the Company’s controlling shareholder.
BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties, land and buildings, certain
derivative financial instruments, equity investments and
debt securities, and financial assets at fair value which
have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when

otherwise indicated.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the
Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee
(i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current

ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

1.
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2.1

—E-FFf+-H=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(@  the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(© the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group

are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of
a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for
as an equity transaction.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a

derecognises (1)

subsidiary, it
the assets
and liabilities of the

(including goodwill)
subsidiary, (i) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (i) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework

for Financial Reporting 2018 and the following revised

HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements.

Amendments to Detinition of a Business
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions (early adopted)

Amendment to
HKFRS 16
Amendments to Definition of Material
HKAS 1 and

HKAS 8

2.1

2.2

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2020 —FE-—FF+=-H=+—H

B EE(E)
ReREZEEE)

MAEBXEH —HNBAR 2EH#E - 8
HERHEEROZMBA 7Z§§(Eiﬁﬁgﬁ)&
BE - GOEREERER ZERAE RGN
BmANEE B REEZH REROK
REZAF¥E  WAIRBERKE 2 AFE
RGiDiBm R P E M E L E A 2 B B8 -
QEHIJEAﬁ@EEWAWﬁﬁu/uZK’E.Fgﬁ_“B
MEFH»BEREBEZIREB RN (WMER) -
A BN A K%.E?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%@ﬁ?ﬁ@iﬁ%ﬁﬁ
ﬁ%@ﬁ°

B BENREZED

AEBERN _—F-NFHBEHREM R
VHEAFERBRREREAATRKE]E
B R EER -

%.5;‘%%%%&%%%% HEHHEE
F35RE
E/%EM&%&%QE,JJ”’ FIREE E
9% « BB TR

%’39%}%&555% U 7%

o E AR B7HRASE]
E,%EM‘M&%QEEJ% E220197 4k 175 2 16 B
1657 & 7] B 2 (B R (12 57

)

ERBGENFEIRN EAMNTE
%.S/EE.EMEEJJ £85%

f?u]—

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2020



Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 5 2% P

31 December 2020 —FE-—ZFF+=-HA=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs
are described below:

(@) Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
2018 (the “Conceptual Framework”) sets out
a comprehensive set of concepts for financial
reporting and standard setting, and provides
guidance for preparers of financial statements
in developing consistent accounting policies and
assistance to all parties to understand and interpret
the standards. The Conceptual Framework
includes new chapters on measurement and
reporting financial performance, new guidance
on the derecognition of assets and liabilities,
and updated definitions and recognition criteria
for assets and liabilities. It also clarifies the
roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement
uncertainty in financial reporting. The Conceptual
Framework is not a standard, and none of the
concepts contained therein override the concepts
or requirements in any standard. The Conceptual
Framework did not have any significant impact
on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b)

©

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide

additional guidance on the definition of a
business. The amendments clarify that for an
integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed
to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are
capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on
whether acquired inputs and acquired substantive
processes together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs. The amendments have
also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus
on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary
activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide
guidance to assess whether an acquired process
is substantive and introduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group
has applied the amendments prospectively to
transactions or other events that occurred on or
after 1 January 2020. The amendments did not
have any impact on the financial position and

performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS
7 address issues affecting financial reporting in
the period before the replacement of an existing
interest rate benchmark with an alternative risk-
free rate (“RFR”).
temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting

The amendments provide
to continue during the period of uncertainty
before the introduction of the alternative RFR. In
addition, the amendments require companies to
provide additional information to investors about
their hedging relationships which are directly
affected by these uncertainties. The amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group as the Group does
not have any interest rate hedging relationships.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

@

(e

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the pandemic and only if (i) the change in
lease payments results in revised consideration for
the lease that is substantially the same as, or less
than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change; (i) any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due
on or before 30 June 2021; and (iii) there is no
substantive change to other terms and conditions
of the lease. The amendment is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020
with earlier application permitted and shall be
applied retrospectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020,
certain monthly lease payments for the leases of
the Group’s furniture, fixtures, equipment and
others have been reduced by the lessors upon
reducing the scale of production as a result of the
pandemic and there are no other changes to the
terms of the leases. The Group has early adopted
the amendment on 1 January 2020 and elected
not to apply lease modification accounting for
all rent concessions granted by the lessors as a
result of the pandemic during the year ended 31
December 2020. Accordingly, a reduction in the
lease payments arising from the rent concessions
of HK$2,452,000 has been accounted for as a
variable lease payment by derecognising part of
the lease liabilities and crediting to profit or loss
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a
new definition of material. The new definition
states that information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make
on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on
the nature or magnitude of information, or both.
The amendments did not have any significant
impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet
effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS

9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2!

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®

Insurance Contracts?®

Insurance Contracts® °

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current® >

Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?
Amendments to HKFRS
1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative
Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 41%
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but
available for adoption
> As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1,

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the
corresponding wording with no change in conclusion
As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17
issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to
extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers
to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a
reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add
to HKFRS 3 an exception to its recognition principle
for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework to
determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The
exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS 37
or HK(FRIO)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an
entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or
HKIFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify
that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022.
Since the amendments apply prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or
after the date of first application, the Group will not be
affected by these amendments on the date of transition.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt with in the
previous amendments which affect financial reporting
when an existing interest rate benchmark is replaced
with an alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments
provide a practical expedient to allow the effective
interest rate to be updated without adjusting the
carrying amount when accounting for changes in the
basis for determining the contractual cash flows of
financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform
and the new basis for determining the contractual cash
flows is economically equivalent to the previous basis
immediately preceding the change. In addition, the
amendments permit changes required by the interest rate
benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations
and hedge documentation without the hedging
relationship being discontinued. Any gains or losses
that could arise on transition are dealt with through
the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and
recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also
provide a temporary relief to entities from having to
meet the separately identifiable requirement when an
RFR is designated as a risk component. The relief
allows an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to
assume that the separately identifiable requirement is
met, provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR
risk component to become separately identifiable within
the next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments
require an entity to disclose additional information to
enable users of financial statements to understand the
effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s
financial instruments and risk management strategy.
The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 and shall be
applied retrospectively, but entities are not required to
restate the comparative information. The Group had no
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31
December 2020 and the amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2020 —FE-—FF+=-H=+—H

23 CEMEMKRERZEBMBREER

(#)

BAMBMELERFER  BAFHERE
395% - BEM B MEERETR E%Eﬁ%i&
EREBNEAR KRB BB R EERFI65RER]
HEMEITREREENEE FHEFEEMU
SHEERAZETERREANEZELERGEE
B mE o B2MERIBFTIRM —BRAIITRE A
EONAHERETVBEERBBESNERES
MEMELEBARE - WZESH AR
HENEMEEEK BETANRERE
WFEREEKE TEREEZEHANAE
£ A EFER Z"J?ﬁ’ﬁﬂ/ﬁuﬂ¥ﬁ§ﬁ@ i
Oh - ZASET R T E R IR TE R E R X
MEEERNFRBFNEE - MBAKLEE S
R - BERNAREENEMNKRLEETD
\%ﬂ%‘}%ﬂﬂ%#&%ﬁ@ﬁ‘l%%mﬂ@*%ﬁi?r%
K2 W 3R 3 O AR A0 1 B FACEIRIYEN
RH-IBERRE Lu¢*”“E§$}EE?
BT RE R }ﬂz\ﬂﬁﬂi//\ﬁiﬁﬁT%&%U%ﬁ
E°%ﬁﬁwmﬁﬁmﬁhﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
W BB AHEMNAE - AEE%JZ‘/,\/\IE%E\
HMEART BERRRKD N ARK24E ARNK R
BEMEA o AN REFTERERBERSE
HNEEL "’“EM%#&EE{EFH%T%%UK% Bl
E%TE FHETAREBREERBHTE -
ZIEFTR_E—F—A— B2 BRBNE
Eﬁﬁf’ﬁixﬁl WETFEBER HERBEA
BILRENR AEBRBE_ZT_TF+
AT BLEFEUEEMAFISRITRA
BN WHEAZEFET AU ANEEN
BHREREAEMNERTE -

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2020



Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 5 2% P

31 December 2020 —FE-—ZFF+=-HA=+—H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS
10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale
or contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For
a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be
applied prospectively. The previous mandatory effective
date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a
new mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments
are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements
for classifying liabilities as current or non-current.
The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to
defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with specified conditions, the entity has a
right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of
the reporting period if it complies with those conditions
at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by
the likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to
defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement
of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2020

23 CEMEMKRERZEBEMBREER

(&)

EBUBREENBIHE LTSS ENE
285 (ZE——F)EFREE B MEE
AIZE105R BB B g A ZE 285 (2T ——F)
R EEREBENRRAE N EZHED
EITAEEMBERETHT 8 - Z2EE5]
BREREEHEBENRRNAEDEHET
BEEREBEIARANBERIREAZTEER
W EE - SR TEXNBAERIHN S RE
EXGMs ZXPELEHNEXEERER
ABEREENAFIEEB(HERNIEEERZ
BENRRAEELENTHEARR) - 2518
FIEANAKKREME -FESHAMAERE
—RNE-ACBEE B M B REELFEI05
MBS ENF8HE(CE——F) BTN
LRI ERBH  RERBEEZHBEA
AIRAELEGAZIRITEABETHNA
FIEKRBE - R ZEEFTREAERA -

FREMEMFIREBHEEIEARB X
FERBDOBRTE - ZFEIRE  HWERTE
BEABNEANZBRNZERAT AR ERK
o BMZERNEER 2GRN EAEER
BERRLERBFEER - BENDBEALTFE
ERBTEERMNTERBERENAERER
FE RFEIRBEERASBEERENS
METER - RFEINR_FT_=F—A—
ez MMM FERBEN - BREBE
A ERIREER FERZFEITEY
AEENYHERRELEETMNERNTE -

.



Notes to Financial Statements

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
item of property,
plant and equipment any proceeds from selling items

deducting from the cost of an

produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating
in the manner intended by management. Instead, an
entity recognises the proceeds from selling any such
items, and the cost of those items, in profit or loss.
The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after
the beginning of the earliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the entity first applies
the amendments. Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to
a contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling
that contract (e.g., an allocation of the depreciation
charge for an item of property, plant and equipment
used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and
administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract
and are excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable
to the counterparty under the contract. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for
which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
it first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application without
restating the comparative information. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.
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2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets
out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41.
Details of the amendment that is expected to be
applicable to the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability
are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and
the lender, including fees paid or received by
either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.
An entity applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or
after the beginning of the annual reporting period
in which the entity first applies the amendment.
The amendment is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not
expected to have a significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in Illustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease
incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position
to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of
an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about
the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share
of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated other comprehensive income, respectively.
In addition, when there has been a change recognised
directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is
included as part of the Group’s investments in associates
or joint ventures.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest
is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues
to be accounted for under the equity method. In all
other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of
significant influence or joint control and the fair value
of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal
is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in associate and joint is classified
as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discounted Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. For each business combination,
the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of net assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business
when the acquired set of activities and assets includes
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at
31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the
acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or
liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or
groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of
the cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its land and buildings, investment
properties, derivative financial instruments, equity
investments and debt securities at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset
or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in
the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset
or a liability is measured using the assumptions that
market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.
The Group wuses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 -

based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in

active markets for identical assets or

liabilities
Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly
Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of

each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial assets and
investment properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless
the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting

period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued

asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(1 has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary
or fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iiD the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(viD a person identified in (a)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viiD the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
or valuation less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure
that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount. Changes in the
values of property, plant and equipment are dealt
with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve.
If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a
deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of
the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or
loss. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited
to the statement of profit or loss to the extent of the
deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the
asset revaluation reserve to retained profits is made
for the difference between the depreciation based
on the revalued carrying amount of an asset and the
depreciation based on the asset s original cost. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of
the asset revaluation reserve realised in respect of
previous valuations is transferred to retained profits as
a movement in reserves.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Freehold land
Leasehold land

Not depreciated
Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 2% to

5%
Buildings 2% to 5%
Plant and machinery 6% to 50%

Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the
lease terms and 20% to

33%
Furniture, fixtures, 10% to 30%
equipment and others
Motor vehicles 20% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts
and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on

disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of

profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leaschold property held as a right-of-
use asset which would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property) held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the statement
of profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment
and depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated
under “Right-of-use assets” for property held as a right-
of-use asset up to the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets with finite useful lives represent
purchased data library, copyrights, trademarks and
domain names which are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives of 10 to 20
years.

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life
represents a motor vehicle registration mark, which
is tested for impairment annually individually. Such
intangible asset is not amortised. The useful life of
an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether the indefinite life
assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the
change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the
underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)
(@  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the
date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised,
initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to
ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does
not differ materially from its carrying amount.
Changes in the values of right-of-use assets are
dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation
reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient
to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the
excess of the deficit is charged to the statement
of profit or loss. Any subsequent revaluation
surplus is credited to the statement of profit or
loss to the extent of the deficit previously charged.
An annual transfer from the asset revaluation to
retained profits is made for the difference between
the depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of an asset and the depreciation based on
the asset’s original cost. On disposal of a revalued
asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations
is transferred to retained profits as a movement
in reserves.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(@)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and
the estimated useful lives of the assets are as
follows:

Leasehold land 28!/, years

Buildings 1 to 5 years
Furniture, fixtures, 1 to 5 years
equipment
and others

Motor vehicles 1 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the
lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the

payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate
at the lease commencement date because the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease
payments made. In addition, the carrying amount
of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change
in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or
rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(00  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of office
equipment and car park spaces (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-
by-lease basis.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each
of its leases as either an operating lease or a finance
lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each component on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted
for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is
included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss
due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset
to the lessee are accounted for as finance leases.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured
at amortised cost are held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income are held within a business model with the
objective of both holding to collect contractual cash
flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held
within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

SUbsequen[ measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
Dividends on equity
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

income. investments classified
are also recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established,
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and

it is probable that the economic benefits

the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or

. the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-

through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group

has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred

control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent,
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group
has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group

could be required to repay.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that
are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that are
possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected
over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that
is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Group may also consider a
financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Group is unlikely to
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements
held by the Group. A financial asset is written off when
there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has increased significantly since initial
recognition but that are not credit-impaired
financial assets and for which the Iloss
allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired
at the reporting date (but that are not
purchased or originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EABHBEME(E)

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include lease liabilities,
trade and bills payables, other payables and certain
accruals.

Slle@qUt’H[ measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category includes derivative
financial instruments entered into by the Group that
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKFRS 9. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria
in HKFRS 9 are satisfied. Gains or losses on liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss, except for
the gains or losses arising from the Group’s own credit
risk which are presented in other comprehensive income
with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised
in the statement of profit or loss does not include any
interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EABHBEME(E)

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference
between the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group invests in certain derivative financial
instruments, such as forward currency contracts and
equity, for trading purposes. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and
as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the statement of profit
or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net

Cost
cost, first-in, first-out basis or weighted average basis,

realisable value. is determined on the actual
where appropriate and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs
in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

. when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable
entities which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, for which it is intended
to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to
which the Group will be entitled in exchange for
transferring the goods or services to the customer.
The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group with a significant financial benefit for more
than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a
contract where the period between the payment by
the customer and the transfer of the promised goods
or services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing
component, using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(@)  Advertising income
Revenue from advertisements is recognised at the
point in time when the advertisements have been
published or broadcasted.

(b) Circulation income
Revenue from the sale of products is recognised
at the point in time when the newspaper and
magazines have been delivered.

© Sales of products including contents

Revenue from the sales of products is recognised
at the point in time that control of the assets is

transferred to customers, generally on delivery of

products.

(@  Provision of news and project management
services

Revenue from the provision of news and project
management services is recognised when the event
or activity takes place.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset.

Securities transactions are accounted for on a trade date
basis.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the related
goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract

(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services
to the customer).
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits
Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined
by an external valuer using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model, further details of which are given in note
29 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group’s
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. When
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings/
(loss) per share.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Pension schemes and other retirement benetfits

The Group operates defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes in Hong Kong and overseas for
those employees who are eligible and have elected
to participate in the schemes. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the participating employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the schemes. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds. When an employee
leaves the Mandatory Provident Fund Exempted ORSO
retirement benefit scheme in Hong Kong or other
retirement benefit schemes overseas prior to his/her
interest in the Group’s employer contributions vesting
fully, the ongoing contributions payable by the Group
may be reduced by the relevant amount of forfeited
contributions. In respect of the Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”),
the Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a specific amount for the employees
in Mainland China, pursuant to the local municipal
government regulations. The contributions are charged
to the statement of profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension

scheme.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)
Termination benetfits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs
in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because bye-law 140 of the Company’s bye-
laws grants the directors the authority to declare
interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (.e,,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the
date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term
not constituting a major part of the economic life of
the commercial property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially
all the fair value of the commercial property, that it
retains substantially all the significant risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of these properties which are
leased out and accounts for the contracts as operating
leases.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of
contracts with renewal options

The Group has several lease contracts that include
extension and termination options. The Group applies
judgement in evaluating whether or not to exercise
the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic
incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or
termination. After the commencement date, the Group
reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event
or change in circumstances that is within its control and
affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option
to renew or to terminate the lease (e.g., construction
of significant leasehold improvements or significant
customisation to the leased assev).

The Group includes the renewal period as part of the
lease term for leases of furniture, fixtures, equipment
and others due to the significance of these assets to its
operations. These leases have a short non-cancellable
period (i.e., up to 2 years) and there will be a significant
negative effect on production if a replacement is not
readily available.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classitication between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately. If
the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement
is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the
event previously causing the impairment no longer
exists, the Group has to exercise judgement in the
area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset
value or such event affecting the asset value has not
been in existence; (2) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management
to determine the level of impairment, including the
discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could materially affect the net
present value used in the impairment test.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate
implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental
borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities.
The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would
have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available (such
as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect
the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when
leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency).
The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available and is
required to make certain entity-specific estimates (such
as the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments
that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by product type and
customer type).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. For
instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross
domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over
the next year which can lead to an increased number
of defaults in the media sector, the historical default
rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may
also not be representative of customer’s actual default
in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group’s trade receivables is disclosed in note 21 to the
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including
the right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting
period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for
impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

Estimation of fair value of properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market of similar leases or transactions. In the
absence of such information, the Group determines
the amount within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates. In making its judgement, the Group considers
information from fair market value by reference to
independent valuations. This conclusion is supported
by an independent professionally qualified valuer who
was engaged by the Group during the year to perform
valuations on the Group’s properties. The carrying
amounts of land and buildings and investment properties
at 31 December 2020 were HK$930,485,000 (2019:
HK$938,807,000) (note 13) and HK$119,707,000 (2019:
HK$119,122,000) (note 14), respectively.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Useful lives and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

The Group depreciates the different classes of property,
plant and equipment on a straight-line basis at applicable
depreciation rates over the estimated useful life. The
useful life is estimated with reference to the wear and
tear history of property, plant and equipment. The
estimated useful life reflects the directors’ estimates
of the periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment. The carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment was HK$1,168,046,000 as at 31
December 2020 (2019: HK$1,186,554,000) (note 13).

Impairment testing of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines whether property, plant and
equipment are impaired when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying values of these
assets exceed their recoverable amounts, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value
in use. The calculation of the fair values less costs of
disposal is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-
generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. There were no deferred tax assets recognised
for tax losses as at 31 December 2020 and 31 December
2019. The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31
December 2020 was approximately HK$708,679,000
(2019: approximately HK$654,217,000). Further details
are contained in note 27 to the financial statements.

Claims and disputes

The Group is the subject of various claims and disputes,
mainly involving libel claims in respect of alleged
defamation, which is common in publication industry.
Management assesses the claims and court cases
instituted against the Group on the basis of facts and
seeks legal advice when required. Moreover, the Group
is also involved in disputes as the claiming party. In
both cases, it involves subjective elements and projected
outcomes for estimation of provision for potential
liabilities or any disclosures of contingent liabilities
arising from the litigations. Further details are contained
in note 31 to the financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year, the Group is principally engaged in the
business of publishing and distribution of newspapers,
magazines and books to readers in Hong Kong, Canada,
the United States of America, Europe and Australia, and
sales of respective content of such publications in The
People’s Republic of China (including Hong Kong). On
5 February 2020, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group incorporated in Australia, operating the
Group’s media business in Australia, was in a creditors’
voluntary liquidation as further set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 26 February 2020. Since then, the
Group has ceased its operation in Australia.

The Group operates as a single operating segment.
The single operating segment is reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-makers. The chief operating
decision-makers, who are responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating
segment, have been identified as the executive directors
that make strategic decisions.

None of the revenue derived from any single external
customer amounted for more than 10% of the Group’s
revenue during the year (2019: NiD.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. REHIBERE)
Geographical information i EE R
(a) Revenue from external customers @ KEINIRERZHA
2020 2019
—E-RF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
The People’s Republic of China REAREMBE(BIESE)
(including Hong Kong) 631,695 973,438
North America it = 186,677 260,835
Australia and Europe B B B OM 7,375 27,506
825,747 1,261,779

The revenue information above is based on the
locations of the customers.

(b)  Non-current assets

ERAERAEE RS A

(b)) HRBEE

2020 2019
—2=%F  -—TAf
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET TFET
The People’s Republic of China FEAREMH(BIEES)

(including Hong Kong) 1,103,824 1,203,472
North America it = 284,360 255,352
Australia and Europe BN R BOM 159 88

1,388,343 1,458,912

The non-current assets information above is based
on the locations of the assets and excludes equity
investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and deferred tax
assets.

LHIERBEEERABEEMER IS
£ TEREEREAFEFARMEZE
Wat o BmERE BRAFEFARS
ReUMBEERBELERBEEE °
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA -EMWARKZEEE
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA ZDHmT:
2020 2019
—E-2E —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$000
FETT FET
Revenue from contracts with customers X B &P A& AHIW A 819,090 1,255,152
Revenue from other sources 2R B H Ath 2R 59 A
Gross rental income from operating KEHOE WA B
leases 6,657 6,627
825,747 1,261,779
Revenue from contracts with customers RKEEFESHNKA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information G SEEWAEH
2020 2019
2-3F T Af
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FEIT
Types of goods or services EmdiREER
Advertising income ER=N N 584,040 964,714
Circulation income Tl A 147,980 178,456
Content sales and news service income KA #HE & ¥ HE R & W A 24,112 27,639
Radio broadcasting advertising income B AEERE S WA 23,556 26,114
Project management income THEEEW A 26,889 34 844
Service income AR 7% U A 4,059 10,745
Others EAb 8,454 12,640
Total revenue from contracts with KERFPAHNKA R
customers 819,090 1,255,152
Geographical markets B W5
The People’s Republic of China FEAREME(BESH)
(including Hong Kong) 630,521 971,806
North America it = 181,194 255,840
Australia and Europe SEN K2 &M 7,375 27,506
Total revenue from contracts with RKERFPAEHHW AL
customers 819,090 1,255,152
Timing of revenue recognition LON A
At a point in time and total revenue from RE—RKIHEEKBEEF G
contracts with customers LN ¥ 819,090 1,255,152
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

@

@

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

The following table shows the amount of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that
was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the reporting period:

5.

31 December 2020
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WA~ HA AR WS FE(E)

REEFENHNBRAGE)
D  DERAEH(E)

TRARBEMIFABGLAE ZER
BERREEAZWATE:

2020 2019
—E_FF —ZT-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Circulation income Tl A 21,704 20,573
Performance obligations i) EXEF
Information about the Group’s performance BEAEBRBYOST2ER M T

obligations is summarised below:

Advertisements on newspaper, magazines and
radio broadcasting

The satisfied
upon
Group’s publications and upon broadcasting of

performance obligation is

issuance of the advertisements on the
advertisements and payment is generally due
within one month, extending up to three months
for major customers.

Circulation of newspapers, magazines and other
publications

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
delivery of these publications and payment is
generally due within one month, extending up to
three months for major customers.

BE MHLERERERES

BHEERAKEENMLENERESR
EREEESRERT MR —KRX—EA
RNEE REBEPMEAERE=(E
H o

BITRE - MwREMTY

BHEIRXNZETNMRERT
A—RR—EARZE  REEZEFM
EAERE=MEA -
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

@D

Performance obligations (continued)
Content sales and news services

The performance obligation is satisfied upon
transmission or delivery of contents and payment
is generally due within one month, extending up
to three months for major customers.

Project management services

The performance obligation is satisfied when
the event or activity takes place, and payment is
generally due within one month, extending up to
three months for major customers.

Other services

The performance obligation is satistied upon the
transmission or delivery of the final products
and payment is generally due within one month,
extending up to three months for major customers.
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET 5. WA -HttWARKZZHEE)

(continued)

An analysis of other income and gains, net is as follows:

Hib WA RWEFBRZ OO

2020 2019
—E-RF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET TET
Other income Hib g A
Bank interest income RITH B A 3,352 5,372
Investment income ®£EW A 3,484 3,955
Dividend income from equity investments R B# m 1% & 2 % B U A 263 190
Government grants from Employment BT H AL - RBEEFTE
Support Scheme 51,110 -
Others HA 4,923 5,826
63,132 15,343
Gains/(losses), net W% (ER) B8
Fair value gains/(losses), net on: RNEEWE S (EB)ZF5E:
Financial assets at fair value through EAFEFAEBRECWBEE
profit or loss 5,042 (832)
Derivative financial instruments — MTESMIE — TREYHER
transactions not qualifying as hedges 2R (126) (397
Investment properties (note 14) wEME (M 14) 108 (2,959
Gain/(loss) on disposal of items of HEWE  MERREER W/
property, plant and equipment (E518) (1,209) 2,029
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary HEER —HMB AR W s 346 1,677
Gain on lease modifications HEBIT W 63 -
Reversal of impairment of a loan to an  EEIM—EEE A AFIRENER 2
associate A - 1,057
Reversal of long outstanding payables Bl & B R A5 HE 3R - 6,006
Foreign exchange differences, net EHEZRE F8 7,880 (3,345
12,104 3,236
75,236 18,579
FINANCE COST 6. BERX
2020 2019
—BC-RF —ET-NEF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FETT
Interest on lease liabilities HEABERNES 1,294 2,418
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7. LOSS BEFORE TAX 7. BRBAERE
The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/ AREBZBRBRABREENEG GIA) Ti&
(crediting): I8 :
Notes 2020 2019
Wi —®-®E  —E-AF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Cost of inventories sold BEHEGFERKRAR 84,581 222,508
Government grants from Employment Support BT % A6 — 1R 5t 51 &
Scheme (51,110) -
COVID-19-related rent concessions from A AR T E20198 KBS
lessors HENHEHeER 15(b) (2,452) -
Depreciation of property, plant and M- WEREZETE(EHAE
equipment (other than right-of-use assets) EERIN 13 81,801 85,4660
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 13 31,003 32,075
112,804 117,541
Auditor’s remuneration ZHEM & 4,837 5,193
Leases payments not included in the R A EABFENHEERMK
measurement of lease liabilities 804 2,508
Employee benefit expense (including EEBRFHAZ(BEEEME
directors’ remuneration (note 8)): (B 5E8)) -
Wages, salaries, bonus, allowances and T& - B L4 2R
benefits in kind BWE A 387,640 460,117
Equity-settled share option expense MR ERERERX 29 54 1,625
Retirement benefit scheme contributions** R KAE 7 51 8 4 50 16,171 20,062
403,865 481,804
Gross rental income e W A @58 (6,657) 6,627)
Less: Direct outgoings W B 4,977 4,772
Net rental income HEW A F5E (1,680) (1,855)
Impairment of trade receivables* JE L2 BR RRORL B+ 21 7,176 8,198
Impairment of items of property, plant and ¥1% - HMEKEZEEBEERE
equipment (including right-of-use assets)* (BHEEREEE)* 13 23,324 5,561
Impairment of inventories* FERE - 5
Write-off of trade receivables* JE L2 BR SRR 8 6 160
Write-off of items of property, plant and Y2 BB R ERAETEE B
equipment* 1,226 -
Write-off of lease liabilities* HEaFEME 15(b) - (4,610)
Liquidator’s remuneration in relation to the EEM—FEMNBARERBEHAD
liquidation of a subsidiary in Australia* BB AN S 2,433 -
Reversal of impairment of a loan to an BEm—EEEARRHNER
associate 2R ME - (1,057)
Reversal of long outstanding payables BB R BRASER R - (6,006)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, HEWHE - BMELZEEE 2
plant and equipment &8 (W) 1,209 (2,029
Gain on lease modifications HEEB K= 63) -
Gain on deregistration of a subsidiary AHER—ENBAR 2= (346) 1,677
Foreign exchange differences, net MEHZR - F58E (7,880) 3,345
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LOSS BEFORE TAX (continued) 7. BRELATES 1B (2)

* These items are included in “Other expenses, net” * ELBHAGZAEERNIEMBE S F
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. o

sk At 31 December 2020, there were no forfeited ok MN-ZE-ZEF+_A=+—H TEH
contributions available to the Group to reduce its 7R 2 B A0 R R 2R F E R K AR A 5T B
contributions to retirement benefit schemes in future ZRWHRE(ZE—NF &)

years (2019: NiD.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEM<

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant ARFEEEEWNSBEBEEFEBMARIFNARA
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on EE TR EMRAD - FEAREM
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the £383(D@) (b))~ OFMOERAE (HEES
“Listing Rules”), section 383(D(), (b), (© and () of the FmERD AP E2HBEENT -

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

2020 2019

—E_8F —T-NEF

HK$°000 HK$000

FET FE T

Fees we 600 600
Other emoluments: E M2 -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMMEYREF 16,681 21,757

Discretionary bonuses BT AL 12 25

Employee share option benefits B BB iER A 25 730

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIKEFFTEI R 76 117

16,794 22,629

17,394 23,229

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2020



Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 5 2% P

31 December 2020 —FE-—ZFF+=-HA=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEME(#)
(a) Independent non-executive directors @ BIYEIHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive FRARABIFHNTESI N 2EmEmM
directors during the year were as follows: T
2020 2019
—2-FH —F-NF
HK$°000 HEK$’000
FET FETT
Ms. Ho Chiu King, Pansy Catilina Al {818 & + 150 150
Mr. King Richard Yun Zing & ITRK A 180 180
Mr. Lee Cho Jat THESLE 150 150
Ms. Judy Chan RS+ 120 120
600 600
There were no other emoluments payable to the FR - BERBIIERITES I NEM
independent non-executive directors during the Me(ZTE—hFE: &)
year (2019: Nil).
(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) HBITEZERIFHTES
directors
Salaries, Retirement
allowances Employee benefit
and benefits Discretionary share option scheme Total
Fees in kind bonuses benefits contributions remuneration
$¢ BER EEMRE BAEANE
wne BENEHN BERA & A G < 485t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
2020 t St 33
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak AIEEEE - 1,199 2 5 18 1,224
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles B L E - 5,955 2 4 - 5,961
Mr. Jia Hongping BaATRE - 1,495 2 3 4 1,504
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis Bk - 1,941 2 5 18 1,966
Mr. Lo Wing Hung B R A - 1,448 2 2 18 1,470
Mr. Siu Sai Wo EuiibS - 4,643 2 6 18 4,669
- 16,681 12 25 76 16,794
2019 “E-NF
Executive directors: HITES:
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak A EEEE - 1,515 3 144 18 1,680
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles ¥ 8% & - 8,182 3 122 - 8,307
Mr. Jia Hongping BAFEE - 1,538 3 90 45 1,676
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis Bk - 2,542 3 144 18 2,707
Mr. Lo Wing Hung EOKEESE - 1,897 3 54 18 1,972
Mr. Siu Sai Wo Eugiibig - 6,083 10 176 18 6,287
- 21,757 25 730 117 22,629
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8.
(b) Executive directors and non-executive

directors (continued)

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year (2019: NiD.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.

The five highest paid employees during the vyear
included three directors (2019: three directors), details
of whose remuneration are set out in note 8 above;
and two non-director employees (2019: two non-director
employees). Details of the remuneration of the non-
director highest paid employees are as follows:

=+ A
B 75 s 2= B 7T

31 December 2020 —FE-—FF+=-H=+—H

BEEME(E)

b)) BTESRIFPTEE(H)
FAMBEEENEXRAEREETAMS
2R (ZE—NF |-

ESFMNENES

FARSFMOANEERE-"NES(=ZZ

—NF ZUER)(HMESFBEHNA LW

NMUFEERE(ZE—NF MU E

E2EE) FHANEERSFMOREZH S
HEMT:

2020 2019

—2-%F —TNF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ &  EBE K EWEF 4,910 6,926
Discretionary bonuses [SNEREESE 4 6
Employee share option benefits BB B ER N 2 71
Retirement benefit scheme contributions & K 4& F| 5+ 2 4 3k 18 18
4,934 7,021

The number of non-director highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands is
as follows:

MeBUATENZIEERSTHNEE A
T

Number of employees

EBE A
2020 2019
—EEHF —E-NF
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001/ 7T 22,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 7T £ 3,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,0017%8 7T 2£4,000,0007% JT - 1
2 2
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10. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 165% (2019: 165%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. The first
HK$2,000,000 (2019: HK$2,000,000) of the assessable
profits of a subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% (2019: 8.25%)
and the remaining assessable profits are taxed at 16.5%
(2019: 16.5%). Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

10.

Frig®t

BAMERIIZFEARBBEE 2 M ERT
i A A16.5% (ZF — L £ 16.5%) T R84 o
— B AR 2 ERB A E P EH2,000,000%8
TL(ZZ— N4 1 2,000,000/8 70) %8.25% (=&
—JLEF 1 8.25%) 2 B REL - H &R HE R TR
BI#7165% (ZZ — NF 1 165%) 52 5  REAM
w2 ERBEN 2 MBI AEEE XK
KEZBERRITHEE -

2020 2019
—E-2E —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$000
FRET TET
Current: RV AR -
Charge for the year: FANXZH:
The People’s Republic of China REANRHEAM
(including Hong Kong) (BEEB) 197 4,315
Elsewhere H b ih [& 851 106
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFEREGETR (BEEE) (3,251) 232
Deferred (note 27) I FE (P 5F27) (4,382) 1,256
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year F AT L B (6,585) 5,909
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B 75 R 2R BT 5
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INCOME TAX (continued) 10. FRrE® (&)
BARAREXRTHHBRARMEBRR, A
FEBRZEAEMEFEZCEARBRER &
FABE)ZHRERS (ER) BEEREMRE
ECHERY (Ee) 28K LWREAR
MEEVEEHR)BERB R HERNOT

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable
to profit/(loss) before tax at the statutory rates for
the countries/jurisdictions in which the Company and
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the
tax charge/(credit) at the effective tax rates, and a
reconciliation of the applicable rates (i.e., the statutory
tax rates) to the effective tax rates, are as follows:

Hong Kong Mainland China North America  Australia and Europe Total
B HE A i % BN REM A3t
HK$000 % HK$000 % HK$000 % HK$000 % HK$000 %
FET FET FET FET FET
2020 “ECER
Profit/(loss) before tax BREATER,(BE) (62,871) 899 (30,405) 4,883 (87,494)
Tax at the statutory tax rate AT M X E2HA (10,374) 165 225 250 (7,904 26.0 1,566 32.1  (16,487) 18.8
Lower of tax rates for specific {&7]% %77 £ & &P
provinces of local authority o lig e - - (170) (18.9) - - - - (170) 0.2

REBNERT R E2A

BB TTIRS 25% MR

g 92) 0.1 - - - - - - (92) 0.1
NABE 2 BRERE

Lower tax rate at 8.25% for
assessable profit up to HK$2
million in Hong Kong

Adjustments in respect of

current tax of previous

periods (1,450) 2.3 - - (1,801) 59 - - (3,251 3.7
Profits and losses attributable &% (¥ ¥ & AR EE G

to joint ventures and MEER

associates (181) 0.3 (202) (22.5) 2,417 (7.9 - - 2,034 2.3)
Income not subject to tax BEBB WA (10,864) 17.3 (238) (26.5) (694) 23 (1,784) (36.5) (13,580) 155
Expenses not deductible for tax A/ 1% 2 X 6,313 (10.0) 416 46.3 6,170 (20.3) 202 41 13,101 (14.9)
Tax losses utilised from ERNERRZHBER

previous periods (1,400) 2.2 17) (1.9) - - - - (1,417) 1.6
Tax losses not recognised VEBRRZHRBER 14,329 (22.8) 28 3.1 - - - - 14,357 (16.4)
Temporary differences not WEFE R 2 R E

recognised 457 0.7) - - 2,137 (7.0) - - 2,594 (3.0)
Others Hy (3,674) 5.8 - - - - - - (3,674 4.2
Tax charge/(credit) at the RASEERBEHEL

Group’s effective rate HERY/(H2) (6,936) 11.0 42 4.6 325 (1.0) (16) 0.3)  (6,585) 75
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10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. Fi8Hi(&)
Hong Kong Mainland China North America Australia and Europe Total
B FEIA B3 LY Eh
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
FET FET FET FET FET

2019 “E-NF
Profit/(loss) before tax BHaET/(BE) (5,506) 13,657 11,15%) (13,763) (16,767)
Tax at the statutory tax rate BEERRFEZHE (908) 165 3,414 25.0 (2,670) 239 (3,908) 284 (4,072) 243
Lower of tax rates for specific f&7]% %7 £ & &P E

provinces of local authority B ERE - - (2,939 (21.5) - - - - (2,939 175
Lower tax rate at 8.25% for REBNERT R E2A

assessable profit up to HK$2 BB TIRS 25%MBIE T

million in Hong Kong L E (165) 3.0 - - - - - - (165) 1.0
Adjustments in respect of IR 2 8 BHERE

current tax of previous

periods (154) 2.8 - - 386 (35) - - 232 (1.4
Profits and losses attributable B EREE NRENE

to joint ventures and %‘J&Eﬁ B

associates (681) 124 (155) (1D 993 (89 - - 157 09
Income not subject to tax BEMKT WA (6,227) 113.1 (2,000) (14.6) 162 (1.4) - (8,065) 48.1
Expenses not deductible for tax R HIH 2 B3 5,159 93.7) 895 65 1,621 (145) 3,908 (284) 11,583 69.1)
Tax losses utilised from ERNEBRz R BER

previous periods (1,600) 29.1 (21) 0.2) - - - (1,621) 9.7
Tax losses not recognised TERRZHRBER 2,962 (53.8) 825 6.0 - - - - 3787 (225)
Temporary differences not I ERERABRLER

recognised 5,300 (96.3) - - (176) 1.6 - 5,124 (30.6)
Others Afte 1,049 19.0) - - - - 839 61 1888 11.3)
Tax charge/(credit) at the REARBEERTRGEZH

Group’s effective rate ERX/(E%) 4735 (86.0) 19 0.1 316 (2.8) 839 6D 5909 (35.2)
The share of tax credit attributable to joint ventures S E R AR EETIEE £ /32,649,000
and associates amounting to HK$2,649,000 (2019: BT (ZZE—4F 198,000/ 7T) n‘l’)\ TE
HK$198,000) is included in “Share of profits and losses BEK W [JEMLE 20 R 2 NEa M & E
of joint ventures and associates” on the face of the BIR -

consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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DIVIDENDS 11. RE
2020 2019
—E-SHE —ZE—-nF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
Interim — Nil (2019: HK3.5 cents per ordinary FRER - BB (ZE—NF:
share) BFMRE B K35E) - 30,314
Proposed final — HK2.0 cents per ordinary BIRARH - GRERAR2.08 10
share (2019: Nil) ZE-NFRE) 17,611 -
17,611 30,314
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject REFE 2 BRI B B EARRN TR R ERERK
to the approval of the Company's shareholders at the HiEFRKE EHE FAEE -
forthcoming annual general meeting.
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 12. AAREEREFEABRLERER

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic loss per share amount is
based on the loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company of HK$80,909,000 (2019: HK$22,676,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
879,276,101 (2019: 867,353,412) in issue during the year.

No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 in respect of dilution as the impact of
the share options had an anti-dilution effect in the basic
loss per share amounts presented.

BEREAGESBNEERNAARER A RN
&5 880,909,000 7T (= & — JL 4F : 22,676,000
BIUIMFABBETEBR 2 MEFHH
879,276,101 (= & — JL F : 867,353,412) & &f

st
H o
>t

HRBREER T _FTFR-_F-AF+
_ﬂ T BZEREXRGZERESBARE
BRE MY AR EAFEM2I 2EBRE
KIEHE%%EVE&M%
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. WX BERZE
Right-of-use assets Owned assets
ERERE BREE
Furniture, Furniture,
fixtures, fixtures,
equipment  Motor Land and  Plant and Leasehold  equipment Motor
Land Buildings and others vehicles Total buildi; machinery imp and others  vehicles Total Total
B KE - THE G- RE-
1 BF REREM RE At Br EEREE AENERE RERHER RE At At
HK$'000 HK$'000 — HK$000 HK$000 HK§000 HK§000 — HKS000 —  HK$000 — HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FEr  TEX fEr TEr TEL  TEX FEz FE7 fEr FExn TEx TE7
31 December 2020 ZECEE+ZAZT-H
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020: RZF-AF+ZA=+—-BR
CRIRE-RA-A:
Cost or valuation RAERREE 23,050 15,777 62,551 673 102,051 915,757 308,373 35,789 195,084 9,998 1,465,001 1,567,052
Accumulated depreciation and EHRERRE
impairment - (8,626) (26,751) (263) (35,640) - (151,452) (14,601) (173,664)  (5,141) (344,858) (380,498)
Net carrying amount EEFE 23,050 7,151 35,800 410 66,411 915757 156,921 21,188 21,420 4,857 1,120,143 1,186,554
At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated RZZ2-ZF-A-0 MBI
depreciation i 23,050 7,151 35,800 410 66,411 915757 156921 21,188 21420 4,857 1,120,143 1,186,554
Additions RE - 4,325 12,166 784 17,275 - 9,638 173 6,044 2,100 17,955 35,230
Disposals/write-off HE/HE - - - - - - (2,760) 1) (Bl) (@429 (3,246) (3,246)
Lease modifications AEET - 15) (2,995) 137 (3,147 - - - - - - (3,147)
Transfer from deposits HEAER - - - - - - 65,019 - - - 65019 65019
Depreciation provided during the year FRRERE (838)  (4,089) (25,753) (323) (31,003) (31,052) (34,147) (5,644) (8,935)  (2,023) (81,801) (112,804)
Impairment HE - (436) (1,262) - (1,698) - (18,880) (1,062) (1,684) - (21,626) (23,324)
Surplus on revaluation EfRRH 838 - - - 838 18,048 - - - - 18,048 18,886
Exchange realignment EXA% - 106 - - 106 4,682 - - 54 36 4,772 4,878
At 31 December 2020, net of accumulated R=Z=ZF+-f=+-H"
depreciation and impairment NBEHFERRE 23,050 7,042 17,956 734 48,782 907,435 175,791 14,624 16,868 4,546 1,119,264 1,168,046
At 31 December 2020
Cost or valuation RABHMEE 23,050 20,084 67,939 1,066 112,139 907,435 376,502 35780 200,051 10,288 1,530,056 1,642,195
Accumulated depreciation and ZHTERAE
impairment - (13,042) (49,983) (332) (63,357 - (200,711) (21,156) (183,183)  (5,742) (410,792) (474,149)
Net carrying amount BEEE 23,050 7,042 17,956 734 48782 907,435 175,791 14,624 16,868 4,546 1,119,264 1,168,046
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13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13.

Right-of-use assets

31 December 2020

B 75 R 2R BT 5

=

— = —

ME - BERKREGE)

Owned assets

FE+=A=1—H

RRRAE BBEE
Furniture, Furniture,
fixtures, fixtures,
equipment Motor Land and Plant and Leasehold  equipment Motor
Land  Buildings  and others  vehicles Total ~ buildings ~ machinery  improvements  and others  vehicles Total Total
i %8 TR ik KB -
T BF REREH RE At BF BERER HENERE RERAH RE At At
HKS000  HKS000 HKS000  HKS000  HK$000 — HKS000 — HKS000 HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
FEr  TEr Fér  FEr  FEr FET FET FET FEr  FErT  FET  FEr
31 December 2019 —E-hE+ZA=t-H
At 31 January 2019: RZE-AF+ZA=1+-H
Cost or valuation RAEREE 3100 11527 62,551 a4 97632 995,48 300,721 32,465 192922 11,085 1532441 1630073
Accumulated depreciation it E - - - - - - (117,264) (7,969 (167186)  (6,260) (298,679  (298,679)
Net carrying amount REFE 23,100 11,527 62,551 H4 97632 995248 183,457 24,496 25,736 485 1233762 1331394
At 1 January 2019, net of accumulated  RZE-AF-A-BAKR R
depreciation nE 23,100 11,527 62,551 asé 97632 995248 183,457 24,496 25736 4825 1233762 1331394
Additions HE - 4462 - 219 4,681 - 8,006 3371 5,899 3885 21221 25902
Disposals e - - - - - - - - © a1 Qs 1189
Transfer to investment properties BRERENE - - - - - (55,602 - - - - (5506 (55,602
Depreciation provided during the year —~ FRHTE&EE ©10  @23) (26,751) 63) (32075 (32,528 (34,602) (5952) (9729 (65 (85466 (117541
Impairment HE - (4,401) - - (G4 - - (714) (446) - Q60 (536D
Surplus on revaluation EffRH 760 - - - 760 11,027 - - - - 1027 11787
Exchange realignment EXEE - (186) - - s (238 - 13 (3D @ 235 @38
At 31 December 2019, net of accumulated F-NETZR=t-ANk
depreciation and impairment Lt ERAE 23,050 7151 35,800 40 66411 915757 156921 21,188 21,420 4857 1,120,143 1,186,554
At 31 December 2019: RZZ-NF+ZA=+-8
Cost or valuation KBS MEE 23,050 15777 62,51 673 102,051 915757 308,373 35,789 195,084 9,998 1465001 1,567,052
Accumulated depreciation and ZHMERRAE
impairment - (8,626) (26,751) (263) (35,6400 - (151,452) (14,601) (173,064) (5,141)  (344,858)  (380,498)
Net carrying amount BEAE 23,050 7151 35,800 40 66411 915757 156,921 21188 2420 4857 1120143 1,186,554
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13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The impairment charges of HK$23,324,000 relating
to certain items of property, plant and equipment
associated with the Group’s People’s Republic of China
(including Hong Kong) media business cash-generating
unit have been recorded in “Other expenses, net” (note
7) in the profit or loss during the year. In view of
the operating losses in certain cash-generating units,
management considered that indicators of potential
impairment of property, plant and equipment existed
as at 31 December 2020. The Group assessed the
recoverable amounts of these cash-generating units
using the value-in-use method based on discounted
cash flow forecasts for each cash-generating unit, and
an impairment loss was recognised for the year ended
31 December 2020 in relation to the People’s Republic
of China (including Hong Kong) media business cash-
generating unit. The estimates of the recoverable
amounts of the relevant assets of this cash-generating
unit were based on their value in use using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a
period of the remaining lease terms approved by senior
management. The discount rate adopted was 10.0%.

In the prior year, the directors of the Company
considered that certain items of property, plant and
equipment of the Group were subject to impairment
because the Australia media business cash-generating
unit has suffered from substantial loss for that year.
An aggregate impairment provision of HK$5,561,000 in
relation to this cash-generating unit was recognised in
profit or loss in the prior year. The directors of the
Company estimated the recoverable amounts of this
cash-generating unit based on value-in-use calculations
which were evaluated by management using cash
flow forecasts based on financial budgets covering
the remaining useful lives of the respective items of
property, plant and equipment.

The directors of the Company have determined that the
Group’s land and buildings consist of three classes of
asset, i.e., commercial, industrial and residential, based
on the nature, characteristics and risks of each property.
All of the Group’s land and buildings were revalued
on 31 December 2020 based on valuations performed
by Chung, Chan & Associates, an independent
professionally qualified valuer, at HK$930,485,000 (2019:
HK$938,807,000) (including the leasehold land under
right-of-use assets). Each year, the Group’s chief financial
officer decides to appoint which external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s chief financial
officer has discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results once a year when the
valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.
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13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

A revaluation surplus of HK$18,886,000 (2019:
HK$11,787,000) resulting from the revaluations on the
Group’s land and buildings, net of income tax effect
(credit) of HK$2,843,000 (2019: debit of HK$2,057,000),
has been credited to other comprehensive income during
the year.

During the year, a lessor of certain leases of land
included in the Group’s right-of-use assets has requested
its lessees, including but not limited to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group (the “Lessee”), to perform
certain remedial actions related to the compliance with
the relevant land usage provisions of the relevant lease.
Subsequent to the end of the reporting date, the Lessee
has received a notice from the lessor requesting the
Lessee to take further appropriate actions (including
application for license(s) to the lessor). Pursuant to the
Agreement for Lease between the lessor and the Lessee
dated 12 July 2007, the lessor may impose an additional
premium on a daily basis and other further actions
if such requests are not fulfilled by the Group within
a specified period. As of the approval date of these
financial statements, in the opinion of the directors,
the Group has fulfilled all requirements of the lessor
and the approval process by the lessor is undergoing.
It is expected to take certain period of time for the
completion of such process. There was no financial
impact to the year ended 31 December 2020 arising
from the above.

The carrying amounts of the relevant land (included
in right-of-use assets) and buildings erected on this
land (included in owned assets) as at 31 December
2020 amounted to HK$23,050,000 and HK$677,155,000,
respectively.

Further particulars of the Group’s land and buildings
are included on page 230.

13.
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ME - BERKREGE)

RAEER HAEE T W REFZEMGE
4 7 E A $18,886,0008 T(ZE — NF:
11,787,000/ 7T ) (1 B& 2,843,0008 7L (ZZ— 1L
F O £2,057,0008 70) TSR 2 £ 2 (K R))
BrtAEMEERE -

— L (T RANARNEBNFERESR
E)VHBEARFANZREEAMABRIEETRR
MAREBENZ2EMB AT (HAHEAD) GBS
Z L S AT R AR BRECE T RUE
WMo RREHKE  ABABKI LA AB
Mo BRERFE—TNEZTEH(RERL
FAABGHA) - REHBAARABARZT
T+FELA+ BT 2HEWRZE  HAE
B AREELETHBATKMAESK  HEA
ALEBRMEINER  WREEME—
T8 HEAMBKHRERMLEASR EERA
AEEERTEBANMAE R MEAA
FTEEEMHTIE HBEBEAFE —ERHH
FAIZER - L EEYTAHBE—_S-_FTF
TZAZT - BHZE A FEEXNTRATBE
@,

R-B-FTF+-A=+—08  HEL MGt
AEREEE)RERZ L EAEF GEA
FLEEE)MWEKREAEES R 423,050,000 7T &
677,155,000/ JC °

AEET I METF 2 — FFBHNFH230
H o
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. V¥ BEERREE)
Fair value hierarchy AFEERGFE
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRBEBRIAEETWEEFTFNATFETES
hierarchy of the Group’s land and buildings: -

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020 using
R-B-ZHE+-A=+-HWAFEFERA
Quoted prices Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
BERTEN EBEATERE EATTEER
HE WAE WAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B&-) (&) (BE&=) &t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
Recurring fair value SEUH AT ERE:
measurement for:
Commercial properties BEME - - 151,757 151,757
Industrial properties* TEYE- - - 750,288 750,288
Residential properties TEME - - 28,440 28,440
- - 930,485 930,485
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2019 using
RZBE-NFE+ZA=+—-HBNATEFERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
BEMIGE  EAUERE EANAHE
mE BWAE BWAE
(Level D (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(EH-) (F&-) (F&=) aF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
S S S FET
Recurring fair value FEUNTERE:
measurement for:
Commercial properties [EEXZES - - 147,473 147,473
Industrial properties* T - - 767,134 767,134
Residential properties FTEME - - 24,200 24,200
- - 938,807 938,807
* The industrial properties include a right-of-use asset * T XY EBEFE AEEE?23,050,000% 7T
of HK$23,050,000 (2019: HK$23,050,000). (ZF— 4% : 23,050,000/ 7T) °
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13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3 (2019: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

13.

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2020 —FE-—FF+=-H=+—H

ME - BERKREGE)
DVPESREEE)

RAFEERN BEEZHR - LRER_2HE
BREASERER=ZCRAFEAE(ZT—
NEF ) e

DHERAFESFEAEL =N FETED
Ef

Commercial Industrial Residential
properties properties properties
EEXZES ITEME TEME
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TFET TFET TFET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 A _E-NLF—A—HBH
FREE 166,969 817,587 33,792
Transfer to investment properties EREREME (14,352) (34,850) (6,460)
Depreciation provided during the year F N 37 & 5 (4,276) (27,957) (1,105)
Net gain/(loss) from fair value T B fth 22 T U 25 R B FR Y 2K
adjustment recognised in other B ERAENFW R
comprehensive income 565 12,354 (1,132)
Exchange realignment M 5, 38 B (1,433) - (895)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—NF+-A=+—H
and 1 January 2020 r—E-_FTF—H—H 147,473 767,134 24,200
Depreciation provided during the year F KT & # 5 (3,720) (27,284) (880)
Net gain from fair value adjustment £ E fth % [ UK 7 A T 3R HY 2K
recognised in other comprehensive BAFERAENFRE
income 5,236 10,438 3,212
Exchange realignment bE 3 38 2 2,768 - 1,914
Carrying amount at R-E-ZEF+-_A=+—H
31 December 2020 H) Bk = E 151,757 750,288 28,440

The fair values of the land and buildings were
determined using the comparison approach based on
market comparables of similar properties and with
adjustments made on factors such as location, size, age,
condition and aspects of the properties.

THREFHORFEDRBLEE  RIED
SERUMEIRLZEMROME - K 2
AR T AEFERRELHEMEE -
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31 December 2020

13.

—E-FFF+-A=+—H

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Below is a summary of the key inputs to the valuation

of land and buildings:

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXATAEERAE

ME - BERREE)
DVESREEE)

ATR L REFHEMFRANEIZE A
BEHHE:

Range (weighted average)
SE(MEFFTR)
2020
—g-%f

2019
—E-NF

Commercial properties Adjusted price per square foot

BEDE RBEFFHRER
Industrial properties Adjusted price per square foot
TEME RBEFFHRER
Residential properties  Adjusted price per square foot
TEMHE RBEFFHRER

The Group has determined that the highest and best
use of the commercial and certain industrial properties
at the measurement date would be to convert those
properties for residential purposes. For strategic reasons,
the properties are not being used in this manner. While
for the remaining industrial properties, the Group has
determined that the highest and best use of them at
the measurement date has remained to be for industrial
purpose.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the adjusted price
per square foot would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of the land and buildings.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2020

HK$6,134 - HK$8,264
6,1348 7T - 8,264/ T
HK$2,157 - HK$2,210
2,157% T - 2,2108 T
HK$16,552 - HK$22,321
16,5528 T - 22,3218 T

HK$5,529 — HK$11,625
5,5297 70 — 11,6258 7T
HK$2,195 — HK$2,383
2,195 70 - 2,383/ 7T
HK$9,716 — HK$10,561
9,716/ 7T — 10,5615 7T

AEBEEKRE  RAER FEBENRE
TIENENEARERERER/BZED
XELEERE - ENREER  ZFWE
B ARMER -ERNEBRIEYE K&
BE&ERE Rt EH  EEAREREN
BEREBERETIERR

BRABSTYHIREBAE LA /(TR &Z
BEiREFORFEKRE LI (TR -
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2020 —FE-—FF+=-H=+—H

14. BREWE

2020 2019

—2-%F —TNF

HK$°000 HK$000

FET TET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEARE 119,122 65,526

Transfers from owner-occupied properties EREEAME - 55,602
Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments NEEABIWZ (EIE)E5E

(note 5) (Kf &%) 108 2,959
Exchange realignment IE W 3 & 477 893
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—HWE®EE 119,707 119,122

The directors of the Company have determined that
the Group’s investment properties are commercial
properties, based on the nature, characteristics and
risks of each property. The Group’s investment
properties were revalued on 31 December 2020
based on valuations performed by Chung, Chan &
Associates, an independent professionally qualified
valuer, at an aggregate value of HK$119,707,000 (2019:
HK$119,122,000). Each year, the Group’s chief financial
officer decides to appoint which external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s
properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained. The Group’s chief financial
officer has discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results once a year when the
valuation is performed for annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details
of which are included in note 15 to the financial
statements.

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties
are included on page 231.

BRESVENMES  BHERK  AARE
BEERE AEENKREMERNEDE -
REBZEREMECHR-_ZE-_TF+-_A=+
—HREBUEXA AR HEMESTRE
TR EE B A #(E119,707,00008 T (Z T —
JUF £ 119,122,000 70) - BF - NEBE P KE
ERARTLZEAEAEBRYENINTHENI
BE(HERD - BURERRIEM S MG - B2 .
BUMRREHBEREKE - REHKE
EHGMEMREFUBERETEF —E
THER REEREREELE

RELEHOBTE=TZ2REME 2 #E—
FEEFBHNYHRRMEL -

ZREME 2 E - BFBHRNFH231

m B
° M
i

\
7
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31 December 2020

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

—E-FFF+-A=+—H

14. REWE(E)

DFEERFE

The following table illustrates the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s investment
properties:

TRETASEREMEN R FEAESFHR:

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020 using

R-B-EHS+-A=+-HMNAFEFERA

Quoted prices Significant  Significant

in active observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs

BERTEN EATEE EAFUHEE

#{E BWAE BWAE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(FH-) (FH=) (FHR=) &t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET

Recurring fair value measurement:  #H & A FEF =
Commercial properties EEME - - 76,521 76,521
Industrial property TEME - - 37,066 37,066
Residential property TEDME - - 6,120 6,120
- - 119,707 119,707
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2019 using
RZB-NF+ZA=+—-HENATEFERA

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs

BERMISH  EAUEER EANAHE

HE BWAE BWAE
(Level 1 (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(FH—) (F&-) (FH=) CEl
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TET TET TET TET

Recurring fair value measurement: #H & A FEF =

Commercial properties EEXZES - - 77,812 77,812
Industrial property IEME - - 34,850 34,850
Residential property [ER==t7/ES - - 6,460 6,460
- - 119,122 119,122

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 (2019: Nil).
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14.

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2020 —FE-—FF+=-H=+—H

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWEE)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) PEESERFNEE)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised DERATFEERASZER =N LAFETED
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: ;TEE :

Commercial Industrial Residential
properties property property
ERES TEMHE EEYF
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TET TET TET

Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF-—A—BH

FREE 65,526 - -
Transfer from owner-occupied EREERmE
properties 14,352 34,850 6,460
Net loss from fair value adjustment R E AR E MU A RS
recognised in other income and FEPBERHNKREAFE
gains, net in profit or loss ) = (2,959 - -
Exchange realignment b 5 38 & 893 - -
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 R-ZE— &+ -A=+—H
and 1 January 2020 —ETTF-A-HHK
[ERE 77,812 34,850 6,460
Net gain/(loss) from fair value EE A E MU A RIS
adjustment recognised in other FHEAERNKEATE
income and gains, net in profit or AERFER
loss (1,768) 2,216 (340)
Exchange realignment HE 5, 58 B 477 - -
Carrying amount at N_ZE_TF+-_HA=+—H
31 December 2020 B ER (B 76,521 37,066 6,120
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31 December 2020 —FE-—FF+=-H=+—H

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair value of the investment properties was
determined using the comparison approach based on
market comparables of similar properties and with
adjustments made on factors such as location, size, age,

condition and aspect of the properties.

Below is a summary of the key inputs to the valuation
of investment properties:

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXRAEERAE

14.

REWMHE(E)
DFEERFEE)
BREWENO R FENFEALEE - RIFHALU

MIZALE B MRS R ZF YRR - K/
Bk RARTRAERARFLHABMET -

ATREEMEEEZERBAEBRE:

Range (weighted average)

5 8 (0 A 74
2020 2019
—E-=F —T-nE

Commercial properties  Adjusted price per square foot

BEDE BYTREHEER
Industrial property Adjusted price per square foot
ITEME BYTREHEER
Residential property Adjusted price per square foot
EEME BYTREHEER

The Group has determined that the highest and best
use of the commercial properties and industrial property
at the measurement date would be to convert those
properties for residential purposes. For strategic reasons,
the properties are not being used in this manner.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the adjusted price
per square foot would result in a significant increase/
(decrease) in the fair value of the investment properties.
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HK$6,218 - HK$8,923
6,218 T
HK$6,331 - HK$7,556
6,331 T - 7,556 T
HK$1,358 - HK$1,593
1,358 T -

HK$5,758 — HK$13,682
5,758 7T — 13,6827 7T
HK$5,110 — HK$6,643
511078 7T — 6,643 7T
HK$1,248 — HK$1,560
1,248/ 70 - 1,56078 7T

- 8,923 T

1,593 T

AEBODERTE RTER - AABEDE
RIXMENEARERERAEZR/BZEFD
XBERETRE ERNREEH ZFWE
WA RIMAVLER °
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15.

LEASES
The Group as a lessee
The Group has lease contracts for land and buildings,

equipment
Lump sum payments were made upfront

motor vehicles and other used in its
operations.
to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease
periods of 40 years, and no ongoing payments will be
made under the terms of these land leases. Leases of
other equipment generally have lease terms between
3 and 5 vyears,

lease terms between 2 and 5 vyears.

while motor vehicles generally have
Other equipment
generally have lease terms of 12 months or less and/or
are individually of low value. Generally, the Group is
restricted from assigning and subleasing the leased assets
outside the Group.

(@  Right-of-use assets
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-
use assets and the movements during the year
are further set out in note 13 to the financial
statements.

(b)  Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year are as follows:

15.

+ 2
B 75 s 2= B 7T
31 December 2020 —FE-—FF+=-H=+—H
HE
AEBEREAHEA
AEERLEMAN T RESF  HAERE
HEEERAHEAN - ARMETERME

HioFWHEELH - STRNBEN: MRE
ZELHWHOBRFTBEFHENR - BER

HEWEH - RBEHNFIESF - AENHE
A =N F2E5F - A RENEH R
7%121IH%LAT K/ A8 5 = BRI E

B *ﬂxﬁﬁ 5 NEBEXR G| E A 5K B S
HELDHEBEEEE -

@ RHABEEE

AEENERAREERAERFAEY
AEERN M RRM EL -

() MHEERE

FAMBEERER@MEREFHNT:

2020 2019
2-8F -—T hF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BMERAEE 45,043 74,532
New leases HHEE 17,275 4,681
Accretion of interest recognised during 4 AT 58 B9 4 & 18 0
the year 1,294 2,418
COVID-19-related rent concessions from HF A FE20197 ik /&
lessors (note 7) HEnHEsE=EME7) (2,452) -
Payments Rk (29,379) (31,789
Write-off (note 7) 88 (B 5E7) - (4,610)
Lease modifications HEET (3,210) -
Exchange realignment M 3, 58 B 115 (189
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HBHXNEAEE 28,686 45,043
Analysed into: DA :
Current Vi 21,883 29,328
Non-current JERH 6,803 15,715
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31 December 2020 —FE-—ZFF+=-HA=+—H

15.

LEASES (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b

©

Lease liabilities (continued)

The maturity analysis of lease

discussed in note 37 to the financial statements.

As disclosed
statements,

in note 2.2 to

amendment to HKFRS 16 and applied the practical
expedient to all eligible rent concessions granted
by the lessors for leases of certain items of

furniture, fixtures,

liabilities is

the financial
the Group has early adopted the

15. HE(E)

rEMEREBANE)

(b MHEEREGE)

equipment and others during

= M

FRBEaBEZIHBER
FT37a R o

0 B 7 R 3R BT FE 2. 2P IR ER
A ER 0 B 78 BT 75 3R
MEHBAAREARBES TRM -

g &ﬁ&ﬁmﬁﬁhﬁmﬁﬁééﬁ
HEeERREBER

LEVEHF

(= A

AN IR

REBEDIR

165)74 E'] f/ IIIT

BETE -

the year.
The amounts recognised in profit or loss in © BHEREZRERGLELT
relation to leases are as follows:
2020 2019
—FE-REF —ET-NEF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Interest on lease liabilities HESBENE 1,294 2,418
Depreciation charge of right-of-use TREEENEER
assets 31,003 32,075
Expenses relating to short-term leases 52 HATH & & ¥ #4710 H3
and other leases with remaining lease RELRE 2B R 2 HA
terms ended on or before end of year HEHEERZ
(included in administrative expenses) (FTATTHFRX) 28 21
Expense relating to leases of low-value EKEBEEEREMNHEBHRXZ
assets (included in administrative GTATTEAX)
expenses) 776 2,487
COVID-19-related rent concessions from HFE A FE20197 ik 7 &
lessors HEnEeER (2,452) -
Impairment of right-of-use assets EREEERE 1,698 4,401
Gain on lease modifications MEBR 2 W= (63) -
Write-off of lease liabilities HE & EMH - (4,610)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 518 & BR E 58 49 48 32,284 36,792
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B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2020 —FE-—FF+=-H=+—H

LEASES (continued) 15. HE(E)
The Group as a lessor AEBEREEA
The Group leases its investment properties consisting KEERBEKEHNTHEHAEKREYE
of five commercial properties, one industrial property BIESEEEYE 1B ITEDERIBEEE %
and one residential property under operating lease ¥ -MHAOKK—MAETHEREAINRES
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require MR ERESA THIREEMAFAE - KEH .
the tenants to pay security deposits and provide FRERNHE S WA AG6,657,0008 T (==
for periodic rent adjustments according to the then NLE 16,627,000/ 70) » 515 3R B 7% TR R MY
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised F5
by the Group during the year was HK$6,657,000 (2019:
HK$6,627,000), details of which are included in note 5
to the financial statements.
At 31 December 2020, the undiscounted minimum lease R-E-EF+—A=+—H KEBRKXK
payments receivables by the Group in future periods HEEEATYEEE RN T BESLSH
under non-cancellable operating leases with its tenants YR ATE REEENZKAES:
falling due are as follows:
2020 2019
Z_ZF —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FHETT
Within one year —FR 5,714 5,753
After one year but within two years —FREMFA 1,877 2,463
After two years but within three years MERE=FKN 1,466 1,466
9,057 9,682
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16. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16. HEFLEE

With
With finite indefinite
useful lives useful life Total
BR &R
AERAEH TUEREH &t
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET
Cost at 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, R-ZE-hE—A—H"
1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020, —Z-hhF+=-ZA=+—H"
net of accumulated amortisation and —Z-TF—-H-HRK
impairment ZEZEF+A=T—RHZ
P AE - HER REF 88 MORE - 100 100
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-AFF+_A=+—HBK
31 December 2020: —E-TE+-A=t—H
Cost B ANE 24,904 100 25,004
Accumulated amortisation and impairment R RORE (24,904) - (24,904)
Net carrying amount REFE - 100 100

As at 31 December 2020, the intangible asset with
an indefinite useful life represents a motor vehicle

registration mark.

17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

n=

17. REELEZRE

“EE+-A=1t—H ERWEHAF
HZBPEERAEZLHEE -

2020 2019

—2-%F T NF

HK$°000 HK$000

FET FETT

Share of net assets fEIhE EFE 72,750 56,661
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31 December 2020 —ZF_-F

#+=A=+—H

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 17. REELEZRE(E)
Particulars of the Group’s principal joint ventures, all ARREEBEFREZAEBETES 20X 25
of which are indirectly held by the Company, are as BT
follows:
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Nominal value ownership interest
registration of issued share/ attributable Principal
Name and business registered capital to the Group activity
ML ERITREAEE TEEE
=x: k&g FIMER e RERAD L FTEER
2020 2019
—B-%F —TNF
Sing Tao Daily Limited Canada Canadian dollar 25 25 Newspaper
msx (“CA$™10,000 publishing
Class A WMEEAT
common shares
10,0000 7T
(Tl
A RIAL @ IR
Sing Tao Newspapers Canada CA$2,021,871 50 50 Newspaper
(Canada 1988) Limited JINI& KX Series 1 publishing
common shares WMEEAT
and
CA$15,780,809
Series 2
common shares
2,021,871 17T
E-HETERK
15,780,809 7T
FE_REBR
The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share RN EWN—EE &% %B)Sing Tao Daily
of losses of a joint venture, Sing Tao Daily Limited, Limited) ZBEEBEHAEBRNZEE L E 2K
because the share of losses of this joint venture E o oMmMAEENESEBAEE—FSZEIE -
exceeded the Group’s interest in this joint venture WMHEAEBERIETEREBEZAZSDEY
and the Group has no obligation to take up further EBiE AREBARXER R RAEREMLMZEE
losses. The amounts of the Group’s unrecognised D EEE DA A1,160,0008 T (ZZE— 5 :
share of loss of this joint venture for the current year ) 51,160,000 L (ZZE—NF 1 &) -

and cumulatively were HK$1,160,000 (2019: Nil) and
HK$1,160,000 (2019: Nil), respectively.
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17.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 17. REELEZRE(E)
Sing Tao Newspapers (Canada 1988) Limited is Sing Tao Newspapers (Canada 1988) Limited
considered a material joint venture of the Group. The WHREBRAEEB —BERKEEDE - TXRY
following table illustrates the summarised financial ~E BSing Tao Newspapers (Canada 1988)
information in respect of Sing Tao Newspapers (Canada Limited 7 A AR 2 (B BERERE
1988) Limited adjusted for any differences in accounting DAL EPERREEESR)
policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in the
financial statements:
2020 2019
—E-2E —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
Cash and cash equivalents HE MRS EEHEB 57,449 61,668
Other current assets HEmEh&E 24,979 37,732
Current assets mEE E 82,428 99,400
Non-current assets FERBEE 81,754 39,211
Trade payables JE 1 BR R 1,667 6,067
Other payables and accruals b JE S 3B K FEETRE 12,912 14,828
Current liabilities mBEE 14,579 20,895
Non-current financial liabilities FRBEE 4,103 4,416
Net assets BEFE 145,500 113,300
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the HEAEKEREGEDPE I ERZ
joint venture: R
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEE 2 AL 50% 50%
The Group’s share of net assets and the AEBZEEEEFER
carrying amount of investment in the joint ReadtEREZEREE
venture 72,750 56,650
Revenue A 181,655 278,384
Interest income 2 WA 482 832
Depreciation and amortisation D& ¥ (4,625) (4,787)
Tax i 18 4,776 1,972
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive REE % /( E1E) &
profit/(loss) for the year 2EHMN(E1E)B5E 32,965 (5,679
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17.

18.

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

The following table illustrates the financial information

of the Group’s joint venture that is not individually

17.

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2020 —FE-—FF+=-H=+—H

REBLEZIREE)

THRIFAEBENTETEANSEOE
B AR -

material:
2020 2019
—E-RF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET TET
Share of the loss and total comprehensive loss 231 H & (& B 1 5 T & A MY
for the year of the remaining joint venture EEPEARFEEHEER
not individually material THBELEE (1,171) (365)
Carrying amount of the Group’s investment in A& BN EHERIME
the remaining joint venture not individually TERNEEREZ
material AR REE - 11
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. RBtERRZRE
2020 2019
—ZE-%F —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Share of net assets ELEEFE 23,449 20,572
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18.

—_—= =

—E-—F

F+=A=+—H

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Particulars of the Group’s associates, all of which are
indirectly held by the Company, are as follows:

18.

RBELAT2REE)

ARBHEEFEZAEEBE QA 2F BN

T

Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary ownership interest
registration share capital/ attributable Principal
Name and business registered capital to the Group activities
MM ERITERR rEBEEIERA
=x: ERERKEBE REA/EMESR EESEIH FEX®
2020 2019
—B-8F _—T-NF
Bastille Post Hong Kong HK$36,290,000 30 30 Internet and
Company Limited & /& 36,290,000/% 7T mobile media
E+wHmBERAA business
ERFEVEEE S
Ei
It REEEEHE  People’s Republic  RMB15,400,000 30 30 Provision of on-

BxXAERAFR

of China/
Mainland China

hEEA R MBS
o A

registered capital
A R #515,400,0007T
&R

Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial

information of the Group’s associates that are not

individually material:

* RONERERE

TRIIR AR S B E B M5 T E A B

V& IR

line and off-
line corporate
and vocational
training and
related services
RHELLIEHE L
1 BB R IE T
K48 B AR 75

NG

2020 2019
—E=-FF —TNF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
Share of the associates’ profits and total AMEBE RRAFE R RS
comprehensive income for the year M U %5 4258 3,540 3,873
Carrying amount of the Group’s investments ZANEB R E NF] 2K EMER
in the associates A & 23,449 20,572
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20.

21.

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2020 —FE-—FF+=-H=+—H

EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR 19. EEARAFEFAHMZEKE 2
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EMEE
INCOME
2020 2019
ZBEF —Z-hnEF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
Listed equity investments, at fair value IRERMRE  EKRTE 47 47
The above equity investments irrevocably HRAEBERSZEREBRBME - it
designated at fair value through other comprehensive HmERE AL EE AL A FER
income as the Group considers these investments to be ANE A 2 E R o

strategic in nature.

INVENTORIES 20. &
2020 2019
—E-FHF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Raw materials JR % 16,873 34,512
Finished goods A o 1,254 1,062
18,127 35,574
TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. BEWERR
2020 2019
— —ET-NF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Trade receivables JfE U BR 3Kk 210,456 298,403
Impairment A (17,276) (12,667)
193,180 285,736
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21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment
in advance is normally required. The credit period is
generally for a period of one month, extending up to
three months for major customers. Each customer has
a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables and has
a credit control department to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the reporting period, based on payment due date
and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

21.

FE W BR X (48

BRTHEP —RERAMNRIN  AEEEHR
EEZEBEZTERMEREANET EFEH
—RAE—EA TEEFPARERE=@EAH - &
EFARAEREER AREHEHAKE
18 FE U5 PR % 4 15 B AR 4R %'J IE& EEEE
MPANEEREEERR SAEEELR

mEt B RN 2 R e %‘inlJLL%IE&K
SEREERTIERESTILEFER
WY BEERBREFRZEN - AEEYL EH
ﬁ%ﬂ&ﬁ%%ﬁmﬁ%%“ﬁfﬂ‘]?ﬂﬂiﬁﬁiﬁ{ﬂﬁﬁﬁ
RAY - BUERRSRE

RBmERR - EUIRFRIEFRR A &
RERBERZEREIWEINDT :

2020 2019

—E-SE —ZE—nF

HK$°000 HK$°000

FET FEIT

Current to 30 days BlHR 230K 126,935 172,900
31 to 60 days 31E60K 26,519 41,703
61 to 90 days 61E90K 16,010 30,100
91 to 120 days 91E 120K 8,299 15,053
Over 120 days FBiE120K 15,417 25,980
193,180 285,736

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2020



Notes to Financial Statements

21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2020 —FE-—FF+=-H=+—H

FE W BR K (42)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment W EEEERENESNT
of trade receivables are as follows:
2020 2019
—2-%F —TNF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
At beginning of year F4 12,667 20,710
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) BRI E E B (K 5E7) 7,176 8,198
Amounts written off as uncollectible S B8 Yo 3] 1 3 8 B & 5B (2,534) (16,238)
Exchange realignment M 5 o (33) (3
At end of year FR 17,276 12,667

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure expected credit
losses. The provision rates are based on days past due
for groupings of various customer segments with similar
loss patterns (i.e., by geographical region, product type,
and customer type and rating). The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the time value of
money and reasonable and supportable information that
is available at the reporting date about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off
if past due for more than one year and are not subject
to enforcement activity.

REREARIRABEBREETREIN
UGt EFERERBEX - BEXDENRERE
BREUBREANZERERL #ET DA R
Wi - EmER - FP BB K& A K
BEGTE - ZAtERRAAXMELER - &
BERELRRBEAHASHEREESEE
AR ROR R B R TROR M A 32 R A] 5
Bt —RMNE  BUEERKUBAHREE—F
K BB Z R BIATTIE BRI T LAME
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22.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. EWERR(E)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk BEANEEERBEEEAAENERERY
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a EZERBEREHI W :
provision matrix:
As at 31 December 2020 N—_EBE_-_EE+-_HA=+—H
Past due
B
Current to 31 to 61 to 91 to Over
30 days 60 days 90 days 120 days 120 days Total
MEZE30X 31260k 61290k 91F120k HEiB120X @5t
Expected credit loss rate  TEEZ B AR 0.38% 0.65% 1.97% 3.47% 50.92% 8.21%
Gross carrying amount RHAE
(HK$'000) (F#&xT) 127,423 26,693 16,331 8,597 31,412 210,456
Expected credit loss HHEREBEX
(HK$'000) (FA&T) 488 174 321 298 15,995 17,276
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZZE—NF+=-A=+—8
Past due
Current to 31 to 61 to 91 to Over
30 days 60 days 90 days 120 days 120 days Total
BIHIZE30R  31E6G0K  G61E90OKX 9IEI120Kk HiB120K H#Et
Expected credit loss rate & B F
BRE 0.73% 2.94% 3.15% 3.24% 25.00% 4.24%
Gross carrying amount REAE
(HK$'000) (F#&T) 174,164 42,965 31,078 15,557 34,639 298,403
Expected credit loss FEHEREX
(HK$'000) (FH&7T) 1,264 1,262 978 504 8,659 12,667

PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER ASSETS

22, ENRE HUEWREAREMEE

2020 2019
—E-%F —ZTNF
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Prepayments a1 3 E 14,190 15,102
Deposits and other receivables Ze & HMpEWKRIE 18,509 96,136
32,699 111,238

Portion classified as non-current assets DHERBERBEE 2B (4,291) (75,903)
Current portion mENER 28,408 35,335
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PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 22. EARE- -HtEKREREMEE
OTHER ASSETS (continued) (&)
Deposits mainly represent rental deposits, utility HeXBEEERe  KEEBRSNEM TE
deposits and other deposits. Where applicable, an RKEBCDAGEEIRZAELER
impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date BRZAEN  BEITRS®REBIET
by considering the probability of default of comparable (WEA)  MITEEBEEFRZAELR
companies with published credit ratings. In the situation NEERR  EHRERERE2EREER
where no comparable companies with credit ratings FEEBILELEBFERBRREHETHES
can be identified, expected credit losses are estimated BEAEREBNEERBEELFARZRIURMRIREGS
by applying a loss rate approach with reference to the MR FEBRKEB R - RE_FF+—
historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is A=F+—BEZ=ZZ—NF+ZA=+—H K
adjusted to reflect the current conditions and forecasts EEEFEERAE M BEMEERFEIFRIET
of future economic conditions, as appropriate. As at ZERBBEETEKN -
31 December 2020 and 31 December 2019, the Group
assessed the loss allowance under the application of
HKFRS 9 was insignificant.
The financial assets included in the above balances A &SRB BEEE B &I B RER
relate to receivables for which there was no recent e E ERREER RZE-Z
history of default and past due amounts. As at 31 FRZZB-NFTZA=T—H  EEEHT
December 2020 and 2019, the loss allowance was Y= G on=u g
assessed to be minimal.
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 23. RAFEFAEBRRZUBEE
PROFIT OR LOSS
2020 2019
—E-FHF —ZT-NF
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET TET
Listed equity securities, at fair value ERAES - mAFE 15,240 7,127
Listed debt securities, at fair value FThERES  BmATE 65,230 69,312
Unlisted debt securities, at fair value FLEMEEFES  ENAE 72,679 -
Portion classified as current assets NERRBEEZHD 153,149 76,439
Other unlisted investments, at fair value and 2 J‘@ EMEE  BAFER
included in non-current assets FTAERBNE E 10,051 10,651
Total financial assets at fair value through ERAVFEFABERERZ
profit or loss W EEBE 163,200 87,090
The above investments as at 31 December 2020 and RIEBE_EFLN_TE—NF+_A=+—8"

2019 were classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not
intend to dispose of its unlisted investments within the
next twelve months and therefore they were included
in non-current assets.

LRBRESEAFEEERERRAFEFA
BRkZMBEE -

RZB_ZFR_Z-NF+_RA=+—8H"
REBIEARRKRT_EALEEIE LTI
;é\q Sl EE§+)\3F//\L@§§
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24.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24, BeRESEEEH
2020 2019
—EBEFF —Z-nEF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Cash and bank balances He MIRTTHE 5% 226,180 231,787
Non-pledged time deposits B EBE R 273,802 248,053
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the MBARAKMI2RE R
statement of financial position ReEMBEIER 499,982 479,840
Less: Non-pledged time deposits with original & : /A EX/S B R B B H 48 1B
maturity of more than three months when =@ Rz |\ FE R/F R
acquired (142,857) (71,769)
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the RensxkMilzBe R
statement of cash flows BeH£EHEAE 357,125 408,071

At the end of the reporting period, the cash
and bank balances of the Group denominated in
Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to HK$35,952,000 (2019:
HK$32,662,000). The RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and deposits
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.
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TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 25. ENEFRRERE
An ageing analysis of trade and bills payables as at the RIEBR BNEANEERERBES
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, HZBE®BOWmEI W :
is as follows:
2020 2019
—g-ef —nE
HK$°000 HK$°000
FHET FET
Current to 30 days BNER = 30K 17,165 21,814
31 to 60 days 31E60K 7,536 8,666
61 to 90 days 61290K 4,333 5,368
91 to 120 days 91E 120K 2,805 419
Over 120 days FBiE120K 1,581 1,312
33,420 37,579
The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are JERERIT Tt E BE—REROBERE
normally settled on 60-day terms.
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. HihENMREREFRIE
Notes 2020 2019
i it e e i —TNF
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET FET
Receipts in advance SR e 29,776 37,224
Contract liabilities AHa 1, (a) 17,788 21,704
Other payables H b 3B (b 51,424 60,519
Accruals FEEt I8 48,827 63,581
147,815 183,028
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26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

()

Details of contract liabilities are as follows:

26. HAEMNE
e

RIE N ERTRRIE(E)

@ AHEREFBET:

31 December 31 December 1 January
2020 2019 2019
—E-EF —E-NF —ET-NF
+=—A=+—-8 +ZA=+—H —A—H
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET F#E T

Short-term advances received B E .2 52 B Fa 11 3

from customers

Circulation income BEITWA 17,788 21,704 20,573
The decrease in contract liabilities in 2020 was AMBEER-ZE-S E,}EK By EE R E
mainly due to the decrease in short-term advances E/\iﬂ%ﬂiﬁa m R EMTIYE B

received from customers in relation to the circulation
of newspapers, magazines and other publications at
the end of the year. In the prior year, the increase
in contract liabilities was mainly due to the increase
in short-term advances received from customers in
relation to the circulation of newspaper, magazines
and other publications at the end of that year.

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average payment term of three months.
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27.

DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2020 —F-F
27. EEHRE
assets FAEEHRBEBEREEZ
EZEREEE
Fair value
adjustments
Depreciation arising from

allowance acquisition of

#+=A=+—H

ggHmn:

in excess an additional Revaluation
of related interest in a of Recognition Withholding
depreciation joint venture  properties of tax losses taxes Total
KEAELE
RS
BAMBE i B HEEE
ZHERBE OLVERE EM4UF ZBR  BENHA @5t
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000  HK$'000
TET FHET TET FHET TET  TET
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NFE—-A—H 53,291 4,864 92,137 (42,853) 10,104 117,543
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to ~ FRREBRERNMNE,/
the statement of profit or loss (TN 2 BIER B
during the year (note 10) (B 3£ 10) (2,694) - (510) 3753 - 549
Deferred tax charged to asset EAREAEEMFETNR
revaluation reserve during the BB IE
year - - 2,057 - - 2,057
Exchange realignment [ 5% - - - - 39 39
At 31 December 2019 and R-Z-NET-A=1—H
1 January 2020 k=2=-Z2%#—-H—H 50,597 4,804 93,684 (39,100) 10,143 120,188
Deferred tax charged/(credited) o FERRBERNME
the statement of profit or loss (FTA) 2 BIERIB
during the year (note 10) (P 3£ 10) 4,697) - (033) 775 - 4,555)
Deferred tax credited to asset FRREEEMRFEHENTA
revaluation reserve during the 2B IE
year - - (2,843) - - (2,843)
Exchange realignment XA - - - - 600 600
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZE-2F+-A=1-H 45,900 4,864 90,208 (38,325) 10,743 113,390
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27. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 27. EEBREAGE)
Deferred tax assets ELEREEE
Depreciation
in excess
of related
depreciation
allowance Provisions Total
ERMEENE
ZITERBE BiE 5t
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
FET FET TET
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-NF—H—H 2,960 940 3,900
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the FARBREREAGAS
statement of profit or loss during the (k) 2 BT IE
year (note 10) (FF 5%10) 131 (838) (707)
Exchange realignment BE K 30 & - (14) 149
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R-ZT—AF+-A=+—Hk
—Z-_T%—-H—H 3,091 88 3,179
Deferred tax charged to the statement of FARAREmEANTKRZ
profit or loss during the year (note 10) i FE 38 (KT 3E10) (85 (88 173
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZB-_EF+-A=1—H 3,006 - 3,006

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
tax losses arising in Hong Kong of approximately
HK$926,702,000 (2019: approximately HK$873,186,000)
that are available indefinitely for offsetting against
future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. The Group also had tax losses arising
in Mainland China of approximately HK$14,256,000
(2019: approximately HK$18,000,000) that will expire in
one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses
of approximately HK$708,679,000 (2019: approximately
HK$654,217,000) have not been recognised as they have
arisen in certain subsidiaries that have been loss-making
for some time and in the opinion of the directors, it
is not considered probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
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DEFERRED TAX (continued) 27. ELEHREAGE)
Pursuant to the Canada Income Tax Act, a 25% BENERFAEEE  RIIE KK 25
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to KELERMINAKEES IR 2 KR EEIE2%
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises FREMWIEBINF - Wil KENRREEZ
established in Canada. A lower withholding tax rate FEEEREOEZIBMBKEY  BledARK
may be applied if there is a tax treaty between Canada WIEHNRE - EARAER 2T ER15%3K
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the 25% c At REBBEEAELE B A
Group, the applicable rate is 15% or 25%. The Group ERNMERKZ 2B ARFTEIR 2K ETE
is therefore liable to withholding taxes on dividends MALIE -
distributable by those subsidiaries established in Canada
in respect of earnings generated.
There are no income tax consequences attaching RAT A HRE SR B RS TEK
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its FE
shareholders.
SHARE CAPITAL 28. BA&
Shares Bz 4
2020 2019
—E_8F —T-NEF
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET TET
Authorised: ETERRAN
2,354,256,546 ordinary shares of 2,354,256,546 /1% T % H (&
HK$0.2 each 0.2/8 7T Z & i A 470,851 470,851
1,291,486,908 5% redeemable cumulative 1,291,486,908 1% & i A1 &
convertible preference shares of 0.1 7T 25% RTE 0] & [
HK$0.1 each A $E B ST 129,149 129,149
600,000 600,000
Issued and fully paid: BT B :
880,543,017 (2019: 876,622,987) ordinary 880,543,017 (ZFE — L F :
shares of HK$0.2 each 876,622,987) & X [El &
0.278 7T 2 & il X 176,109 175,325
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 28. RA&(4#&)
Shares (continued) B3 (48)

A summary of movements
capital is as follows:

in the Company’s share

ARBIBAZESH AT

Number of
ordinary Issued Share
shares in ordinary premium
issue share capital account Total
2RI 2RI
EERHE TEARRE ROZBER #Et
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FHET T
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-—hF—H—H 866,106,337 173,222 25,442 198,664
Exercise of share options 1T s AR i 10,516,650 2,103 13,219 15,322
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE—AF+=-A=+—H
1 January 2020 r—E-FF—H—H 876,622,987 175,325 38,661 213,986
Exercise of share options 171 B A% 3,920,030 784 4,861 5,645
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-ZF+-F=+—H 880,543,017 176,109 43522 219,631
During the year, the subscription rights attaching B’\¢ A+ 3,920,030% (ZF — 14 : 10,516,650
to 3,920,030 (2019: 10,516,650) share options were R)BRENRSZRBEZABESRLO
exercised at the subscription prices of HK$1.01 and 7 7T R1.1678 T AT (M 7520) - B BB 1T
HK$1.16 per share (note 29), resulting in the issue 3,920,03()HX(—i JUEF £10,516,650% ) B AR E
of 3,920,030 (2019: 10,516,650) shares of HK$0.2 each Bo2B LRy  MBEAIAIcRRERE

for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of
approximately HK$4,227,000 (2019:

HK$11,599,000). An amount

HK$3,725,000) was transferred from the share option

reserve to the share premium
of the share options.

approximately
of HK$1,418,000 (2019:

account upon the exercise

BEREE

5 #94,227,0007% 7T (ZF — L F 1 £911,599,000
BIT) o BRI T(ER
— L 3,725,000/ 70) 2 sRIEE B B IR R
&5 imE AR -

1,418,000/ T (=%

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option schemes and the
share options granted under the schemes are included

in note 29 to the financial statements.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

@

Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 May
2002 (the “2002 Scheme”)

The 2002 Scheme was adopted by the Company
on 28 May 2002 and had a term of 10 years
commencing from 28 May 2002, unless otherwise

terminated in accordance with the terms of the
2002 Scheme.

Summary of the 2002 Scheme is set out below:

(@

(b

Purpose

The 2002 Scheme seeks to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions or potential
contributions made or to be made by the
participants to the Group, to motivate the
participants to optimise their performance
the benefit of the
Group, and to maintain or attract business

and efficiency for

relationship with the participants whose
contributions are or may be beneficial to the

growth of the Group.
Participants

The board of directors may at its absolute
discretion invite anyone from the following
classes of participants to take up options to
subscribe for shares of the Company:

(1 any part-time or full-time employee or
officer of any member of the Group
or of any associate;

(i) any director (executive or

executive) of any member of the Group

non-
or of any associate; or

(i) any supplier, agent, customer, business
associate, distributor, professional or
other adviser of, or consultant or

contractor to,

Group.

any member of the

31 December 2020
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29. BRRERTE

@

R-CBE-_FHEA-+N\HEANER
EFE(=Z2ZE=—F58)D

R-ZEZE-FRA-+N\B  ARAEK
M_TE_FHE BA-_FTT_FAH
“TNBRHRBI0FE - BRIESTRIE
“ETFEHEMGEREL -

“EE_FHEMBELT:
@ A&

—EE_FEEBENRERZHE
ERAKEMRELIBIEL R
B BEER - tMAB2EE
HREBELRERASMEUNBERAS
= WAEENEERYAKE
EERBMEMKAIEERR 22
HEZXGRE -

i

W
\|

<

(b

EFen2#NBERBETII2HE
ERPZEMALEABBREE
ARBARBRA :

O AR ER AR TR TR Y
DRZEARBL 2 W E R
REE

() ANEBEREB AR HEMEE
NRAZEMEEERITHIE
HAT) =X

GiD AEEKE R E ZE [ f#
fEm - REFP EBE
HoHE FEXRAL &
AN BRI ARR -
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(1) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 May
2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) (continued)

©

()

Total number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the 2002 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval of
the 2002 Scheme (excluding options which
have lapsed) (the “General Mandate”).

The Company may, at any time, refresh the
General Mandate by obtaining the approval
of shareholders of the Company in a general
meeting. The Company may also seek
separate approval by its shareholders in a
general meeting for granting options beyond
the General Mandate or the refreshed limit
provided that the options in excess of the
limit are granted to participants specifically
identified before such approval is sought.

The overall limit on the number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2002 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless separately approved by shareholders
in a general meeting in the manner as
prescribed in the Listing Rules, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of share options granted to
each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the shares
then in issue.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 20 BRETE(E)
(1) Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 May 1) RZSSEE-FRA-TN\HEHRNER
2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) (continued) Ea(Zs==2=F58 ) E)
(e)  Period within which the shares must be (© WHARERGZ AR

taken up

The period during which a share option may BIE - ZEZE-—F S WGER A

be exercised in accordance with the terms THEEREZHEAEBZLN XK

of the 2002 Scheme shall be the period HETHIRE 2 BARE - S

set out in the relevant offer letter provided BATNERBERERLBHETE

that such period expires no later than the FEW o

tenth anniversary of the date on which it is

granted.

(f)  Basis of determining the exercise price ) TTEENEEEE

The exercise price shall be the highest of: TEBIATY SRS E A% :

()  the closing price of the Company’s O BHEFEBREEARAA
shares as stated in The Stock Exchange BHEEBBEXIMER
of Hong Kong Limited’s (the “Stock Al (THE X P )) B R 3% P &
Exchange”) daily quotations sheet on By YT AE
the date of grant of the relevant share
options;

(i) the average of the closing prices of G) ZBERLEBEERERDSR
the Company’s shares as stated in {22 5 A AR AR () 1B
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations T HTHMR KT E R W
sheets for the five trading days B &

immediately preceding the date of
grant of the relevant share options;
and

(i) the nominal value of the Company’s Gi) ANAFRMDEE °
shares.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

@

Share Option Scheme adopted on 28 May
2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) (continued)

(g) Remaining life

The 2002 Scheme expired on 27 May 2012.

A resolution was passed by the shareholders of
the Company in the annual general meeting held
on 27 May 2005 to refresh the General Mandate
limit to 10% of the number of the shares of
the Company in issue as at 27 May 2005. Such
refreshment of the General Mandate limit will
enable the Company to grant options carrying
the rights to subscribe for up to a total of
91,717,753 shares (adjusted due to consolidation
of the Company’s shares on 18 May 2000) of
the Company under the 2002 Scheme and other
scheme(s) of the Company, if any.

On 23 May 2012, the
terminated and a new

2002 Scheme was
share option scheme
was adopted. Upon the termination of the 2002
Scheme, no further share options could be granted
thereunder. However, all outstanding share options
previously granted under the 2002 Scheme will
remain valid and exercisable in accordance with

their terms of issue.

At 1 January 2020,
options

there were 1,066,680 share
the 2002 Scheme.
During the year, no share option was granted
the 2002 Scheme. A of 766,680
outstanding previously granted

outstanding under

under total
share options
under the 2002 Scheme at the exercise price of
HK$1.16 per share were exercised, resulting in the
issue of 766,680 new ordinary shares for a total
of HK$889,349,
which was received by the Company. A total
of 300,000
previously granted under the 2002 Scheme at the

consideration, before expenses,

shares outstanding share options

exercise price of HK$1.16 per share lapsed.

As at 31 December 2020,
options outstanding under the 2002 Scheme. The

there were no share

last exercise period of the share options granted
under the 2002 Scheme ended on 11 April 2020.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2)

Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May
2012 (the “2012 Scheme”)

The 2012 Scheme was adopted by the Company
on 23 May 2012 and has a term of 10 years
commencing from 23 May 2012, unless otherwise

terminated in accordance with the terms of the
2012 Scheme.

Summary of the 2012 Scheme is set out below:

(@

(b

Purpose

The 2012 Scheme seeks to recognise and
acknowledge the contributions or potential
contributions made or to be made by the
participants to the Group, to motivate the
participants to optimise their performance
the benefit of the
Group, and to maintain or attract business
whose

and efficiency for
relationship with the participants
contributions are or may be beneficial to the
growth of the Group.

Participants

The board of directors may at its absolute
discretion invite anyone from the following
classes of participants to take up options to
subscribe for shares of the Company:

(1 any part-time or full-time employee or
officer of any member of the Group
or of any associate;

(i) any director (executive or non-

executive) of any member of the Group

or of any associate; or

(iiD any supplier, agent, customer, business
associate, distributor, professional or
other adviser of, or consultant or

contractor  to,

Group.

any member of the

31 December 2020
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May
2012 (the “2012 Scheme”) (continued)

©

()

Total number of shares available for issue

The total number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be
granted under the 2012 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of approval of
the 2012 Scheme (excluding options lapsed)
(the “Mandate Limit”).

The Company may, at any time, refresh the
Mandate Limit by obtaining the approval of
shareholders of the Company in a general
meeting. The Company may also seek
separate approval by its shareholders in a
general meeting for granting options beyond
the Mandate Limit or the refreshed limit
provided that the options in excess of the
limit are granted to participants specifically
identified before such approval is sought.

The overall limit on the number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the 2012 Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue.

Maximum entitlement of each participant

Unless separately approved by shareholders
in a general meeting in the manner as
prescribed in the Listing Rules, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of share options granted to
each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period must not exceed 1% of the shares
then in issue.
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

(2) Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May
2012 (the “2012 Scheme”) (continued)

(e

®

(g)

Period within which the shares must be
taken up

The period during which a share option may
be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the 2012 Scheme shall be the period
set out in the relevant offer letter provided
that such period expires no later than the
tenth anniversary of the date on which it is
granted.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price must be at least the
higher of:

(1  the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant of the relevant share
options; and

(i)  the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of
grant of the relevant share options.

Remaining life

The 2012 Scheme will expire on 22 May
2022.

B 75 R 2R BT 5
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

2)

Share Option Scheme adopted on 23 May
2012 (the “2012 Scheme”) (continued)

At 1 January 2020, there were () 26,730,000
share options outstanding granted in 2015 under
the 2012 Scheme with an exercise period from
4 May 2016 to 3 May 2025 at an exercise price
of HK$1.16 per share, and (i) 40,000,030 share
options outstanding granted in 2017 under the
2012 Scheme with an exercise period from 13
January 2018 to 12 January 2027 at an exercise
price of HK$1.01 per share. During the year, no
share option was granted under the 2012 Scheme.
A total of 1,020,000 and 2,133,350 outstanding
share options previously granted under the 2012
Scheme at the exercise prices of HK$1.16 per
share and HK$1.01 per share, respectively, were
exercised, resulting in the issue of 3,153,350 new
ordinary shares for a total consideration, before
expenses, of HK$3,337,884, which was received by
the Company.

A total of 300,000 and 200,000 outstanding share
options previously granted under the 2012 Scheme
at the exercise prices of HK$1.16 per share and
HK$1.01 per share, respectively, lapsed.

At 31 December 2020, there were 25,410,000 and
37,666,680 share options
in 2015 and 2017,
Scheme.

outstanding granted
respectively, under the 2012

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had 63,076,680
(2019: 606,730,030) share options outstanding under the
2012 Scheme with an exercise period from 4 May 2016

to 12 January 2027 and exercise price ranging from
HK$1.01 to HK$1.16 per share; and the Company had

no

share options outstanding under the 2002 Scheme

(2019: 1,066,680). The exercise in full of the remaining
share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 63,076,680 (2019:
67,796,710) additional shares of HK$0.2 each, which
represented approximately 7.16% of the existing issued

ordinary share capital of the Company at the end of

the reporting period.
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29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

During the year, movement of share options granted to
the directors and eligible employees under the share

BT 75 i = MY 5
31 December 2020 —F-FF+=-H=+—H
20. BRETE(E)

RER SEZERAEREERBEARARE
RS ER T 2BREZFHMT

option schemes of the Company is as follows:

Number of share options

BREHE
Exercise
Date of Exercise price of
grant of At  Exercised Lapsed At period of share Fair value
Name or category share options 1 January during during 31 December share options options  per share
of participant (dd/mm/yy) 2020 the year the year 2020 (dd/mm/yy) (Note 1) option
BRE
BREZLAS R-2-2F R-ZZ=-2F BRETES THE SRERE
SEREN LR (B/R/%) -A-B RERTE RERXH +=A=t-8 (B/R/%) (K1) ATE
HKS HKS
BT BT
Directors
Bz
Under the 2012 Scheme:
RE-Z-—F:8:
Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles 04/05/15 830,000 - - 830,000 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160 0.440
AHBEEE 13/01/17 3,400,000 - - 3,400,000  13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.307
Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak (Note 2) 04/05/15 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160 0.440
fa TE 4 5 A (Fif 522) 13/01/17 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.307
Mr. Jia Hongping 04/05/15 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160 0.440
BATEE 13/01/17 2,500,000 - - 2,500,000 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.307
Mr. Lau Chung Man, Louis 04/05/15 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160 0.440
R 13/01/17 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.307
Mr. Lo Wing Hung 13/01/17 1,500,000 - - 1,500,000 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.307
Bk
Mr. Siu Sai Wo 04/05/15 4,000,000 - - 4,000,000 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160 0.440
Ejegilba 13/01/17 4,900,000 - - 4,900,000  13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.307
Total 31,130,000 - - 31,130,000
At
Other employees (in aggregate)
HitE S (42:0)
Under the 2002 Scheme (Note 3) 12/04/10 1,066,680 (766,680)  (300,000) - 12/04/11-11/04/20 1.160 -
RE-ZZ-F38(H3)
Under the 2012 Scheme 04/05/15 15,900,000 (1,020,0000  (300,000) 14,580,000 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160 0.380
RE-T——F:3 13/01/17 19,700,030 (2,133350)  (200,000) 17,366,680 13/01/18-12/01/27 1.010 0.321
Total 36,000,710 (3,920,030)  (800,000) 31,946,680
aat
Grand total 67,796,710 (3,920,030) (800,000) 63,076,680

Ay
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29.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)
Notes:

1. The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

2. Mr. Ho Kent Ching Tak is the son of Mr. Ho Tsu
Kwok, Charles, who is a director and a substantial
shareholder of the Company, and therefore an
associate (as defined under the Listing Rules) of Mr.
Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles.

3. The 2002 Scheme was valid and effective until 11
April 2020.

The Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$54,000 (2019: HK$1,625,000) (note 7) during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
movement of share options granted under the share
option schemes of the Company is as follows:

29. BBRESHE(E)

Wit -

1. BREZITEEZERARBMHK - HTAK
ﬁﬁ NERALE 2 Bt AU Z B mIEL
EEJI °©

2. (ERELER/ARAESER T EZRR(AHE
BlEEZ T - AUt AMAEELE 2B
BAEZER LTARA -

3. ERE_FHIABANNRERE—_ZT_TF
MA+—H-

Z'KEIEEWUEA@?: ? ;EEF—'— ﬂ +_
BIEFE AN ERER A54,0008 T (ZF —
L 11,625,000 7T) (B 7£7) ©

BB - RIS AL AR A A BIIR 2
BREEBMT

Number of share options

BRERLEA
Date of
grant of Exercised after Lapsed after Exercise period of
Date of exercised/lapsed share options the end of the end of share options  Exercise price of
(dd/mm/yy) (dd/mm/yy) reporting period  reporting period (dd/mm/yy) share options
1/ X %BH BRERLAH BRETES
(B/B/%) (B/B/%) RESHRRITHE REERRELR (B/B/%) BRETEE
HKS$
BT
006/02/21 04/05/15 100,000 04/05/16-03/05/25 1.160
Total 100,000
&t

At the approval date of these financial statements, the
Company had 62,976,680 share options outstanding
2012 Scheme, which represented
approximately 7.15% of the Company’s shares in issue
as at that date.

under the
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30.

31.

32.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on pages 90 and 91 of the financial statements. The
Group’s contributed surplus represents (i) the excess
of the nominal value of the shares issued by Perfect
(BVD Limited in exchange for
the aggregate nominal value of the issued capital

Treasure Holdings

of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation in 1996, prior to the listing of the
Company’s shares, amounting to HK$9,899,000, and
(i) the credit of HK$488,930,000 arising from the
reduction of the share premium account in 2003 less
the distribution of HK$18,181,000 in 2003 and the debits
of HK$5,935,000, HK$1,073,000, HK$34,307,000 and
HK$31,443,000 arising from the repurchase of shares
during the years ended 31 December 2012, 2008, 2007

and 2000, respectively.
PENDING LITIGATIONS
The Group has received claims made against certain

respect of alleged
defamation. Based on legal opinions, the directors are of

subsidiaries for damages in
the opinion that adequate provision has been made in
the financial statements to cover any potential liabilities
arising from the litigations.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of HK$17,275,000 (2019: HK$4,681,000) and
HK$17,275,000 (2019: HK$4,681,000), respectively,
in respect of lease arrangements for buildings,

During the vyear, the Group

furniture, fixtures, equipment and others and
motor vehicles.

30.

31.

32.
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AEERAFERBAFE 2REHBELE
FHE 2NN ARBERKREIVBRIIB 2 FE
HRE2ER - ANEEZHAEB B OPerfect
Treasure Holdings (BVI) Limited#7Ti% 15 2
HE G BRAARARMDETH - BAEIKRIR
B hhAAAFEEEABKNBENBERARD
BTRAREE D © %8 459,899,000
T EMHZZEZ=FHI BB O RERMME
A4 7488,930,0008 LERRE S =F%H
K 218,181,000 T AN REE=_F——F -
—EENF  ZEELFR_FTEERF+Z
A=+—BLEFERNREBERMDMD R L
5,935,000/ JT ~ 1,073,000/ JT * 34,307,000/
JC X 31,443,000/ JC °

FRFHIRZFHAR

REEREE THBRR R N mER
HZEBER -REBEERER EFAR/LEKHE
ERETHERRPIELEHBEABEL
AR EASFAMELE ZER -

RERTRERME

@ IEBEFRREXH

FRN AEE ERABEEEREES
EREF G- £E THEREME
REZHEETHED RSB IR SN
17,275,000 7T (= & — JL 5 : 4,681,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
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CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b)

©

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

32. GERERERMITE)

(b)

METHELECEEEY

Lease liabilities

HEEE
HK$000
TET
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-—hF—H—H 74,532
Changes from financing cash flows Eﬁ EREREEH (29,37D
Foreign exchange movement & 5 & &) (189)
New leases ﬁ?)ﬂ{ =3 4,681
Interest expense (note 6) F B FH = (M 5F6) (2,418)
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows DERKEEREREZENTE 2,418
Write-off (note 7) g (B 55 7) (4,610)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RZE-NF+ZA=1+—HK
—E-TF—-A—H 45,043
Changes from financing cash flows MEBRESREE (28,085)
COVID-19-related rent concessions from lessors A AR T E20198 MBS
HEMASESR (2,452)
Foreign exchange movement i N 8 115
New leases ¥ /E 17,275
Interest expense (note 6) FLE = (B 56) 1,294
Interest paid classified as operating cash flows SEAKEREREZENFE (1,294)
Lease modifications Tﬁ SCH (3,210)
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZEF+=-H=+—H 28,686

Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the

statement of cash flows is as follows:

©

HERHRESHE

AARERERCHEER

T

SREERN

2020 2019

=2=%FF —FTNF

HK$°000 HK$000

FET FET

Within operating activities REEBA 1,294 2,418
Within financing activities BMEETHNR 28,085 29,371
29,379 31,789
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33.

34.

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at

the end of the reporting period:

B 75 R 2R BT 5

31 December 2020 —FE-—FF+=-H=+—H

33, EIE
AEBMPBERRENTEA RS

2020 2019
—E-SHE —ZE—-nF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Contracted, but not provided for: FIHVIB R
Plant and machinery T 55 Kot 28 1,252 2,029
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. BEALRS
(@ In addition to the transactions and balances @ BB mRER o EMMIFLZRSHHELE
detailed elsewhere in these financial statements, SN REE EAﬂE A 7 B B 43 /\ VA
the Group had the following material transactions T ZERR
with related parties during the year:
Notes 2020 2019
M —BZBFE _—_ZT-NF
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
News service fee income received REA EME 2B WHERS
from joint ventures ERKA ® 12,377 15,877
Service fee income received from KEBENMEZE WK
joint ventures ERKA (D - 215
News service and other service fee KB & AR Z B W E RS &
income received from associates Hihfris 8 AU A (i) 1,284 1,270
Advertising income received from KB —EBE QAR ZERES
an associate A >{iD 371 479
News service fee expenses paid to T —EH & Q7 2 ¥ HRB
an associate ERMAY (€)) 1,440 1,440
Advertising fee expenses paid to a X T —EEE AR CESER
joint venture (iv) - 246

The
news service and other service fee income and

related party transactions in respect of
advertising income received from associates and
news service fee expenses paid to associates above
also constitute continuing connected transactions

as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

B Le el e R w2 3 RS A
iREERWARBEERA - AEEN
BERB 2 AMERE RAOMEALR
SMERETRANFUAETEZNFE
FRERS e
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 34. BEANLXZH(#E)
(@ (continued) (€)) (&)
Notes: M &t -
(i)  The news service fee was charged on an ) FERFBERBERAETFERSED
annual fixed amount basis pursuant to the EEBFETFRHKE -
relevant news service agreement.
(i) The service fee was charged at cost plus a pre- G MR & ARE K A HTE T UL
determined mark-up. =)
(iid  The advertising income was determined Gi) BEWRABEBEFT2ERITHE
between the parties with reference to the BEE e
prevailing market price.
(iv)  In the prior year, the advertising fee expenses v RBEFE EHERAHRBEBESH
were determined between the parties with ZERITMEET -
reference to the prevailing market price.
(b) Compensation of key management personnel b FEEXTEEBEASZHE:
of the Group:
2020 2019
—E-2E —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET
Short term employee benefits EHEE R A 17,293 22,382
Post-employment benefits BfE B3k 72 1@ 76 117
Share-based payments VAR 10 /3 B 88 2 5K 25 730
Total compensation paid to key MEZEBAEXIN 2=
management personnel HER 17,394 23,229

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 8 to the financial statements.
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each category of financial NEREHI K -

31 December 2020

35. &

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are

as follows:

31 December 2020

Financial assets

—g-®F+=A=+-H

El!

IED

MBEE

Financial assets

B 75 R 2R BT 5

o i

—E-—F

—_— ==

#+=A=+—H

BERMIANKEEENT:

at fair value through Financial
profit or loss assets at
BEAFEFABREZ fair value
BREE through other
Designated comprehensive Financial
as such income assets at
upon initial Held for - Equity  amortised
Notes  recognition trading investments cost Total
RASBRBE BRTEFA
EERATE Hit2ERED REH
FABEKRZ BREE RAMEZ
ik BHBEE BHEEE -#EMRE HBEE Bt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FAT FET
Equity investments designated at fair value 1T AEATFETAE
through other comprehensive income lukaliEapa: £:3:d
RE 19 - - 47 - 47
Trade receivables & U5 B 5% 21 - - - 193,180 193,180
Financial assets included in prepayments, FTATERNFHIE « EfofE
other receivables and other assets WHEREMEEN
HBEE - - - 18,094 18,094
Financial assets at fair value through profit 1% A B A B & R
or loss BBEE 23 10,051 153,149 - - 163,200
Cash and cash equivalents BekHeSHEESR 24 - - - 499,982 499,982
10,051 153,149 47 711,256 874,503
Financial liabilities =R
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
Note cost
BRBHERET
i BROUBEE
HK$°000
FET
Trade and bills payables ERAEREEE 33,420
Financial liabilities included in other payables HAEMETIB N ESTRIB
and accruals ZHBaE 86,110
Lease liabilities HEaE 28,686
148,216
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)

31 December 2019

Financial assets

35. ®RMITESE(E)
T-NAF+-A=+—H
BREE

Financial assets
at fair value through
profit or loss

BOFEMABERZ

Financial assets

BBEE at fair value
Designated through other Financial
as such comprehensive assets at
upon initial Held for income - Equity amortised
Notes recognition trading investments cost Total
WS R BRFERA
%EE}QQ:HE HEib 2 EAED REH
HAREE SEEE AATIEZ
Wit BHEE HIEEE - #ERlRE  BEBEE Ch
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HEK$'000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Equity investments designated at fair {8 E AR AFEFAEM
value through other comprehensive PERE ERERE
income 19 - - 47 - 47
Trade receivables R R 21 - - - 285,736 285,736
Financial assets included in STAERFIE - E el
prepayments, other receivables and HEREMEENTK
other assets BiE - - - 19,881 19,881
Financial assets at fair value through REEFABRRENTE
profit or loss BE 23 10,651 76,439 - - 87,090
Cash and cash equivalents RBERREEEER 24 - - - 479,840 479,840
10,651 76,439 47 785,457 872,594
Financial liabilities BEaE
Financial
liabilities at
Note amortised cost
12 86 X AR 5|
#id EREOMBAE
HK$000
FET
Trade and bills payables JERERFR R EE 25 37,579
Financial liabilities included in other payables ST AR BN RIE R BT A
and accruals CEHKaE 106,491
Lease liabilities HEaE 45,043
189,113
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 30.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are
as follows:

Carrying amounts

ERMITANAFERLAFESRHE

BEREEATEREROEN AEEE
MIANE@ENLRAFENT:

Fair values

fREE NV E
2020 2019 2020 2019
—B-%F —TNF —ZB-BF _—T-NF
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
FET TET FET TET
Financial assets MBEE
Equity investments designated ¥§7E & & AFEFA
at fair value through other B 2EW = 2
comprehensive income EmERE 47 47 47 47
Financial assets at fair value EAFEFTAEZEZ
through profit or loss VBEE 163,200 87,090 163,200 87,090
163,247 87,137 163,247 87,137

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade and bills
payables, financial assets included in prepayments, other
receivables and other assets, financial liabilities included
in other payables and accruals, and lease liabilities
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to
the short term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s corporate finance team headed by the
treasurer is responsible for determining the policies and
procedures for the fair value measurement of financial
instruments. The corporate finance team reports directly
to the chief financial officer and the audit committee.
At each reporting date, the corporate finance team
analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in
the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved
by the chief financial officer. The valuation process and
results are discussed with the audit committee twice a
year for interim and annual financial reporting.

EEECDKNE TEARZFTANEH
AHEE REeRRSFEER - BUERNK
ENERFRRRE  FFARMRE - A ER
REREMBEENYHEE  sTARLMBES
REREFARENMHBREAREEREN
NP EEEKR@EMRS °

AEEHAETENEXVHERAERTE
ERMIEARFEFENBRRIERF - XY
GEGERAYHERAENERRESER -
REERSEH CXVHEBEOIMEHT
HEENEZEY IREEBARGEENETESR
ANB- HEAYHAEEHNRILE - HEB
BEEREERZZEEEFMARTHES
FHBRERFTW
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FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities
are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.
The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of listed equity investments and listed
debt investments are based on quoted market prices.
The fair value of unlisted debt investments is based on
the prices quoted by brokers. The fair value of other
unlisted investments is determined with reference to the
quoted market price.

30.

EMIANDFERAFESRHIE
(#&)

BBEENBENATENZIABRRS
77 GRE B REERINERMR S THA X
FEBARK - TITERBRIIBAMEFT A
FE:

FhEEEREN ETEBREZATFET
ERMGRE - FLTEHREZAFET
ERELREHEIHRE - HMIFLHREZA
FEDZETSHREMETE -

Fair value hierarchy AFEERFE
The following tables illustrate the fair value TRERTEESRTIANATFEAFESER
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial | E
instruments:
Assets measured at fair value: BRFEFTENEE:
As at 31 December 2020 R-ZEBE-—BFE+=ZHA=+—H
Fair value measurement using
DNREFERA
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
SERB™ SN EAXAHEE BEARFAHEE
HE W AE WAE
(&) (FH=) (F&=) CELl
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET TFET FET
Equity investments BERERNTFERA
designated at fair HEth2mEkzE 2
value through other EmMRE
comprehensive income 47 - - 47
Financial assets at fair BAFERABRE
value through profit or B EE:
loss:
Equity investments R E 15,240 - - 15,240
Debt investments BEETA 75,281 72,679 - 147,960
90,568 72,679 - 163,247
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37.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued)

As at 31 December 2019

36.

B 75 R 2R BT 5
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EMIANDFERAFESRABE
(%)

DFEERFEE)
B FEGENEE (&)
R-ZF—-NF+-A=+—H

Fair value measurement using

NFEFAERA
Quoted Significant Significant
prices in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level D (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
Gy ikl EATEERE EXRTAHEE
Ww(E BAE BAE
(FH—) (FH=) (FH=) a7
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T#&T T
Equity investments designated 187E BE A FEFTA
at fair value through other Hw2Eklz 2
comprehensive income Em it E 47 - = 47
Financial assets at fair value & AFEFAEBRE
through profit or loss: CHBEE:
Equity investments BRERE 7,127 - - 7,127
Debt investments BERITA 79,963 - - 79,963
87,137 - - 87,137

liabilities
2020 and

The Group did not
measured at fair value as at 31 December
2019.

have any financial

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2019: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise cash and short term deposits.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such as
trade receivables and trade and bills payables, which
arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions,
including principally forward currency contracts, for
trading purposes.

37.

RZE-_EFR_FT-NF+=-_A=+—8"
AEBWETMRAFEFENHBEEE -

RAFER BEAEER - LEFR_2HE
BREBAXBHER = A TEFE(ZET—
NEF ) e

BHEEAREEEERBE

AEBZIESRIAGTEIARINERE
RekBFER ZFeMTAZTIERN
REEESUBAEELLERT - ~A&EHE
TR % E E K BB (40 8 W iR 3R N FE A AR
RAERE) TERBEEERE -

AEBNRILZRTETAERS T 281
EEERGEZEREEEL -
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk.
The board reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below. The
Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are
set out in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Credit risk
The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy

It is the
Group’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on

third parties, joint ventures and associates.

credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts
is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets and the exposure
to credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2020
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24 °

EERR

AEBEREERAREERFZE=ZT &
EEEMBERFRETRSD -  AEBEZHK
SAEBAEURHEERHALETRSZE
P BEERXEEEZRRF - I AKHE
SN EREYWGRIAG S MAKB AR
IR B R AR o

A R RF K E D
TRARERAGEEFERRZERERERR
REERR ZBREIZREABEFR BRI
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37, BIREABREEBEERBRE(E)
AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued) FEERKE)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) =AM RFERERE S (E)
As at 31 December 2020 R-—ZE-_ZEF+=-A=+—H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
RAER
=S THEHEARX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2  Stage 3 approach Total

E-HE F-KBR E=ER 8 5 % #et
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET

Trade receivables* JRE LT BR SR - - - 210,456 210,456
Financial assets included FTATER IR - EAth

in prepayments, other JE WUk 1B K EAh

receivables and other assets EEZHBHEE

— Normal#* — IEE 18,094 - - - 18,094

- Doubtful** - A EE - - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFMBEIER

- Not yet past due — &) 7 4 Ef 499,982 - - - 499,982

518,076 - - 210,456 728,532
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37, BIEEABREEBEERBRE(E)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) FEERKE)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) mAE R FELRERZ S (E)
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZE—-hhE+-_A=+—8H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
TEHE A
=ES 2HTEHEREX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FE BB F=RBER 5% 5T
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
FET FETT FET FETT FETT
Trade receivables* Jr& UK BR SR - - - 298,403 298,403
Financial assets included STATENFRIE - Hib
in prepayments, other JE U 3R I8 K HoAb
receivables and other assets BEZUHGEE
— Normal#* - [ 19,881 - - - 19,881
— Doubtful** — AJ g - - - - -
Cash and cash equivalents RehBHELHEER
— Not yet past due — &) 7K a6 EA 479,840 - - - 479,840
499,721 - - 298,403 798,124

ke

For trade receivables to which the Group applies
the simplified approach for impairment, information
based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note
21 to the financial statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included
in prepayments, other receivables and other assets
are considered as “normal” when they are not past
due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit
quality of the financial assets are considered as
“doubtful”.
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers
the maturity of both its financial instruments and
financial assets (e.g., trade receivables) and projected
cash flow from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use
of bank overdrafts and bank loans. The Group’s policy
is that not more than 20% of its interest-bearing bank
borrowings should mature in any 12-month period.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the
contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

37.
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BEEAREEERRBE(E)

RBESEAR

AEBEERBERADECTIEIAERHEER
TRROBER ZTASRESBTARM
BEE WD MERER) OB HE I RFE &
EEBETRE -

AEENERRERARITEIRRITERNA
RERENFELEBEIEN TS - A&E
BB R R - TER20%M RRITERER
1218 AR EIER -

X

BEMR REANHRKTRAMRE A&
B HEENRRBERAT

2020

—g-25

Less than 1to5
1 year years Total
DR1EF 1E55F CELl
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET
Trade and bills payables JENERERE 33,420 - 33,420

Financial liabilities included in other FTAEAMLMERIFRIE « FEFTFIE K

payables, accruals and provision BENVBAEE 86,110 - 86,110
Lease liabilities HEAE 22,405 8,524 30,929
141,935 8,524 150,459
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 37, BIEEABREEBEERBRE(E)
AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRERE(E)
2019
—ZT—-hF
Less than 1to5
1 year years Total
NS 1255 & &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Trade and bills payables ERNERRZEE 37,579 - 37,579
Financial liabilities included in other &TAEMEFRIE « EETFIE K
payables, accruals and provision BENVBEE 106,491 - 106,491
Lease liabilities HEAE 30,526 16,302 46,828
174,596 16,302 190,898
Market risk i A ks
The Group trades in financial instruments, including AEBEESMIAE 8ETETA KBAX

derivatives, equity securities and debt securities.

Market risk represents the risk that the fair values or
future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate
due to changes in market variables, such as interest
rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The
Group is exposed to market risk through its derivative
financial instruments and other investments.

The Group has investment guidelines that set out its
overall business strategies, its tolerance for risk and
its general risk management philosophy, and it has
established processes to monitor and control various
trading transactions in a timely and accurate manner.

Foreign exchange risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk that the value of an
asset, liability or highly probable forecast transaction
denominated in a foreign currency will
because of changes in the foreign exchange rate. When
seeking to optimise the returns on its funds available
for investment, the Group may invest in investments
denominated in currencies other than the Hong Kong
dollar from time to time.

fluctuate
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37.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Foreign exchange risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible

37.
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BEAREEERREE(E)

miEE R (E)
S E J B (4 )

TRBEAR RS IR - AN B BR A EE R
Baf X TERNEEAEESNHRE -

change in the US$ exchange rate, with all other variable A HiEIEYRE & o
held constant, of the Group’s loss before tax and equity.
Decrease/
Increase/ (increase) Increase/
(decrease) in in loss (decrease)
USD rate before tax in equity
ERER BR B AT S 18 EmEm
EH (T ®D(Em) Of )
% HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
2020 —E-8HE
If the Hong Kong dollar IMRB T AEETESS
weakens against US$ 0.42 434 -
If the Hong Kong dollar IMRBTEEETEA
strengthens against US$ (0.42) (434) -
2019 —E-NF
If the Hong Kong dollar IMRB T AEETESS
weakens against US$ 0.77 535 -
If the Hong Kong dollar IMRBTEEETHEA
strengthens against US$ 0.77) (535) -
Equity risk Vo

Equity risk is risk that the fair values of financial assets
and derivative financial instruments decrease as a result
of changes in the levels of equity indices and the
values of individual securities. The Group is exposed to
equity risk arising from individual investments classified
as mandatorily designated as such. The Group’s
investments are listed or linked to securities listed on
stock exchanges in Hong Kong and are valued at quoted
market prices or quoted prices from investment banks.

BoRREMBEEMMIEERTANRF
BEARAZESEEANBNESNEEEZED
MR 2 B R o A SR B A @ B 2 48 4 58 642
EHEEZREMBAEEDEER AKENKR
BNHEBBRSAMEMREEZE EH 2
EHRABE  BEEmERERXRERTRE
fhiE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Equity risk (continued)

The market equity indexes for the following stock
exchanges, at the close of business of the nearest trading
day in the year to the end of the reporting period, and
their respective highest and lowest points during the
year were as follows:

37. MBABEEEERBEGE)

miEE kR (E)
B A (E)
UREEAREROREARNIZBEER

BERE U TEFXZAOMSRERE -
ARAERFEANKSLML L RELET:

31 December High/low 31 December High/low
2020 2020 2019 2019
—E-%F i —F-NF —TNF
+=-A=+—8 &/ +t-—A=+—81 =&
Hong Kong B
- Hang Seng index - BAEH 27,231  29,195/21,139 28,190 30,280/24,897
Shanghai it
- A share index - AREE 3,473 3,473/2,646 3,196 3,444/2,556

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every
10% change in the fair value of the financial assets, with
all other variables held constant and before any impact
on tax, of the Group’s loss before tax and equity, based
on their carrying amount at the end of the reporting

TRETAKERBABELREHYHE
ENAFEREBENBENRNEERE S
B0 BERE  IEEMEERARE T
g HYEARHUBENEAZE -

period.

2020 2019
—2-%F —ZTNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Investments listed in: ETRYHE EMRERE :
Hong Kong BE 1,429 618
Shanghai ! 95 95
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and

maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. As at
31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group complied with
the externally imposed capital requirements and there
was no indication of breach of covenants. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December
2020 and 2019.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 28 January 2021, Mr. Ho Tsu Kwok, Charles (“Mr.

HO”),
chairman of the Board and a controlling shareholder

an executive director of the Company, the

of the Company, and Luckman Trading Limited
(“Luckman”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and wholly-owned by Mr. Ho, entered
into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Agreement”)
with an independent purchaser (the “Purchaser”),
whereby Luckman conditionally agreed to sell and the
Purchaser conditionally agreed to purchase, 246,552,045
shares of the Company (the “Sale Share(s)”), representing
approximately 28% of the entire issued share capital
of the Company as at 28 January 2021, at HK$1.50 per
Sale Share and a total consideration of approximately
HK$369,828,000 (the “Transaction”). Completion of the
Transaction is subject to the satisfaction of the condition
precedent under the Agreement. Upon completion of
the Transaction, the Purchaser will hold 246,552,045
shares of the Company; before completion of the
Transaction, Mr. Ho, through Luckman, shall dispose of
the remaining 29,645,455 shares of the Company, to third
parties independent of Mr. Ho, Luckman, the Purchaser
together with its sole shareholder and parties acting
in concert with any of them. There was no financial
impact to the Group in the current year. Please refer
to the Company’s announcement dated 3 February 2021

for details.

37.

38.
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BEEAREEERRBE(E)

EXER

AEEEAERNTIZARRREALEE
BREBKEELELENREN LR
MBERL R U FHEEHLEERMNBRR
BfE -

AEEEZERIZEBEN RN LEABEEENAR
FHBREEREARRE XYHEERFHE -
MENHABEARER AKEAESHE
SN TFRROBRE  REEATHRRKET
ik  R-_T_FTER_FT-AF+-A=
T—H AKETFCHAREIMNOINEER
2R BV EERRENODRR - REE-F—
ZERZT-NF+ZA=+—HBIEFER -

ERAAHEE RAREFLELD -
BEMESEE

RZBEZ—F—AZ+NB XQAR ZHIT
B EFEREFARFIERKEAEE
P4 ([ 56 4 J) B Luckman  Trading Limited
(Muckman)(— I AR BE 2 FF S 2
WRAEEZERBHN AR EE —UBIE
RITEADFIA—HmEEWZE(ZBZED - &
It Luckman B HHEI B LE - TE 7 BK
1530 [ B B8 AR A F1246,552,0450% ik 9 ([ HH &
o) HEREARGTR_ZE-_—F—A=+
NB2Z 2B ETRMA28%  FREER DK
RERL50BTT » B RK(ER369,828,00078 7T
[#ZX5]))  ZRHZTHBARZBZET
LRGN REXNZXIE  BEAKEAR
AR F)246,552,045 8 B 10 IRTEREZ R S AT -
A 5 A4 (3 4B Luckman) 15 4 & Tl & 2 KA Q7
29,645,455 % %19 T L PRI 4 ~ Luckman »
BERHERAEE-—REREREEMN T %
THALTZE=T ZRXRHGRETFREANEHR
SEEUBEE FBEULHEAAFBHA
A=Az RE -
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

39.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are

as follows:

Place of

incorporation/

Nominal value
of issued

I 2 7 51

Percentage of equity

ARREEWBAT ZHBENT

registration and share capital’/ attributable to the Principal
Name of subsidiary business registered capital Company activities
MRS EROTRAEE
oy NG RCR BRERQE R HMMEA XAREEREEIE FEXR
Direct Indirect
HiE & 3%
Chinese Information Radio  United States of US$100,000 - 100 Radio broadcasting

Job Market Publishing
Limited

kBB 5 R A [R A A

Land Profit Development

Limited

Perfect Treasure Investment

Limited

BEHERARAT

Premier Printing Group

Limited

KRz RENBEEBR AT

Rayma Limited

Sing Tao (Canada) Limited

Sing Tao Limited

EBERRAT

America

xHE

Hong Kong
&8

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong
KBRLES/BE

Hong Kong

HE

Hong Kong
&8

Hong Kong
e

Canada

mE R

Hong Kong
25

common stock
100,000 7T & i ik

HK$2
ordinary shares
2BTLERR

US$1
ordinary share

1R 7T B

HK$100,000
ordinary shares
100,00078 7T & 58 %

HK$2
ordinary shares
2BTLE AR

HK$100
ordinary shares
10078 7T & 38 A

CA$1
common share
10 7T & 3 AR

HK$177,544,000
ordinary shares
177,544,000/ 7T

R
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- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

BEREE

Newspaper publishing
HEET

Securities trading and
investment

EHEENRE

Securities trading and

investment

EHREEMRE

Printing

EN Rl

Operation of a
website
kg

Investment holding
and property
holding agency

BB K
MERFERE

Newspaper publishing
WEET
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PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

31 December 2020
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Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued Percentage of equity
registration and share capital’/ attributable to the Principal
Name of subsidiary business registered capital Company activities
HEMARL BRTRAEE"
MEAR AR BN AMEER XAREEREEILE TBER
Direct Indirect
HiE 8 3%
Sing Tao Magazine Group British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Magazine publishing
Limited Hong Kong ordinary share and advertising
ESMFEEARAA KBRLES /B 1ETTEBER agency
MREEITR
EERE
Sing Tao Publishing Limited Hong Kong HK$133,332 - 100 Book publishing
ESHRAERAF N ordinary shares EREEAT
and HK$66,668
preference shares
133,332/ L& B I %
66,6687 TT 18 5t 1%
Sing Tao Newspapers United States of US$100,000 - 100 Newspaper publishing
Los Angeles Ltd. America common stock WE T
e 100,000 7t % 38 A
Sing Tao Newspapers United States of US$5,550,000 - 100 Newspaper publishing
New York Ltd. America common stock BREHELT
EqET 5,550,000k 7T % i A%
Sing Tao Newspapers Australia AU$250,000 - 100 Newspaper publishing
Pty. Limited SEM ordinary shares (in creditors’
250,000/8 7T & 38 fx voluntary liquidation
on 5 February 2020)
WwEHETT
(R=ZF=_FF_HA
HTHEAGREA
BEERIER)
Sing Tao Newspapers United States of US$2,335,000 - 100 Newspaper publishing
San Francisco Ltd. America common stock BREHEALT
EE 2,335,000 7T & B ik
Sing Tao (U.K.) Ltd. United Kingdom GBP2,500,000 - 100 Newspaper publishing

RE

ordinary shares
2,500,0003 5 & 3 X

WEET
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39.

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

39.

MEBLARFE(E)

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued Percentage of equity
registration and share capital’/ attributable to the Principal
Name of subsidiary business registered capital Company activities
MRS ERTRAEE
oy NG RCR BRERQE R AMEA XAREEREEIE FEXR
Direct Indirect
HiE i
IR ESERBEIEIIRG People’s Republic of RMB23,000,000 - 100 Software development
ARG China/Mainland registered capital B A B
China A R #23,000,0007C
REARIEME AR
RE A

RERERFVEEAEER)
BEREFE A

People’s Republic of
China/Mainland
China

REARAME,
A B A it

* For Hong Kong-incorporated
represents issued ordinary share capital

Wholly foreign-owned enterprise

companies,

RMB30,000,000
registered capital
A R #30,000,0007T
AMEA

this

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company

* AEBEMKLZ AR

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets and/or liabilities of the Group.
To give details of all the Company’s subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.
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- 100 Distribution of print-
media publications
in Mainland China

B A M BT
e E Rl am

REDETER
BB A

* SNETBE B E

EERR LRIRIBEXERFERE
FERAEEHEER LEEFEZEER
DZARBMBLRR - EERE > BHFIIA
REAENBAR > RIESBRITE -
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. BRATBBERRER

COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of BEARNATIRNBERARTBRIAER ZER
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as T

follows:

2020 2019
—g-2% —2-nf
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FEIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WERZRE 32 32
Investment property WEME 6,120 6,460
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AR ZEKE 1,389,709 1,388,394
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 1,395,861 1,394,886
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments, other receivables and other TERTFRIE - H b EUCRIE K&
assets EMmEE 658 630
Cash and bank balances & KMIRTIT4 8 6,946 8,794
Total current assets mEEEBE 7,604 9,424
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Other payables and accruals B fh & < 3R 1B % JE 5T RRIE 6,580 7,698
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 1,024 1,726
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES B AEBEE 2 EEHAE 1,396,885 1,396,612
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FRBEME
Deferred tax liabilities EEHRIBEBAG 1,492 1,577
Net assets BEFE 1,395,393 1,395,035
EQUITY i #E
Issued capital EETRA 176,109 175,325
Reserves (note) fi 18 (B 31) 1,219,284 1,219,710
Total equity % #E 48 58 1,395,393 1,395,035

SING TAO NEWS CORPORATION LIMITED Annual Report 2020



Notes to Financial Statements

B 755 5 2% P

31 December 2020 —FE-—ZFF+=-HA=+—H

40. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 40. ADFHMBEMRRKE)
COMPANY (continued)

Note: Bt -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARIREBEAMmT
Share Contri- Asset Share
premium buted revaluation option  Retained
account surplus reserve reserve profits Total
BEEM
Rt EER S ABHR e BRERE REEF A5t

HKS$000 — HKS$000 — HKS$000 — HKS000 — HKS000  HKS000
FET FET FET FET FET FET

At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NF—H—H 25,442 502,941 5,614 26,033 788,414 1348464
Loss for the year REEEIE - - - - (4,722) (4,722)
Other comprehensive income for F & H 2 MW &
the year:
Loss on property revaluation MEEMAEE - - (1,175 - - 1,175
Income tax effect on property YIEE- ST FE
revaluation - - 294 - - 294
Total comprehensive loss for the 4F [Z 2 TH &5 18 48 58
year - - (881) - (4,722 (5,603)
Issue of ordinary shares BITEBR 13,219 - - (3,723) - 9,496
Equity-settled share option fig 4 45 B BB R i 2
arrangements - - - 1,625 - 1,625
Transfer of share option reserve F2 )% W ff I 18 A5 8 8%
upon the forfeiture of share B g e
options - - - (276) 251 (25
Final 2018 dividend paid [ H —N\ERH
gy - - - - (17,322) (17,322)
Special 2018 dividend paid BIREZZ—NFHFH
P B - - - - (86,611) (86,611)
Interim 2019 dividend —E-NEFHEKRE - - - - (30,314) (30,314)
At 31 December 2019 and RZFB-NF+ZA=+
1 January 2020 —ARZZE=FTF—A
—H 38,001 502,941 4733 23,679 649,096 1,219,710
Loss for the year and total AFEEEBEERFEL2A
comprehensive loss for the BB EE
year: - - - - (3,923) (3,923)
Issue of ordinary shares EITEBER 4,861 - - (1,418) - 3,443
Equity-settled share option st 45 B i i 2
arrangements - - - 54 - 54
Transfer of share option reserve 7 )4% U B % 42 s 5 ¢ B
upon the forfeiture of share IRIEE
options - - - (176) 176 -
At 31 December 2020 R-ZFE-FF
+=—A=+—H 43,522 502,941 4733 22,139 045949 1,219,284
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40.

41.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (continued)

Note: (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company represents (i) the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the group reorganisation in 1996,
prior to the listing of the Company’s shares, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor, amounting to approximately HK$104,950,000,
and (iD the credit of approximately HK$488,930,000
arising from the reduction of the share premium
account in 2003 less the distribution of approximately
HK$18,181,000 in 2003 and the debits of HK$5,935,000,
HK$1,073,000, HK$34,307,000 and HK$31,443,000 arising
from the repurchase of shares during the years ended 31
December 2012, 2008, 2007 and 20006, respectively. Under
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
Company may make distributions to its members out of
the contributed surplus under certain circumstances.

The share option reserve of the Company comprises the
fair value of share options granted which are yet to be
exercised, as further explained in the accounting policy
for share-based payments in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the
share premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should the
related options expire or be forfeited.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 30 March 2021.

40.

41.
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RRB Y HAMR &K (E)

Wt - (&

KRB ZEABBEOARRR KRG L AR K
—“NMAARNFEBEHEFMKEZHBARZKG
NEE - BHARRARBRZER O MEITZ R
MHEE 2 Z=% » B149104,950,0008 70 * RGH=F
T = F H R A% 1D 4 (B BR BT EE 4 2 49488,930,000
BILTEBRBREZZZT=ZF 9K Z418,181,00078
TUERBE-_ZT——F T N\F - —ZTZ
+ER_EEANFT_A=+—HBLEFEFEAR
85 B % 15 1 9 Bl Rk 255,935,000 7T ~ 1,073,0007%8
TG * 34,307,00078 7T & 31,443,000/ 70 ° RIEHE
E—NN—FR8EE&IEE]) AREAIEET
BAT  UBABRGABRRELDIR

ARmERRFEEEFRCSREERRITEZE
etz nFE - FRMBREMT2.45 BN
MAERZMNRZEHBR - SHBEBREE
TE ReBENERERMNEER: 5HEE
b 2 B S OR M - RIS BEER B A o

HEEMBHER

Exer T —F-A=-THHRZRLRET
BN IEIREK
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Approx. gross  Group’s Lease
Address Lot No. Use floor area  interest expiry Main occupants
HEEEE MERE
i3t i R 4R 5 ik HE B ERFH IRGEAE
(square feet) %
(FI ) %
(I) PROPERTIES HELD FOR OWNER OCCUPATION:
EEBRAZUE:
Located in Hong Kong
I REE
1. Rooms 1401-02, 05-06, 14/F, Inland Lot Commercial 3,330 100 2842 Flash Bright Development
Car Po Commercial Building, No. 2 B3 Limited
No. 37-43 Pottinger Street, Central M B2 i ERERAR
R
TR R £737-43%%
REBEAR
1412140102 » 05-06%
2. 7 Chun Cheong Street, Lot No. 39 Industrial and 322,865 100 2047 Sing Tao News
Tseung Kwan O Industrial Estate, i B 39%5% headquarters Corporation Limited
Tseung Kwan O TEREE EBNEEERRAR
BEE
BERIZD
BEMT7R
Located in Mainland China
12 5 B #
3. Units 501 and 502, N/A Commercial 7,938 100 2052 Sing Tao News
The Spaces International Centre, TEA B Corporation Limited
No. 8 Dongdagiao Road, EBHBEEERARAA
Chaoyang District, Beijing
EtRmHAGE
RARBHsH
fef 25 B R 1
S01E B502E
Located in the United States of America
R EH
4. 215 Littlefield Avenue, Lot 7 Industrial 14,935 100 Frechold Sing Tao Newspapers
South San Francisco Block 4 T% interest San Francisco Ltd.
KA R
5. 188 Lafayette Street, New York Lot 40 Commercial 16,200 100 Freehold Sing Tao Newspapers
Block 473 BE interest New York Ltd.
KA R
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31 December 2020

TEVEHRE

—EFFFA=1—H

Approx. gross  Group’s Lease
Address Lot No. Use floor area  interest expiry Main occupants
BEEEE MERE
i 3 R R ik HEY B EREH TELRE
(square feet) %
(F7 i) %
(II) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES:
REME:
Located in Hong Kong
i R &E
1. Rooms 1305-06, 13/F, Inland Lot Commercial 1,632 100 2842 Independent third parties
Car Po Commercial Building, No. 2 GE3 (long term) BUE=F
No. 37-43 Pottinger Street, Central A 25 (RFH)
hIR
TR F 137435
REREANE
13121305-06%
2. Rooms 1403-04, 14/F, Inland Lot Commercial 950 100 2842 Independent third parties
Car Po Commercial Building, No. 2 [EES (long term) B E =7
No. 37-43 Pottinger Street, Central A R 25% (REH)
hiR
TR 8 737-435;
REREANE
14181403-04%
Located in Mainland China
fiz R BT A 1t
3. Unit 8E, Lan Yuan Mansion, N/A Residential 1,132 100 2064 Independent third parties
Beijing Jindao Garden, TEH T BUE=H
No. 1 Xibahe Nan Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing,
Hebei Province
AL RTHEE
757 B B 1%
TREBEEREBEE
Located in Canada
TRMEA
4. 411-417 Dundas Street West, Part of lots 6 and Commercial 23,000 100 Freehold Sing Tao Newspapers
Toronto, Ontario 7 Plan D-116 [EES interest (Canada 1988) Limited
KARR
Located in the United States of America
R EH
5. 17059 Green Drive, City of Industry, Tract Industrial 63,500 100 Freehold Independent third parties
Los Angeles No. 26265 T¥ interest BUE=]
Lot 7 KA
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Five Year Financial Summary

DFHHHE

A summary of the published results and of the assets, AEEBRETAVBRFEZENERXE EE 8
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the BERIFEREZPNE  DREEETHLEEZVB
last five financial years, as extracted from the published R o

audited financial statements, is set out below.

RESULTS E¥

Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—HLEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“¥=%F —TNE —F)N\F —F+F —F-A%F
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
FET FET FET FAET FET

Revenue WA 825,747 1,261,779 1,431,704 1,511,864 1,608,966
Profit/(loss) for the year  AREE G F(E18) (80,909) (22,676) 24,243 41,349 33,822
Attributable to: LATA L E(L

Owners of the Company  ANAR %A A (80,909) (22,676) 24,243 41,349 33,822
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE

As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
“¥=-%F —TNE —F)N\F —F+F —F-A%F
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$000
FAET FEIT FET FAET FET

Total assets BERE 2,301,707 2,390,763 2,554,999 2,613,149 2,486,518
Total liabilities BERE (323,480) (387,415) (418,703) (471,617) (413,255)

1,978,227 2,003,348 2,136,296 2,141,532 2,073,263
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